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AO 106 (Rev. 06/09) Application for a Search Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District ofNew York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

Four Premises and Two Electronic Devices, See 
Attached Affidavit and Riders 

) 

l cliS MAG 2969 
APPLICATION FOR A SEARCH WARRANT 

I, a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government, request a search watTant and state under 

____ penalty of perjury th.11t I have reason to believe that on the following person or property (identify the person or describe the 

prf~'JP'p~JJir:ii~w'cf~v~(g'Jfr'lfA1t-6evices, See Attached A-=m=-,d=--a-v::-it-a-nd--:--::R::-id'i-e_r_s ~------ ------

located in the ___ · S_o_u_th_e_r_n __ District of _____ N_e_w_Y_o_r_k ____ , there is now concealed (identify the 

person or describe the property to be seized): 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT AND RIDERS. 

The basis for the search under Fed. R. Crim. P. 41(c) is (check one or more): 

m evidence of a crime; 

m contraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed; 

r,J property designed for use, intended for use, or used in committing a crime; 

0 a person to be arrested or a person who is unlawfully restrained. 

The search is related to a violation of: 

Code Section 
18 u.s.c. s 371, 1005, 1014, 
1343 and 1344, and 

Offense Description 
Conspiracy, false bank entries, false statements to a financial institution, 

wire fraud, bank fraud, and 

52 USC 30116 and 30109 illegal campaign contributions 

The application is based on these facts: 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT AND RIDER. 

~ Continued on the attached sheet. 

0 Delayed notice of days (give exact ending date if more than 30 days: _____ ) is requested 

under 18 U.S.C. § 3103a, the basis of which is set forth on the attached sheet. 

Sworn to before me and signed in my presence. 

Date: 04/08/2018 

City and state: 

'-,i. 

__ __::_J_,_~_-/'0:j·: • ff-~>r~ 
-:--,-_7· Judge's sign(lt/,lre ', • .-· .·--.,"------

, ·1 - ·, '<. : .. ·.,; . :· ' \', ' .. ' 

Hon. H~m-y, 8'. Pitnlan,, U.S. M?gisfr$t.e'Judge 
• ' ,prpiti;dname af1a'tiilr· , • ' 

i ,•)\ii; 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

In the Matter of the Application of the United 
States of America for a Search and Seizure 
Wan-ant for the Premises Known and Described 
as (1) 502 Park Avenue, ~ew 
York, New York 10022, (2) Michael Cohen's 
Office at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 23rd Floor, New 
York, New York 10112, (3) Safe Deposit Box# 
■Located at the TD Bank Branch at 500 Park 
Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and (4) 

TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL 

Agent Affidavit in Support of 
Application for Search and Seizure 

Warrant 

---~·:toewTRegency-Hotel-;'-540-Park-Avenue;-Room ~: ---

1728, New York, New York 10065, and Any : 
Closed Containers/Items Contained Therein, and i 
the Electronic Devices Known and Described as : 
(1) an Apple iPhone with Phone Number -i 

and (2) an Apple iPhone with Phone \ 

Number• 
Reference No. 2018R00127 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK) ss.: 

Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation, being duly sworn, 

deposes and says: 

I. Introduction 

A. Affiant 

1. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI"). I have been 

a Special Agent with the FBI since 2009. In the course of my experience and training in these 

positions, I have participated in criminal investigations into federal offenses involving a wide array 

of fmancial crimes, including frauds on financial institutions, as well as into offenses involving 

public corruption. I also have training and experience executing search warrants, including those 

involving electronic evidence. 

2. I make this Affidavit in support of an application pursuant to Rule 41 of the Federal 

Rules of Criminal Procedure for a warrant to search the premises specified below (the "Subject 

2 
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Premises") and the electronic devices specified below (the "Subject Devices") for, and to seize, 

the items and information described in Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F. This affidavit is based 

upon my personal knowledge; my review of documents and other evidence; my conversations with 

other law enforcement personnel; and my training, experience and advice received concerning the 

use of electronic devices in criminal activity and the forensic analysis of electronically stored 

information ("ESI"). Because this affidavit is being submitted for the limited purpose of 

estabtisltmg-probablecause;-if-doesnotinclude-all-the-'-facts-that+have-leamed-during~the-course' 

of my investigation. Where the contents of documents and the actions, statements, and 

conversations of others are reported herein, they are reported in substance and in paii, except where 

otherwise indicated. 

B. The Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

3. Subject Premises-I, Subject Premises-2, Subject Premises-3 and Subject Premises-

4 ( collectively, the "Subject Premises") ai·e particularly described as: 

a. Subject Premises-I is Apartment located inside the building at 502 

Park Avenue, New York, New York 10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-

floor brick residential building. Subject Premises-I is located on the tloor of the building. 

Based on my review of New York City property records, I have learned that Michael Cohen and 

Laura Cohen own Subject Pr~mises-1.1 Additionally, as described below, Subject Premises-I is 

Cohen's full-time residence. 

b. Subject Premises-2 is an office located on the 23rd floor of the building at 

30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York 10112. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza 

1 As noted infra, I have learned that on or about October 28, 2015, Cohen transferred Subject 

Premises- I into a trust. 

3 
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is a 66-floor office building that spans the entire block between Sixth Avenue and Rockefeller 

Plaza. Subject Premises-2 is located on the 23rd floor of the building inside of the offices of the 

law firm Squire Patton Boggs. The office is assigned to Michael Cohen. As described below, 

Michael Cohen works and conducts meetings at Subject Premises-2. 

c. Subject Premises-3 is a safety deposit box located inside the TD Banlc 

branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019. Based on my review of records 

rrraintained-by-m-Bank;I-have-leamed thatthe-safety-depositboxis-approximately-five-inches-b""'·· ----­

ten inches in size, and is marked as box - The safety deposit box is in the name of Michael 

Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

d. Subject Premises-4 is Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel 

at 540 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park 

Avenue and 61st Street. Subject Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. Based on my 

review of emails obtained pursuant to search warrants described below, I have learned that on or 

about January 5, 2018, Cohen received an email from an employee of Loews Regency, which 

included a price quote for a long-term stay suite based on a three-month stay from January 8 to 

April 8, 2018.2 On or about January 29, 2018, Cohen sent an email to a Loews Regency employee, 

stating, in pertinent part: "I just spoke to my wife and she has scheduled the move for Thursday. 

Please mark down that we will be talcing possession on Thursday, February 1st." Based on my 

review of cell phone location data, I have learned that, over the past 24 hours, two cellular phones 

used by Cohen have been located in the vicinity of Subject Premises-4. In pmiicular, on or about 

2 Although the quoted price contemplated a three-month stay from Janumy 8 to April 8, it appears 

that Cohen did not move in until February 1, and as of today, April 8, cellphone location 

infonnation demonstrates that Cohen's cellular phones are in still in the vicinity of Subject 

Premises-4. 

4 
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April 8, 2018, law enforcement agents using a "triggerfish" device identified Room 1728 as the 

room within the hotel in which the Subject Devices are most likely present.3 

e. Therefore, I believe that Cohen is temporarily residing in Subject 

Premises-4. 

4. Subject Device-1 and Subject Device-2 (collectively, the "Subject Devices") are 

particularly described as: 

a~-SubjectDevice"'l-is-an-Apple-iPhone-servicedby-A-'F&-T-with-the-telephone-number--­

Based on my review ofrecords maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject 

Device-1 is subscribed to Michael Cohen. Based on my review of cellphone location information 

maintained byAT&T, I have learned that Subject Device-1 is presently located in the Southern 

District of New York. 

b. Subject Device-2 is an Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

Based on my review ofrecords maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject 

Device-2 is subscribed to Michael Cohen. Based on my review of cellphone location information 

maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject Device-2 is presently located in the Southern 

District of New York. 

c. Based on my training, experience, and research, and from consulting the 

manufacturer's and service providers' advertisements and product technical specifications 

available online, I know that the Subject Devices have capabilities that allow them to, among other 

things: make and receive telephone calls; save and store contact information; send and receive 

3 Based on my conversations with these agents, I understand that it is also possible that the Subject 

Devices are one floor below, in Room 1628. However, as noted, I understand that Cohen received 

a price quote for a long-term stay suite and is residing there with his family. Based on my 

conversations with FBI agents conducting surveillance, I understand that Room 1728 appears to 

be a suite, whereas Room 1628 appears to be a standard room. 

5 
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emails and text messages; download and run mobile telephone applications, including encrypted 

call and messaging application such as WhatsApp, Signal, and Dust; take, send, and receive 

pictures and videos; save and store notes and passwords; and store documents. 

C. The Subject Offenses 

5. For the reasons detailed below, I believe that there is probable cause to believe that 

the Subject Premises and Subject Devices contain evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 

~---~violations--of+S---B-:S~&.-§§-1005-{false--bank--entries ), 1014 ffalse-statements to--a-financial-~~-----------------­

institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank fraud) (collectively, the "Bank Fraud Offenses"), 

52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) (the 

"Campaign Finance Offenses"), and 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other 

Subject Offenses) ( collectively, the "Subject Offenses"). 

D. Prior Applications 

6. The FBI and the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District ofNew 

York ("USAO") have been investigating several courses of criminal conduct by Michael Cohen. 

Cohen is an attorney who currently holds himself out as the personal attorney for President Donald 

Trump, and who previously served for over a decade as an executive in the Trump Organization, 

an international conglomerate with real estate artd other holdings. 

7. In connection with an investigation then being conducted by the Office of the 

Special Counsel ("SCO"), the FBI sought and obtained from the Honorable Beryl A. Howell, Chief 

United States District Judge for the District of Columbia, three search warrants for emails and 

other content information associated with two email accounts used by Cohen, and one search 

warrant for stored content associated with an iCloud account used by Cohen. Specifically: 

6 
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a. On or about July 18, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search warrant for 

emails in the account -@gmail.com (the "Cohen Gmail Account") sent or received 

between January 1, 2016 and July 18, 2017 (the "First Cohen Gmail Warrant"). 

b. On or about August 8, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search warrant 

for content stored in the iCloud account associated with Apple ID -q}gmail.com (the 

"Cohen iCloud Account" and the "Cohen iCloud Warrant"). 

---c:---0n-or-about-November--1J,c--201-'7-,the--FBI-sought-and-obtained-a-search- -------

warrant for emails in the Cohen Gmail Account sent or received between June 1, 2015 and 

November 13, 2017 (the "Second Cohen Gmail Warrant"). 

d. On or about November 13, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search 

warrant for emails in the account -- (the "Cohen MDCPC Account'') sent or 

received between the opening of the Cohen MDCPC Account4 and November 13, 2017 (the "First 

Cohen I\IDCPC Warrant"). 

8. The SCO has since referred certain aspects of its investigation into Cohen to the 

USAO, which is working with the FBI's New York Field Office. As part of that referral, on or 

about February 8, 2018, the SCO provided the USAO with all non-privileged emails and other 

content information obtained pursuant to the First Cohen Gmail Warrant, Second Cohen Gmail 

Warrant, and Cohen MDCPC Warrant. On or about March 7, 2018, the SCO provided the USAO 

4 Based on my review of this warrant and the affidavit in support of it, I know that the warrant did 

not specify a time period, but the affidavit indicated that, pursuant to court order, the service 

provider had provided non-content information for the Cohen MDCPC Account that indicated that 

the account contained emails from the approximate period of March 2017 through the date of the 

warrant. 

7 
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with all non-privileged content obtained pursuant to the Cohen iCloud Warrant.5 A filter team 

working with the SCO had previously reviewed the content produced pursuant to these warrants 

for privilege. 

9. On or about February 28, 2018, the USAO sought and obtained search warrants for 

emails in the Cohen Gmail Account and the Cohen MDCPC Account, among other accounts, sent 

or received between November 14, 2017 and February 28, 2018 (the "Third Cohen Gmail Warrant" 

---·---~---~-----mid the ''Second CohenMDCPC·Warrant''):----Tue·contentproduced-pursuantto-these-warrants-is---

subject to an ongoing review for privilege by an SDNY filter team.6 

10. The emails search wan-ants described above are referred to collectively as the 

"Cohen Email Warrants." 

11. On or about April 7, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained a warrant for 

prospective and historical cellphone location information for Subject Device-1 and Subject 

Device-2. On or about April 8, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained authority to employ 

an electronic technique, commonly known as a "triggerfish," to determine the location of Subject 

Device-1 and Subject Device-2. 

IT. Probable Cause 

A. Overview 

12. The United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District ofNew York and FBI 

are investigating, among other things, schemes by Target Subject Michael Cohen (a) to defraud 

multiple banks from in or about 2016 up to and including the present, and (b) to make an illegal 

5 The SCO had previously provided a subset of this non-privileged content on or about February 

2, 2018. 
6 On or about February 28, 2018 and April 7, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained Rule 

41 search warrants authorizing the search of emails and content obtained pursuant to previously 

issued warrants for additional subject offenses. 

8 
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campaign contribution in October 2016 to then-presidential candidate Donald Trump. As noted, 

Cohen is an attorney who currently holds himself out as the personal attorney for President Donald 

Trump, and who previously served for over a decade as an executive in the Trump Organization, 

an international conglomerate with real estate and other holdings. 

13. The investigation has revealed that Cohen has made affirmative misrepresentations 

in and omitted material infotmation from financial statements and other disclosures that Cohen 

--pmvtded-to-multiple--ban.ks-in-connection-with-a-transaction-intended-to-relieve-Gohen-of------­

approximately $22 million in debt he owed on taxi medallion loans from the banks. As set forth 

in detail below, in these fmancial statements, and in his oral and other written statements to these 

banks, Cohen appears to have (i) intentionally misrepresented his ability to pay cash by failing to 

disclose cash he began receiving in 2017 from new consulting work; (ii) significantly understated 

his total holdings of cash and cash equivalents; (iii) failed to disclose tens of thousands of dollars 

he received in monthly interest income, and (iv) failed to inform the banks from which he was 

seeking debt relief that he had agreed to make a $3 .8 million cash payment to a third party, -

-in connection with :tcquisition of the taxi medallions securing Cohen's 

debt. By making these misrepresentations and material omissions, Cohen avoided making 

monthly payments on his loans, and attempted to fraudulently induce the banks to relieve him of 

certain repayment obligations and personal guarantees that Cohen and his wife had signed. 

14. Additionally, the investigation has revealed that shortly before the 2016 

presidential election, Cohen made a payment of $130,000 from a limited liability corporation 

("LLC") to Stephanie Clifford, an individual who is alleged to have had an extramarital affair with 

then-candidate Trump. This payment was made to Clifford in exchange for an agreement not to 

make any public disclosures about her alleged affair with Trump. As set forth below, there is 

9 
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probable cause to believe that Cohen made this payment to Clifford for the purpose of influencing 

the presidential election, and therefore that the payment was an excessive in-kind contribution to 

the Trump campaign. 

15. Based on my review of emails obtained from the Cohen Email Warrants, 

information obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant, and documents produced pursuant to 

subpoenas, as well as my review of public sources, I have learned that Cohen has used the Subject 

Premises-to-(a)-receive-documentsrelated-to-the-transaction-intended-to-relieveGohenof-his-tax:i---­

medallion debt, (b) receive documents and/or conduct meetings related to his consulting work, ( c) 

receive documents and/or conduct meetings relating to his fmances and assets, some of which, as 

noted above and as detailed further herein, he has concealed from the banks in connection with the 

refinancing of his taxi medallion debt, ( d) receive and send documents relating to his payment to 

Clifford, and ( e) house and operate electronic devices that were utilized in connection with, among 

other things, the taxi medallion transaction, Cohen's consulting work, and his payment to Clifford. 

Specifically, as described below, Subject Premises-1 likely contains evidence conceming Cohen's 

taxi medallion loans, his negotiations with banks, his personal fmances, his consulting work, his 

tax returns, and his payment to Clifford, as well as electronic devices containing such evidence, 

all of which constitute or contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. Additionally, as described 

below, Subject Premises-2 lilcely contains evidence relating to Cohen's consulting work, his 

finances, and his payment to Clifford, as well as electronic devices containing such evidence. 

Subject Premises-3, as described below, likely contains evidence relating to Cohen's assets and 

fmances, including assets that may not have been disclosed to banks in connection with the 

refinancing of Cohen's taxi medallion debt or documents relating to such assets, and documents 

or evidence related to Cohen's payment to Clifford. Subject Premises-4 lilcely contains electronic 

10 
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devices, including Subject Device-1 and Subject Device-2, which themselves contain evidence of 

the Subject Offenses, including concerning Cohen's taxi medallion loans, his negotiations with 

banks, his personal finances, his consulting work, his tax returns, and his payment to Clifford. 

Accordingly, and as set forth in more detail below, there is probable cause to believe that the 

Subject Premises and Subject Devices will include evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

B. Probable Cause Regarding Subjects' Commission o:fthe Subject Offenses 7 

~---- -----------------The-Bank-Fraud-Scheme-----

(i) Cohen's Statements to Sterling National Bank 

16. As set forth in detail below, in 2014, Cohen, through LLCs controlled by him and 

his wife, Laura Cohen, entered into a series ofloans from Sterling National Bank ("Sterling") and 

the Melrose Credit Union ("Melrose"), secured by taxi medallions, for approximately $20 million. 

Though entered into by LLCs, the loans were also secured by personal guarantees in the names of 

both Cohen and his wife. Over time, as the taxi industry weakened and the medallions lost value, 

Cohen sought to renegotiate the terms of those loans and/or relieve himself from their obligations, 

including the personal guarantees. As part of that effort, Cohen made a series of representations 

to Sterling and Mekose about his net worth, assets, available cash and income, among other things. 

Specifically, based on my review of records maintained by -Sterling and Melrose, and public 

sources concerning the taxi industry and the value of taxi medallions, as well as my participation 

in interviews with a Sterling executive vice-president (the "Sterling Employee-1 ") and two other 

7 In the following recitation of probable cause, I frequently refer to phone calls or text messages 

involving Cohen. The text messages described herein as sent or received by Cohen were all sent 

or received from the telephone numbers associated with Subject Device-1 or Subject Device-2. 

The vast majority of the phone calls described herein made or received by Cohen were made or 

received by the telephone numbers associated with Subject Device-1 or Subject Device-2, although 

in certain limited instances Cohen used a landline or other phone. 

11 
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Sterling employees ("Sterling Employee-2" and "Sterling Employee-3"), I have learned, among 

other things, the following: 

a. Taxi medallions are small metal plaques affixed to taxis. Without a medallion, it 

is illegal to operate a taxi in cities with medallion systems, such as New York City. Cohen and his 

wife own multiple LLCs that collectively own 32 taxi medallions (each LLC owns two 

medallions).8 Cohen's purchase of these New York taxi medallions was originally fmanced by 

-----------1oans· from Capital-Gue-bank; for whichthe-medallions-served-as-c0llateral~Gohen-was-n0t-a-taxi--­

operator, and leased his medallions to a third party. That third party made monthly payments to 

Cohen, who in tum used some of those proceeds to make his monthly loan payments to Capital 

One. 

b. In early 2014, Cohen became a customer of Sterling when he sought to refmance a 

mortgage on a rental property that he owned. In or around April 2014, Cohen raised with Sterling 

the prospect of refmancing his taxi medallion loans, which were then at Capital One. By in or about 

September 2014, Cohen began negotiating a lending transaction with Sterling that would allow 

Cohen to pay off his loans at Capital One and borrow more money :from the then-increase in value 

of the medallions. According to Sterling Employee-I, in 2014, prior to the recent upheaval in the 

taxi industry-as a result of the emergence of ride-sharing services, such as Uber-taxi medallion 

loans were viewed by banks and investors as safe, short term credits, as the market value of taxi 

medallions was consistently dsing. Consequently, taxi medallion loans-like the loans held by 

Cohen-were :frequently refinanced at increasing amounts as the value of the medallions rose. 

According to Sterling Employee-I, borrowers typically cashed out the increase in the loan amount 

8 One of these companies, Mad Dog Cab Corp., was jointly owned by Sondra Cohen, who I 

believe is Cohen's mother. 

12 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 13 of 269

and used the additional funds for other purposes. Cohen appears to have followed this approach in 

2014, when he agreed to refinance his medallion loans for approximately $22 million, which­

according to letters from Capital One in Sterling's files-was greater than his previous debt at 

Capital One Bank ($21 million, of which $14.6 million was a line of credit to Cohen). This allowed 

Cohen to cash out the proceeds from the transaction. 

c. Based on my review of records maintained by Sterling, I have leamed that on or 

~~- ~~ ·~-~-~ about December 8;~2014,-each~of eohen' ssixteentax.i~medallion-EEEs entered-into-loan-agreements­

and promissory notes with Sterling for the principal sum of $1,375,000, with repayment due on 

December 8, 2016. Each loan was signed by Michael or Laura Cohen, depending on who was the 

sole shareholder of the LLC. The address listed for each of the LLCs was the address for Subject 

Premises-1. The loans were also each secured by a security agreement, dated the same day, making 

the medallions collateral for the notes. To give Sterling additional security, Michael and Laura 

Cohen signed personal guarantees and confessions of judgment, giving Sterling the right to pursue 

collection against the Cohens' personal assets were their corporations to default under the loan 

agreements. The personal guaranty agreements stated that the LLCs had offices at the address for 

Subject Premises-1, and contained a notice provision that stated that any notices required by the 

agreements should be mailed to Subject Premises-1. In total, Sterling agreed to lend approximately 

$22 million to the Cohens' companies. 

d. Pursuant to pruiicipation agreements, Sterling transferred 45 percent of Cohen's 

taxi medallion debt to Melrose.9 

9 Melrose, which had a business principally focused on taxi medallion loans, is now in 

conservatorship by the National Credit Union Administration ("NCUA"). 

13 
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e. In evaluating Cohen's requested refinancing of the taxi medallions, Sterling (and 

Melrose, consistent with its participation in the deal) conducted due diligence. At Sterling's 

request, Cohen provided Sterling with a statement of financial condition, dated August 1, 2014 

(the "August 2014 Financial Statement"), which indicated that Cohen had $100,740,000 in total 

assets, $23,550,000 in total liabilities, and a net worth of $77,190,000.1° From my review of a 

Sterling credit memorandum, dated September 29, 2014, I lmow that Sterling viewed the 

transactioii-favorablyl5ecause; accountingfor-luaffpayrnents;-cash-flows-fromthemedalli0ns-were-~­

projected to be positive, the value of the collateral (as estimated by Sterling) exceeded $42 million, 

and the net worth of Cohen-who was the direct obligor under the guarantee agreements-was 

over $77 million. An internal Sterling credit and risk rating analysis report, dated October 20, 

2014, recommended approval of the loans for substantially the same reasons. 

f. Based on my review of records maintained by Sterling and public sources, I have 

learned that over time, the collateral backing Cohen's loans (taxi medallions) lessened in value due 

to the rise inride-sharing companies. Additionally, Cohen began falling behind on loan payments 

to Stl:lrling and Melrose. I lmow from records maintained by Sterling and an interview with Sterling 

Employee-2 that, beginning in or around September 2015, Cohen told Sterling, in sum and 

substance, that the individual leasing Cohen's medallions had fallen behind in maldng payments to 

Cohen, and that as a result, the monthly cash flow from his taxi medallions had been reduced, 

leaving him with a shortfall of approximately $16,000 each month. For instance, I have reviewed 

an email from Sterling Employee-2, dated September 9, 2015, summarizing a call with Cohen­

which according to the email and toll records for Cohen's cellphone occun-ed on September 8, 

1° Cohen subsequently provided Sterling with a revised statement of financial condition, also 

dated August 1, 2014, which reported assets of $99,420,000, total liabilities of $23,550,000, and a 

net worth of $75,870,000. 

14 
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2015-during which Cohen told Sterling Employee-2, in sum and substance, about his cash flow 

problems and a monthly shortfall of approximately $16,000. fu that same email, Sterling 

Employee-2 commented that despite Cohen's statements, his personal financial information 

"indicate[ d] a strong ability to make up the difference in payments." Cohen, however, according 

to Sterling Employee-2, pushed the bank for a reduction in Cohen's monthly payments. 

g. From my review of records maintained by Sterling and my participation in an 

interview witnSterlin1rEmployee:2;-I-have-Iearried-that-€ohen-and--Sterling-Employee-2spoke 

again on September 28, 2015, and that during the call Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that the 

individual to whom Cohen leases the medallions had again reduced monthly payments to Cohen. I 

know from my review of records maintained by Sterling that between in or about September 2015 

and November 2015, Sterling raised the possibility-both internally and with Cohen-of Cohen 

posting his real estate holdings, personal residence, or some other collateral as additional security 

for the banks.11 According to these records, however, Cohen resisted these requests. From my 

review of loan documents and records maintained by Sterling, I know that in or about November 

2015, as a result of Cohen's representation that he was not earning sufficient returns on his 

medallions to cover monthly interest payments, Sterling and Melrose agreed to amend their loans 

with Cohen by, among other things, reducing the interest rate Cohen paid to Melrose and extending 

the loan maturity date to December 8, 2017. 

h. I know from interviews with Sterling Employee- I and Sterling Employee-2, as well 

as emails I have reviewed, that in or about October 2016, Cohen told Sterling Employee-I that 

Cohen had a potential buyer of his taxi medallions, named who would agree to 

11 Based on my review of property records, I lrnow that on or about October 28, 2015, around 

the time period when Sterling raised the possibility of Cohen posting his personal residence­

Subject Premises-1-as collateral, Cohen transferred Subject Premises- I into a trust. 
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assume Cohen's debt with Sterling and Melrose. Based on my review of records maintained by 

Sterling, as well as the interviews with Sterling Employee-1 and Sterling Employee-2 referenced 

above, I lmow that by or before October 2016, Cohen had entered into negotiations to sell his sixteen 

corporate taxi medallion entities to 

for the balance of the loans, which at the time was $21,376,000. I know from my review ofrecords 

maintained by Sterling, and my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, that as a 

conditi01rofthe"transferof-the-medallion-"loans-and-beeause--Ste1-ling-was~unfamiliar-witb ___ -----------------------·---

J 
-Sterling requested that Cohen malce a substantial principal payment on the loan, of ~ 

approximately one million dollars, prior to the transfer. Cohen rejected this request initially. But ~ 

on or about January 31, 2017, Cohen told Sterling Employee-I, in sum and substance, that he would 

make a one million dollar principal reduction payment in order to move forward with the medallion 

transfer deal with . Indeed, in an email sent by Cohen to Sterling Employee-2 on or 

about February 22, 2017, Cohen confirmed that he "agreed to pay down 1 million from the loan 

amount." 

i. Pursuant to the participation agreements between Sterling and Melrose, Sterling 

was required to secure Melrose's agreement to participate in the transfer of the taxi medallion debt 

from Cohen to . On or about April 17, 2017, Sterling sent a memorandum to 

Melrose summarizing the terms of the proposed transaction, and noting the requirement that 

Melrose agree to the terms. On or about May 2, 2017, Sterling Employee-I told_­

that Melrose had agreed to the deal in principle, and that Sterling would be sending the parties a 

term sheet shortly. 

j. In order for the banks to conduct diligence and evaluate the proposed transaction 

fully, they requested financial information from the parties. On or about June 7, 2017, Sterling 
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Employee-1 emailed Cohen to request an "updated personal financial statement," completed 

jointly with Cohen's wife, and Cohen's most recent federal income tax return. On or about June 

8, 2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-1 a Sterling personal financial statement form that had 

been filled out by hand, which referenced a statement of financial condition, dated May 1, 2017 

(the "May 2017 Financial Statement") that was also attached. The May 2017 Financial Statement 

included a cover letter from Cohen's accountant, Jeffrey Getzel, stating, in sum and substance, that > 
~ 

• tlre--'mformation-in-the·stateriient-came-from-Eohen-and-that-Getzel had not~eonfirmed-its-aeeuracy--· -----1 
or completeness. The May 2017 Financial Statement stated that Cohen had total assets of 

$41,955,000, total liabilities of $39,130,000, and a net worth of $2,825,000. The May 2017 

Financial Statement indicated that Cohen's assets were comprised of $1,250,000 in cash, 

$26,155,000 in closely held companies (such as the taxi medallion entities and his real estate 

holdings), $3,200,000 in real estate investments, and his $11,000,000 personal residence. 12 

k. Based on my review of reports of law enforcement interviews of Sterling 

Employee-I, I have learned that Sterling Employee-1 reviewed the May 2017 Financial Statement 

with Cohen to, among other things, verify its accuracy, and Sterling Employee-1 asked Cohen about 

specific line items on the financial statement, including the cash amount, value of medallions, and 

total liabilities. Cohen stated to Sterling Employee-I, in sum and substance, that the May 2017 

Financial Statement was accurate. 

1. On or about August 16, 2017, Sterling Employee-I emailed Cohen and 1-

, attaching a non-binding term sheet memorializing the potential transaction between 

12 Based on my review of Cohen's fmancial statements, I know that the precipitous decline in 

assets from his 2014 fmancial statement to his 2017 financial statements can be explained 

primarily by reported depreciation in the value of Cohen's real estate assets and medallion 

investments. 
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Sterling, Melrose, Cohen, and . The term sheet included a cover letter addressed 

to Cohen at Subject Premises-I. The parties negotiated the provisions of the term sheet and, on or 

about September 5, 2017, Sterling Employee-I sent, md Cohen a copy of the 

executed term sheet. According to the term sheet, would botTow $20,000,000 

from Sterling and Melrose, to be secured by the medallions that -,v-as to acquire from 

Cohen. 

------ n1.----A::s part oftne agreement;irccordingtothetermsheet,$-1,165;91-3 inprinGipal{which~-- ---------------_; _______ _ 

is what would remain after the $20,000,000 payment on the outstanding loan balance) would be 

repaid by Cohen and the two banks, with Cohen paying fifty percent and the banks dividing the 

remaining half of the balance. Based on my review of an internal Sterling credit memorandum, 

dated October 4, 2017, the parties reached a preliminary agreement that Cohen would pay $632,956 

of the remaining $1,265,912 principal loan balance, and Sterling and Melrose would absorb 

$357,167 and $275,789, respectively, in the form of charge-offs. According to Sterling Employee-

1, Sterling was willing to divide the repayment of the outstanding principal balance-despite its 

prior insistence that Cohen make a principal pay-down of at least one million dollars-because 

Cohen represented on a telephone call with Sterling Employee-}, in sum and substance, that he had 

insufficient liquidity to pay the full outstanding principal balance. As part of the agreement, Sterling 

and Melrose also agreed to relieve Cohen and his wife of the personal guarantees that they made 

on behalf of the LLCs. Thus, after completing the' transaction, Cohen would no longer 

have had any outstanding obligations to Sterling or Melrose. 

n. Based on my review of emails sent by Sterling employees, I have learned that 

because the transaction between the parties was subject to full credit underwriting by Sterling and 

Melrose (as well as Melrose's regulators at NCUA), in August and September 2017, Sterling 
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required and requested additional fmancial statements and tax returns for Cohen and 1-

for its credit underwriting process. In response to Sterling's requests, on or about September 25, 

2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-2 a copy of his 2016 tax retum. The tax retum listed 

Cohen's mailing address as Subject Premises-1. Additionally, on or about October 5, 2017, Cohen 

re-sent Sterling Employee-2 a copy of his May 2017 Financial Statement. A day later, on October 

6, 2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-2 a statement of financial condition, dated September 

o. Like the May 2017 Financial Statement, the September 2017 Financial Statement 

included a cover letter from Jeffrey Oetzel, Cohen's accountant, stating, in sum and substance, that 

the information in the statement came from Cohen, and that Oetzel had not confirmed its accuracy 

or completeness. The September 2017 Financial Statement stated that Cohen had total assets of 

$33,430,000, total liabilities of $45,630,000, and a negative net worth of $12,200,000.13 Notably, 

unlike Cohen's May 2017 Financial Statement, the September 2017 Financial Statement 

represented to Sterling that Cohen had a negative net worth. The September 2017 Financial 

Statement indicated that Cohen's assets were comprised of $1,250,000 in cash, $17,630,000 in 

closely held companies (including the taxi medallion entities and his real estate holdings), 14 

$3,200,000 in real estate investments, and his $11,000,000 personal residence (which, for the first 

13 Based on my review of Cohen's financial statements, I know that this further decline in 

assets can be explained primarily by reported depreciation in the value of Cohen's real estate assets 

and medallion investments. 

14 Notably, the September 2017 Financial Statement valued each of Cohen's thirty-two New 

York taxi medallions at approximately $180,187.50, which was considerably less than the 

$650,000 valuation ascribed to each medallion in the Cohen---term sheet. 
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time, he indicated was held by a trust).15 The September 2017 Financial Statement included assets 

and liabilities not held in Cohen's name, such as various entities associated with his taxi medallions 

and some of his real estate investment entities. 

p. From my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, and my review of 

records maintained by Sterling, I have also learned that around the time Cohen provided Sterling 

with these financial statements-i.e., in or around September 2017-Cohen stopped paying 

mcm:tl1ly"lo-an-payments-on-his·taxi-medallion-loans···altogethe1';---'--Acc0rding-t0-Sterling-Employee-----------------'--

2, Cohen informed Sterling, in sum and substance, that he had insufficient funds to pay the monthly 

principal and interest payments on his medallion loans. By in or about December 2017, Sterling 

and Melrose had not been paid approximately $276,937.92 in monthly principal and interest 

payments on the medallion loans. Based on Cohen's financial condition as conveyed in the 

September 2017 Financial Statement, and his delinquency in making payments to Sterling, among 

other things, the bank's credit underwriting committee determined (and memorialized in a 

December 2017 memorandum) that the Cohen-'-transaction was favorable for the bank 

- that is, that-would be a better borrower than Cohen. 

q. On or about December 26, 2017, Sterling sent Cohen a demand letter requesting 

the immediate receipt of past-due loan payments. The demand letter was addressed to Cohen at 

Subject Premises-I. On December 29, 2017, Sterling sent Cohen a letter stating that he was in 

default under the loans between Sterling and Cohen's medallion corporations. The notice of 

default was addressed to Cohen at Subject Premises- I. Cohen did not make an ilmnediate payment 

on the loans, but instead sent an e-mail to Sterling Employee-I on or about January 24, 2018, 

15 Based on my review of property records maintained by the City of New York, and my 

participation in an interview with Getzel, I know that in 2015, Cohen transferred his residence to 

a trust. He did not disclose that transaction to Getzel or Sterling until in or about September 2017. 

20 
2017.08.02 

I 
i 
~ 
I 

I 
V 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 21 of 269

stating that during the closing of the Cohen• transaction, Cohen would "bring all 

payments up to date as well as deposit the payoff differential." Cohen also requested by email on 

January 24, 2018, that at the closing of the Cohen-' transaction, Sterling provide a letter 

stating that all of Cohen's debts have been satisfied and that Cohen's personal guarantees of the 

medallion loans had been terminated. 

r. The Cohen- transaction, however, did not close. On or about January 

--------------------:29;-2ot8;-the--'-attorney-emailed-attomeys-for-Sterling--and-stated-that~at-this-timt)--------­

there is no deal with Michael Cohen. Some of the numbers have changed and we are not prepared 

to go forward." 

s. Based on my participation in the interview with Sterling Employee-2 and my 

review of records maintained by Sterling, I know that after the Cohen- foal fell apart, 

Sterling assigned Cohen's loans to Sterling Employee-3, who specializes in collecting on 

defaulting loans. From my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-3, my review of 

telephone call notes taken by Sterling Employee-3, and my review of telephone records, I lmow 

that Sterling Employee-3 spoke several times to Cohen on or about January 30, 2018 about paying 

down and/or restructuring Cohen's outstanding taxi medallion loans. On the calls, which in total 

lasted more than an hour, Cohen stated in sum and substance that he did not have more than 

$1,250,000 to pay toward the medallion loans. On the call, in the course ofreviewing the failed 

transaction, Sterling Employee-3 questioned Cohen about the price 

rvas to have paid for each medallion, and whether there was a side agreement between 

Cohen and - . Cohen denied that there was any side agreement with-

t. On or about January 31, 2018, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-3 and proposed 

paying $500,000 to bring the loans current and $750,000 to bring the principal balance to 
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$20,500,000. Cohen also suggested revised monthly interest payment amounts. The signature 

block on the email indicated that Cohen's address was the address for Subject Premises-2. On or 

about January 31, 2018, Sterling Employee-3 responded to Cohen and stated, in sum and 

substance, that Cohen would need to pay the entirety of the overdue payments and pay down the 

principal balance of the loan to $20,000,000 (in total, a payment of approximately $1,750,000), 

and would need to make larger monthly interest payments. 

- - ----~·u:--anor-abourFel5ruary -t;-2018; Cohen-emailed-Sterling-Employee--3-and-proposed--------

"[p ]ayment of $1.250m which ALL can be used to pay down principal, if [Sterling] will waive 

past due amounts," but stated "I do NOT have more than the $1.250m." (Emphasis in original.) 

Cohen also stated, in sum and substance, that he had insufficient financial resources to post 

additional collateral or pre-fund monthly payments. The signature block on the email indicated 

that Cohen's address was the address for Subject Premises-2. Based on my participation in an 

interview with Sterling Employee-3, I have learned that since January 30, 2018, Sterling has 

continued to renegotiate the medallion loans with Cohen based on Cohen's representations about 

his current financial position. In particular, according to Sterling Employee-3, Cohen and Sterling 

have an agreement in principal to restructure Cohen's loans based in part of Cohen's agreement to 

make a principal payment of approximately $750,000, to make a payment of $500,000 to become 

current on interest payments, and to post $192,000 in cash collateral for his future monthly 

payments on the loan. Cohen also agreed to pledge an interest he had in a property. Sterling 

Employee-3 has stated that had Cohen indicated he had more than $1,250,000 available to him, 

Sterling would have, among other things, negotiated for a larger reduction to the principal amount 

of the loan. 
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(ii) Cohen Made Material Misrepresentations About His Finances to Banks 

Cohen Concealed from Sterling and Melrose Cash Derived from Consulting Work 

17. As set f011h in detail below, despite multiple written and oral representations by 

Cohen to Sterling (and, by extension, Melrose16) that he had insufficient funds to pay down the 

principal balance of the medallion loans, make monthly interest payments, or pay past-due 

amounts, it appears that between 2016 and the present, Cohen opened and maintained bank 
i1 

------ aGGounts-at-First-Republic-Bank-(-':Eirst-Republic:.:.),-ancLthen_recehrecl.millions__of_dollarsc:.iA _______ _f 

consulting payments in these accounts, which he did not disclose to Sterling. Cohen set up these 

accounts and received these funds during the very period in which he made disclosures to Sterling 

about his personal finances (including his assets and liabilities) and his ability to make payments 

on the medallion loans. In these disclosures to Sterling-and despite being asked about these bank 

accounts by his accountant-Cohen misled the bank by claiming he had insufficient liquidity to 

satisfy his obligations or meet the bank's demands, while withholding information about these 

ongoing revenue streams and liquid financial assets at First Republic. 

18. Specifically, based on my review of documents and bank records produced 

pursuant to a subpoena by First Republic, and my participation in and review of reports of 

interviews with a First Republic sales manager (''First Republic Employee-I") and a First Republic 

senior managing director ("First Republic Employee-2"), I have leamed, among other things, the 

following: 

16 Based on my review of a report of an interview conducted with an employee of Melrose, I 

have learned that, pursuant to the paiticipation agreement between Sterling and Melrose, Cohen's 

financial statements and other records in Sterling's possession were forwarded to Melrose so that 

Melrose could make a determination as to whether to approve of the Cohen--­

transaction. Based on my review of reports of interviews with Melrose employees, I also know 

that Cohen called employees at Melrose regarding the Cohen--tansaction. 
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a. Cohen and his wife have been customers of First Republic since approximately 

June 2011. Cohen controls several checking and loan accounts at First Republic, some in his own 

name and others in the names of corporate entities. According to First Republic's know-your­

customer records on Cohen, 17 his primary physical address is the address for Subject Premises-I. 

b. On or about October 26, 2016, in Manhattan, New York, Cohen opened a new 

checking account at First Republic in the name of Essential Consultants LLC (the "Essential 

Consultants Account")--:-Tohen was tlie only autho-rized-signatmyon-the account;~.According-to­

account opening documents, the primary address for Essential Consultants LLC was the address 

for Subject Premises-I. When Cohen opened the Essential Consultants Account, First Republic 

Employee- I conducted an in-person interview of Cohen. In response to a series of know-your­

customer questions about the purpose of the account-the answers to which First Republic 

Employee-I entered into a form18-Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he was opening 

Essential Consultants as a real estate consulting company to collect fees for investment consulting 

work, and all of his consulting clients would be domestic individuals based in the United States. 

Cohen also stated, in sum and substance, that his purpose in setting up the account was to keep the 

revenue from his consulting business-which he said was not his main source of income-separate 

from his personal finances. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen's 

statements about the intended purpose of the account and source of funds for the account were 

false. Specifically, as described below, the account was not intended to receive---and does not 

17 Certain financial institutions are required to conduct such procedures pursuant to the Bank 

Secrecy Act and its implementing regulations. See 31 U.S.C. § 5318; 31 C.F.R. § 1020.220. 

18 First Republic Employee- I first filled out the form on the day he interviewed Cohen, October 

26, 2016. On or about December 19, 2016, at the request of bank compliance personnel, First 

Republic Employee-I updated the form to add more detail about Cohen's statements. 
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appear to have received-money in connection with real estate consulting work; in addition, the 

account has received substantial payments from foreign sources. 

c. I know from my review of First Republic bank records that were scheduled by an 

FBI forensic accountant that after Cohen opened the Essential Consultants Account, Cohen 

received payments into that account from foreign businesses and entities that do not reflect the 

stated client profile for the residential and commercial real-estate consulting services. Specifically, 

------frcmimy review ohhe-Essential-eonsultants-Account-schedule-and-publiG-sources,Tknow-the----~--­

following: 

i. Beginning on or about January 31, 2017, Cohen began receiving monthly 

payments of $83,333 into the Essential Consultants Account from an entity called Columbus Nova 

LLC. According to public sources, Columbus Nova is an investment management firm controlled 

by Renova Group, an industrial holding company based in Zurich, Switzerland that is controlled 

by Russian national Viktor Vekselberg. From January 2017 to August 2017, the Essential 

Consultants Account received seven payments totaling $583,332.98 from Columbus Nova LLC. 

ii. Beginning on or about April 5, 2017, the Essential Consultants Account 

began receiving payments from Novartis Investments, SARL, which I believe to be the in-house 

financial subsidiary of the Swiss pha1maceutical company Novartis International AG ("Novartis"). 

Between April 2017 and Februaiy 2018, the Essential Consultants Account received eleven wire 

payments from a Swiss bank account held in the name ofNovartis, each in the amount of$99,980, 

for a total of $1,099,780. 

iii. Beginning in or about April 2017, the Essential Consultants Account started 

receiving wire payments from a bank account associated with the telecommunications company 

AT&T Inc. ("AT&T"). Specifically, on or about April 14, 2017, AT&T sent $100,000 to the 
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Essential Consultants Account and, from in or about June 2017 to in or about January 2018, the 

Essential Consultants Account received ten $50,000 payments from AT&T. In total, AT&T sent 

$600,000 to the Essential Consultants Account. 

iv. On or about May 10, 2017, June 9, 2017, July 10, 2017, and November 27, 

2017, the Essential Consultants Account received four deposits in the amount $150,000 (totaling 

$600,000) from a bank account in South Korea. The account holder from which the money was 

-- - • • sent 1sKorea AeI·ospace IndustriesLt<l~("KAI"): --KA:I-is--a-South Korea-based-company that- -­

produces and sells fixed-wing aircraft, helicopter aircraft, and satellites to the United States 

Department of Defense, among other customers. 

v. On or about May 22, 2017, the Essential Consultants Account received a 

$150,000 deposit from an account at Kazkommertsbank, a Kazakhstani bank. The listed account 

holder at Kazkommertsbank was a second Kazakhstani bank named BTA Bank, AO. A message 

accompanying the wire payment indicated that the payment was a "monthly consulting fee as per 

Inv BTA-101 DD May 10, 2017 consulting agreement WIN DD 08 05 2017 CNTR W/NDD 

08/05/2017." 

vi. In total, from on or about January 31, 2017 to on or about February 1, 2018, 

the Essential Consultants Account received approximately $3,033,112.98 in transfers and checks 

from the aforementioned entities. As of on or about January 10, 2018, the balance in the Essential 

Consultants Account was $1,369,474.23. Cohen's withdrawals from the Essential Consultants 

account reveal that it was used for largely personal purposes, including to pay, among other things, 

American Express bills and fees from "the Core Club," a private social club in New York. 

d. On or about April 4, 2017, Cohen opened another new checking account at First 

Republic, this one in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates, P.C. (the "MDC&A Account"). 
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Cohen was the only authorized signatory on the account. According to account opening 

documents, the primary address for MDC&A Account was the address for Subject Premises-I. 

Among other things, the MDC&A Account received ten wire transfers and one check from an 

account in the name of Squire Patton Boggs, a law firm. As noted above, Subject Premises-2 is 

located inside the New York office of Squire Patton Boggs. In total, from on or about April 5, 

2017, to on or about January 2, 2018, the MDC&A Account received $426,097.70 in deposits, and 

never disclosed any of the balance in the Essential Consultants or MDC&A accounts to Sterling 

during the negotiations with respect to the - transaction or the subsequent loan 

refinancing negotiations, including in his May 2017 Financial Statement and September 2017 

Financial Statement. 

19. Based on my review of emails that were seized pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants, and my review of reports of interviews with employees of AT&T and Novaitis, it 

appears that the aforementioned payments to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A 

Account were for political consulting work, including consulting for international clients on issues 

pending before the Trump administration. Specifically, from my review of emails from the Cohen 

Gmail Account, the Cohen MDCPC Account, and public sources, I have learned the following: 

a. On or about April 28, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an individual whom I believe 

is affiliated with KAI. In the email, Cohen attached a "Consulting Agreement" between KAI and 

Essential Consultants dated as of about May 1, 2017. The agreement indicates that Essential 

Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-2. The document indicates that Essential 

Consultants would render "consulting and advisory services, as requested" by KAI, and that KAI 

would pay Essential Consultants "a consulting fee of One Million Two Hundred Thousand 
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($1,200,000.00) US Dollars," disbursed through eight $150,000 installments between May 2017 

and December 2017. I have also reviewed invoices in amounts of $150,000 that Cohen emailed 

to an individual whom I believe is affiliated with KAI. At the top of the invoices the address listed 

for Essential Consultants is the address for Subject Premises-2. 

b. On or about May 8, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an individual whom I believe is 

affiliated with BTA Bank. The signature block on Cohen's email listed "Essential Consultants 

LLC'' and "MicliaerD:-Colien &-A:ssociates-;-Pe''-and--provided-the address foF--Subject-Fremises--_ --------~---~------

2. In the email, Cohen attached a document purporting to be a "Consulting Agreement" between 

BTABank and Essential Consultants dated as of about May 8, 2017. The agreement indicates that 

Essential Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-2. The document indicates that 

Essential Consultants would render "consulting and advisory services" to BTA Bank, and that 

BTA Bank would pay Essential Consultants "a consulting fee of One Million Eight Hundred 

Thousand ($1,800,000.00) US Dollars," disbursed through monthly payments of $150,000. On or 

about May 10, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an employee of BTA Bank, and attached to the email 

an invoice to BTA Bank in the name of Essential Consultants, with the address of Subject Premises-

2. The invoice contemplated a $150,000 payment to Essential Consultants for a "monthly 

consulting fee." 

c. On or about January 23, 2017, Cohen appears to have entered into a consulting 

agreement with AT&T, which contemplates that Essential Consultants "shall render consulting and 

advisory services to [AT&T]" and that AT&T would "advise [Essential Consultants] of those issues 

_ and matters with respect to which AT&T Services desires [Essential Consultants]' s assistance and 

advice." The agreement indicates that Essential Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-

1. The contract calls for AT&T "to pay the Consultant for his services ... a consulting fee of Fifty 
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Thousand ($50,000) Dollars ... per month." Based on my review of reports of interviews with 

AT&T employees, I have learned that AT&T retained Cohen to consult on political issues, 

including net neutrality, the merger between AT&T and Time Warner, and tax reform. 

d. On or about March 1, 2017, Cohen appears to have entered into a contract between 

Novartis and Essential Consultants, which provides that Essential Consultants will "provide 

consulting and advisory services to Novartis on matters that relate to the repeal and replacement of 

the AffordalileTare Acr-ili-tlie -us-and-any-other-issues-mutually--agreeable-to [Essential~~-- ________________ _ 

Consultants] and Novartis." The contract provides for a "consulting fee of One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand ($1,200,000) US dollars," to be paid to Essential Consultants in equal monthly 

installments over the course of a year. Based on my review of reports of interviews with Novartis 

employees, I have learned that Novartis retained Cohen to provide political consulting services and 

to gain access to relevant policymakers in the Trump Administration. 

e. In or about February 2017, Cohen began negotiating the terms of a "strategic 

alliance" with Squire Patton Boggs. On or about March 4, 2017, Squire Patton Boggs emailed 

Cohen a "strategic alliance agreement." Under the terms of the agreement, Cohen agreed to 

generate business for the law firm, and Squire Patton Boggs agreed to pay to Cohen "an annual 

strategic alliance fee of $500,000, payable in twelve (12) equal monthly installments." Squire 

Patton Boggs also agreed to provide Cohen with "dedicated and segregated office space in [Squire 

Patton Boggs's] New York and Washington D.C. offices, which office space shall be physically 

separate from [Squire Patton Boggs's] offices and have locked doors and its own locked file 

cabinets." On or about April 3, 2017, Squire Patton Boggs announced on its website that is had 

formed a "strategic alliance" with Michael D. Cohen & Associates and would "jointly represent 

clients." 
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20. Despite the significant amount of money that Cohen received into the Essential 

Consultants Account and the MDC&A Account, and the cash balance in both accounts, Cohen did 

not disclose that information to Sterling or Melrose. Specifically, based on my review of documents 

provided by Getzel (as noted above, Cohen's accountant at the time), my participation in an 

interview with Getzel, and my review of notes and 

have learned the following: 

a7--fa or-abmit"May-201-9;-Getzel-met-'-withccGohen-at-Subject---Fremises~2.--ALthe 

meeting, Cohen told Getzel, in sum and substance, that he had set up a law practice called Michael 

D. Cohen & Associates P.C., and a consulting company called Essential Consultants LLC. Cohen 

told Getzel, in sum and substance, that he expected to earn $75,000 per month in connection with 

his law practice, and that he expected gross revenues for the consulting business to be between five 

and six million dollars annually. 

b. In or about October 2017, if not earlier, Getzel was preparing a personal fmancial 

statement for Cohen. On or about October 6, 2017, Getzel sent an email to Cohen in which Getzel 

wrote that "(a]ttached is a draft of the new PFS as of September 30, 2017" and attached a draft of 

the September 2017 Financial Statement. The draft statement reflected that as of September 30, 

2017, Cohen had only $1,250,000 in cash, total assets of approximately $33,430,000 (comprised of 

taxi medallion interests, real estate interests, and ms personal residence and property), and liabilities 

of approximately $45,630,000, leaving him purportedly over $12 million in debt. In the same email, 

Getzel questioned Cohen, in sum and substance, about the fact that the financial statement did not 

list any value associated with either the Essential Consultants Account or the MDC&A Account: 

"(w]e did not add any value for you[r] two operating entities - Michael D. Cohen & Associates 
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POC [sic] and Essential Consultants LLC. Please advise whether or not these should be disclosed 

and what value." 

c. On or about October 6, 2017, Cohen called Getzel by telephone-which is reflected 

on toll records for Cohen's cellphone-and told Getzel, in sum and substance, not to include 

Essential Consultants or MDC&A in the September 2017 Financial Statement because they had no 

value. On or about October 6, 2017, following the call with Getzel, Cohen, using the Cohen 

Account, responciedloGetzel'semailwitlrthe-answer"[l]ooks·good-to-me;.~Gohen-never-directed..,__ __ _ 

Getzel to make any changes to his cash position as listed in the September 2017 Financial 

Statement. In a letter dated October 6, 2017, addressed to Getzel, Cohen stated, "I have reviewed 

the attached statement of financial condition and find it to be correct and consistent with the 

representations that I made to your firm. The attached is an accurate reflection of my assets, 

liabilities and net worth (deficit) as of September 30, 2017." Attached to that letter was the 

September 2017 Financial Statement, which, as noted above, was then transmitted to Sterling in 

connection with the proposed taxi medallion transaction between Sterling, Cohen, and 1-

21. Based on my review of a report of an interview with Sterling Employee-1, I have 

learned that Cohen did not disclose his income stream from Essential Consultants to Sterling 

Employee-1 or, to his knowledge, anyone else at Sterling. According to Sterling Employee-1, 

knowledge of such an income stream would have affected Sterling's demands during the 

negotiations, particularly with respect to the amount of a principal pay down of Cohen's debt. 

Cohen Understated His Available Cash 

22. In addition to withholding the existence of his Essential Consultants income from 

Sterling and Melrose, it appears that Cohen also substantially understated his available ca.sh and 

cash equivalents in his fmancial disclosures. Specifically, I know from my review of the September 
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2017 Financial Statement that Cohen provided to Sterling that Cohen represented that he had 

$1,250,000 in cash as of September 30, 2017. I also know that on or about January 30, 2018, in a 

telephone call with Sterling Employee-3, and on February 1, 2018, in an email to Sterling 

Employee-3, Cohen represented that he did not have more than $1,250,000 in cash. But, from my 

review of a summary of bank records that were scheduled by forensic accountants, I have learned 

that Cohen had approximately $5,000,000 in cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2017. 

~---Additionally, as -of Feffiiiary r; 2018~ -conen-had~approximately- $6,000,000-in-cash-and- ..,...,c,,. ________ _ 

equivalents. Specifically, from my review of the account schedule and bank records, I have learned 

the following: 

a. Cohen has three checking and/or savings accounts at Capital One Bank, one of 

which is in his wife's name. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $1,105,680.35 in his savings 

account, and $1,2_62,982.29 in total in the three accounts at Capital One Bank. As of February 1, 

2018, Cohen had a total of $1,389,245.78 in these accounts. 

b. Cohen has three accounts at Morgan Stanley in his name. As of September 30, 

2017, the combined total in cash and cash equivalents in those three accounts was $1,270,600.41. 

As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $1,284.996.13 in these accounts. 

c. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $260,689.18 in an account at Signature Bank. 

As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $261,517.55 in this account. 

d. In addition to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A Account at First 

Republic, Cohen also had two joint checking accounts with Laura Cohen at First Republic. In total, 

as of September 30, 2017, Cohen had at least $1,876,209.27 in total in his four accounts at First 

Republic. As ofFebruary 1, 2018, Cohen had $3,332,992.95 in these accounts. 
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e. Cohen has an account at Bethpage Credit Union with $25,931.39 in it as of 

September 30, 2017. 

f. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $17,542.54 in accounts at Sterling. 

g. Cohen has two accounts at TD Bank-one in his name and one held jointly with his 

wife. Cohen also has a safety deposit box at TD Bank-Subject Premises-3. The safety deposit 

box was opened on December 13, 2017 in the names ofMichael and Laura Cohen. 

------~--h:'-'In-total:;-as-ofSeptember--30,-201-7,Gohen had-at-least-$4,7-B,9:3-Sa08-in-hisaGGOunts------­

at Capital One Bank, City National Ban1c, Signature Bank, Sterling Bank, Bethpage Credit Union, 

First Republic, and Morgan Stanley. As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $6,268,732.59 in his 

accounts at Capital One Bank, City National Ban1c, Signature Bank, First Republic, and Morgan 

Stanley.19 

23. Accordingly, based on the foregoing, it appears that Cohen's written and oral 

representations to Sterling and Melrose that he did not have more than $1,250,000 were false, and 

that Cohen withheld information regarding approximately $5 million in funds from Sterling and 

Melrose in order to secure favorable terms in his renegotiation of his medallion loan. Based on 

my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, and my review of reports of interviews 

with Sterling Employee-1 and two Melrose employees, it is my understanding that that Sterling 

and Melrose would view Cohen's understating of his assets as material to its decision whether to 

renegotiate Cohen's medallion loans and on what terms, or to its decision whether approve of the 

transfer of those loans to 

19 Based on my review of the account schedules described above, I know that, as of the date of this 

affidavit, the account balances for TD Bank have not yet been included in the schedule for either 

date and the account balances for Sterling National Ban1c and Bethpage Credit Union have not yet 

been included in the schedule for February 1, 2018. Thus, to the extent that these accounts have 

positive balances, Cohen's total balances in fact were even higher on these dates. 
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Cohen Has Unreported Interest Income 

24. It appears that Cohen also hid from Sterling interest income that he was receiving in 

connection with a six million dollar loan he made to another individual. Specifically, I know from 

my review of the May 2017 Financial Statement and September 2017 Financial Statement that 

Cohen provided to Sterling that Cohen did not disclose that he had made a note receivable in the 

amount of approximately $6 million, or that he was earning approximately $60,000 per month in 

mterest-irrcome-in-connection-with-that-loan-;--·But,from-my-rnviewof.a-sunnnai:y-'--ofbankrecords __ . ___ _ 

that were reviewed by another law enforcement agent, my review of property records and 

documents obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, and my participation in an interview 

with Getzel, I have learned the following: 

a. Based on my review of property records, I have learned that on or about March 12, 

2012, Cohen agreed to lend tpproximately 

$2,000,000.20 It appears that the promissory note was unsecured by any real property. On or about 

April 28, 2014, Cohen and amended the promissory note, and restructured the loan to 

increase the principal amount to approximately $5,000,000. Under the terms of the amended 

promissory note, the loan was secured by- apartment in Sunny Isles Beach, Florida. On 

or about April 8, 2015, Cohen and-restated the promissory note to increase the principal 

amount to $6,000,000.21 

b. Based on my review of a copy of the restated note, which was obtained pursuant to 

the Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that under the terms of the amended and restated 

20 I learned from Getzel that 

21 The note states that the loan is to husband and wife, 

jointly and severally. For ease ofreferenc~, I refer ~imply to "-1erein. 
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promissory note, Cohen's loan to-s an interest-only loan, and that the principal balance 

of the loan bears interest at an annual rate of 12.25 percent. I also know that the amended and 

restated promissory note includes a schedule of payments that require - to pay Cohen 

approximately $61,250 per month beginning in April 2015 and ending in April 2019. The note also 

requires tha1-·epay the principal balance of $6,000,000 on April 28, 2019. 

c. Based on my review of bank records, I have learned that, consistent with the terms 

-----ofthe--amended-"--and-restated-promissory--note,--has--made-monthly---payments--'---of-----­

approximately $61,250 since April 2015. Specifically, based on my review ofrecords maintained 

by Capital One Bank, I have learned that from April 2015 to October 2015, Cohen received checks 

:from an entity called . totaling $61,250 per month, which he 

deposited into his personal bank account at Capital One Bank.22 It appears from my review of bank 

records and public sources that :-is the owner of 1 

From my review of records maintained by Capital One Bank, I have also learned that since October 

2015, Cohen has received checks from an entity called 1. , totaling 

$61,250 per month, which he deposited into his personal bank account at Capital One Bank. It 

appears from my review of bank records and public sources that -s also the owner of 1.■ 

In total, it appears that Cohen receives approximately $735,000 per year 

in interest payments from -

d. Based on my review of Cohen's May 2017 and September 2017 Financial 

Statements, my review of his 2015 and 2016 tax returns obtained via subpoena and from the Cohen 

Email Warrants, and my participation in an interview with Getzel, I have learned that Cohen did 

22 In April 2015, Cohen received a pro-rated payment. For all months thereafter, the total payment 
equaled $61,250, but-rften made the payment in multiple checks. 
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not disclose this interest income he was receiving from-to Sterling or Melrose, or list it 

on his tax returns. I have also learned that while this interest income is taxable, Cohen did not tell 

Getzel-his accountant-about the income, and Getzel only learned about the income because he 

began doing -taxes in 2017.23 

25. Accordingly, based on the foregoing, it appears that Cohen's representations to 

Sterling and Melrose that he did not have more than $1,250,000 were false, and that Cohen 

withheld infonnatioiirelafiiig -to-llie -mteresCincome-Ire"is-receiving-from---in-order-to-----------=--­

secure favorable terms in his renegotiation of his medallion loan. 

Cohen Had a Side A eement With 

26. As set forth in detail below, during the course of Cohen's negotiations to sell his 

interest in taxi medallions -and the associated debt to Cohen not only 

misrepresented his financial position to Sterling, but also failed to disclose a side agreement he 

had negotiated with-: it appears that __ greed to pay an above-market price 

for Cohen's taxi cab medallions, and in exchange, Cohen agreed to pay-Lpproximately 

$3 .8 million in cash. Specifically, from my review of documents produced pursuant to a subpoena 

by Sterling, and my participation in interviews with Sterling Employee-I, Sterling Employee-2, 

and Sterling Employee-3, I have learned, among other things, the following: 

a. On or about September 5, 2017, an executed te1m sheet was circulated by Sterling 

Employee-I to Cohen and -The term sheet listed Cohen's address as the address for 

Subject Premises-I. According to the te1m sheet, would borrow $20,000,000 

from Sterling and Melrose, to be secured by the medallions that -was to acquire from 

23 Accordingly, this interest income-which should have been reported as such on Cohen's tax 

returns-is included herein in calculations of Cohen's true cash position. 
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Cohen. At a price of $20 million for thirty-two taxi medallions, the proposed transaction valued 

each medallion as worth $625,000. The term sheet also contemplated a $1,265,913 pay-down of 

the principal balance of the loan. The term sheet made no mention of a $3 .8 million payment from 

Cohen to - or any other form of payment or financial transaction between the parties. 

b. Additionally, an internal Sterling credit memorandum, dated October 4, 2017, 

describing the terms of the Cohen--transaction and the new loan to· did 

memorandum also noted that the "loan amount of $20MM indicates a $625M purchase price per 

medallion" but "it is recognized that this is not in line with cunent market values." Indeed, 

according to an internal Sterling memorandum dated February 5, 2018, in the month of January 

2018, taxi medallions sold for amounts ranging from $120,000 to $372,000. According to Sterling 

Employee-I and Sterling Employee-2, they were never told that :1,greed to a purchase 

price of $625,000 in exchange for a lump sum payment from Cohen, or that Cohen would make 

any payment to'-

c. On or about January 30, 2018, Sterling Employee-3 asked Cohen whether Cohen 

had a side agreement with -:o pay a sum of money for entering into the 

medallion transaction. Sterling Employee-3 asked Cohen about such an arrangement because, 

according to Sterling Employee-3, the price that - was paying for each medallion 

appeared to be well above the market price. Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he had no 

side agreement-and never had a side agreement-with-

27. While Cohen and did not disclose any payment from Cohen to 

-in communications with Sterling, it appears that such a payment was contemplated. 

fudeed, based on my review of records maintained by Getzel, and my participation in an interview 
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with Getzel, I have learned the following, in substance and in part, regarding the proposed side 

payment from Cohen to-

a. On or about September 19, 2017, Getzel prepared a memorandum for Cohen 

entitled, "Sale of NYC Medallion Entities and Debt Assumption" (the "Getzel Memorandum"). 

The Getzel Memorandum summarized the proposed transaction between Cohen and -

in part, as follows: "Michael and Laura Cohen will transfer ownership of their 13 NYC medallion 

entities to a Buyerwho will assume tneir-l5a:nk-irrdebtedness;-upon the-[Gohens?}pa:y:ing-down_the 

debt portfolio of the 13 entities by $500,000 and a cash payment to the Buyer of $3,800,000."24 

b. According to Getzel, Cohen told him the parameters of the deal, including the 

payment of $3,800,000 to but Getzel did not know where Cohen was going to obtain 

$3,800,000 to pay '-· As noted above, Cohen had more than $5,000,000 in cash and 

cash equivalents as of September 2017, but had only disclosed in his September 2017 Financial 

Statement that he had $1.25 million in cash. 

28. Based on my review of records maintained by Sterling (as well as Melrose, the bank 

with the participating interest in the loans) and reports of interviews of representatives of Sterling 

(and Melrose), I have seen no evidence that Sterling, Melrose, or any other financial institution 

involved in the potential deal with Cohen and-was aware of the planned $3.8 million 

side payment from Cohen tc 

The Illegal Campaign Contribution Scheme 

29. The USAO and FBI are also investigating a criminal violation of campaign finance 

laws by Michael Cohen. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen made 

24 The reference to thirteen medallions appears to be an error by Getzel. Cohen and his wife 

together owned sixteen corporations, which in tum owned 32 taxi medallions. 
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an excessive in-kind contribution to the presidential election campaign of then-candidate Donald 

Trump in the form of a $130,000 payment to Stephanie Clifford, an individual who was rumored 

to have had an extramarital affair with Trump, in exchange for her agreement not to disclose that 

alleged affair. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that this payment was intended 

to keep Clifford from making public statements about the rumored affair on the eve of the 2016 

presidential election, and thus constitutes a campaign contribution in excess of the applicable limit. 

30. From my reviewofpuolicsources~lhave learned-the-following:---- . ----. ~~-

a. In or around October 2011, there were rumors published on the gossip websites 

TheDirty.com that Trump had had an extramarital affair with Clifford, an adult film actress whose 

screen name is Stormy Daniels, in or around July 2006. In or about October 2011, Life & Style 

Magazine, a tabloid sold in supermarkets, also published an article, based on the report in 

TheDirty.com, alleging an affair had occutTed between Trump and Clifford. Both Trump and 

Clifford, through their representatives, issued denials in response to the articles. 

b. Specifically, on or about October 11, 2011, Keith Davidson, who identified himself 

as Clifford's attorney, sent a cease and desist letter to TheDirty.com, demanding that the article 

regarding Trump and Clifford be removed from the website. Additionally, on or about October 

12, 2011, Cohen, who was then Executive Vice-President and Special Counsel to the Trump 

Organization, stated to E! News that "[t]he totally untrue and ridiculous story ... emanated from 

a sleazy and disgusting website .... The Tmmp Organization and Donald J. Trump will be bringing 

a lawsuit ... [ and] Mr. Trump and the Trump Organization would like to thank and commend 

Stormy Daniels and her attorneys for their honesty and swift actions." 

31. On or about June 16, 2015, Trump formally launched his 2016 presidential 

campaign. On or about May 4, 2016, Trump became the presumptive Republican Party nominee 
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for president, and on July 19, 2016, Trump officially became the nominee. Based on my review 

of public sources, I have learned that while it does not appear that Cohen had an official title as 

part of the Trump campaign, on multiple occasions Cohen made public statements on behalf of 

Trump or his campaign. For instance, on or about August 18, 2016, Cohen appeared on CNN to 

defend Trump's polling numbers. 

32. On or about October 7, 2016, The Washington Post published online a video and 

accompanying audio iii which Trump referre-d to women ilrwhat-the-article-described-as '--'vulgar------­

terms" in a 2005 conversation with Billy Bush, who was then the host of Access Hollywood. The 

following day, on October 8, 2016, Trump appeared in a video in which he stated, among other 

things, "I've said and done things I regret and words released today on this more than a decade old 

video are one of them. Anyone who knows me lmows these words don't reflect who I am. I said 

it. I was wrong and I apologize." Based on my review of public sources, I also know that 

representatives of the Trump Campaign stated, in sum and substance, that the Access Hollywood 

comment was an old and isolated incident. 

33. Based on my review of public sources, including an article published in Slate 

magazine by a reporter who interviewed Clifford, I have learned that around this same time, in or 

about October 2016, Clifford was in discussions with ABC's Good Morning America show and 

Slate magazine, among other media sources, to provide these media outlets with her statement 

about her alleged relationship with Trump. According to the article in Slate, which the author 

based on conversations with Clifford over the telephone and by text message, Clifford wanted to 

be paid for her story or be paid by Trump not to disclose her accusation. As Cohen summarized 

in a 2018 email obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants: "In October 2016, I was contacted 
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by counsel for Ms. Clifford stating that news outlets, including ABC News, were pursuing the 2011 

story of an alleged affair between Mr. Trump and Ms. Clifford." 

34. From my review of telephone toll records25 and information produced pursuant to 

the iCloud Warrant and Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that in the days following the Access 

Hollywood video, Cohen exchanged a series of calls, text messages, and emails with Keith 

Davidson, who was then Clifford's attorney, David Pecker and Dylan Howard of American Media, 

me-: ("AMl''};thepublisher ohht;Nllfivnul-Enquirer; 26Trump;--and-Hope-Hiclcs,-who-was-then­

press secretary for Trump's presidential campaign. Based on the timing of these calls, and the 

content of the text messages and emails, I believe that at least some of these communications 

concerned the need to prevent Clifford from going public, particularly in the wake of the Access 

Hollywood story. In particular, I have learned the following: 

a. On October 8, 2016, at approximately 7:20 p.m., Cohen received a call from Hicks. 

Sixteen seconds into the call, Trump joined the call, and the call continued for over four minutes.27 

Based on the toll records that the USAO has obtained to date, I believe that this was the first call 

25 My attribution' of certain telephone numbers to certain individuals as described in this 

affidavit is based on my review of the vCard (virtual contact file) and text messages obtained from 

Cohen's telephone pursuant to the iCloud Warrant. 

26 Pecker is President of AMI and, according to his own statements in public reports, a personal 

friend of Trump. Howard is the chief content officer of AMI, who according to public records 

reports directly to Pecker. 

27 I believe that Trump joined the call between Cohen and Hicks based on my review of toll 

records. Specifically, I know that a call was initiated between Cohen's telephone number and 

Trump's telephone number at the same time the records indicate that Cohen was talking to Hicks. 

After the Cohen-Trump call was initiated, it lasted the same period of time as the Cohen-Hicks 

call. Additionally, the toll records indicate a "-1" and then Trump's telephone number, which, 

based on my training and experience, means that the call was either transferred to Trump, or that 

Trump was added to the call as a conference or three-way call participant. In addition, based on 

my conversations with an FBI agent who has interviewed Hicks, I have learned that Hicks stated, 

in substance, that to the best of her recollection, she did not learn about the allegations made by 

Clifford until early November 2016. Hicks was not specifically asked about this three-way call. 
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Cohen had received or made to Hicks in at least multiple weeks, and that Cohen and Trump spoke 

about once a month prior to this date - specifically, prior to this call on October 8, 2016, Cohen 

and Trump had spoken once in May, once in June, once in July, zero times in August, and twice 

in September. 

b. Approximately ten minutes after the call ended, Hicks and Cohen spoke again for 

about two minutes. 

-c-:----ArT.J9 p.m-=-;immediately-afterthe-secondcall-with-Hicks-ended,-Cohen.calle.d~---­

David Pecker ( as noted above, the President of American Media Inc., or AMI) and they connected 

for thirty seconds. Approximately four minutes later, Cohen called Pecker again and they spoke 

for more than a minute. Three minutes after ending his call with Pecker, Cohen received a call 

from Dylan Howard ( as noted above, the Chief Content Officer of AMI), and they spoke for 

approximately a minute. According to toll records, it does not appear that Cohen and Howard 

spoke regulmly prior to October 8, 2016, as it had been over a month since they had called each 

other. 

d. At 7:56 p.m., approximately eight minutes after his call with Howard ended, Cohen 

called Hicks and they connected for two minutes. At approximately the same time this call ended, 

Cohen received a call from Pecker, and they spoke for about two minutes. At 8:03 p.m., about 

three minutes after ending his call with Pecker, Cohen called Trump, and they spoke for nearly 

eight minutes. 

e. At 8:39 p.m. and 8:57 p.m., Cohen received calls from Howard and spoke to him 

for about four and six minutes, respectively. At 9:13 p.m., about ten minutes after Cohen and 

Howard hung up from the second of these calls, Howard sent Cohen a text message that said: 

"Keith will do it. Let's reconvene tomorrow." Based on my involvement in this investigation, I 
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believe that when Howard wrote "Keith," he was referring to Keith Davidson, the attorney for 

Stephanie Clifford. At 3 :31 a.m., now on October 9, 2016, Cohen sent Howard a text message in 

response that said: "Thank you." Eight minutes later, Cohen sent Howard a text message that said: 

"Resolution Consultants LLC. is the name of the entity I formed a week ago. Whenever you wake, 

please call my cell." 

f. The following day, on October 10, 2016, at 10:58 a.m., Howard sent a text message 

to Colwn andDavid.son, wliich-statea:"KeithiMichael:-connecting--you--both in-regards-to_ that __ _ 

business opportunity. Spoke to the client this AM and they're confirmed to proceed with the 

opportunity. Thanks. Dylan. Over to you two." At 12:25 p.m., Davidson sent Cohen a text message 

that stated: "Michael-if we are ever going to close this deal- In my opinion, it needs to be today. 

Keith." Davidson and Cohen then spoke by phone for about three minutes. Based on my 

participation in this investigation, I believe that when Howard wrote that the "client" was 

"confirmed to proceed with the opportunity," he was referring to Clifford's agreement in plinciple 

to accept money from Cohen in exchange for her agreement not to discuss any prior affair with 

then-candidate Trump.28 

g. Based on my review ofrecords obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

know that on or about October 10, 2016, Clifford and Davidson appear to have signed a "side letter 

agreement" that stated it was an exhibit to a "confidential settlement agreement and mutual 

release" between "Peggy Peterson" and "David Dennison." The purpose of the document, 

28 As set forth below, AMI was also involved in a payment to model Karen McDougal. 

However, because these communications were in close temporal proximity to the events involving 

the negotiation of a payment to Clifford, the execution of the agreement with Clifford, and the 

payment of money to Clifford, I believe that these communications were related to Clifford. 

Additionally, based on my review of public statements by McDougal, I have learned that she 

negotiated an agreement with AMI several months prior to these communications between Cohen 

and Pecker, Howard, and Davidson; 
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according to the agreement, was to defme the "true name and identity" of persons named by 

pseudonym in "confidential settlement agreement and mutual release." The side letter agreement 

specifies the identity of "Peggy Peterson" to be Clifford, but the space for "Dennison's" identity 

is blank. The agreement also includes a signature page for ''Peterson," "Dennison," and their 

attorneys. The signature page is signed by ''Peterson" and his attorney, Davidson, but the 

document is unsigned by "Dennison" and his attorney. Based on my involvement in this 

investigation:Tbelievetliat Daviason sent·Cohen-this-partially-signed~.:sideJetter-agreemenC_in~--~ 

order to facilitate the closing of a deal between Davidson's client and Cohen or his client on 

October 10, 2016. 

35. It appears that on October 13, 2016, and the days that followed, Cohen took steps 

to complete a transaction with Davidson, including attempting to open an account from which 

Cohen could transfer funds to Davidson. Specifically, from my review of toll records, information 

obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant and Cohen Email Warrants, records maintained by First 

Republic, as well as my participation in interviews with First Republic employees, I have learned 

the following: 

a. On the·moming of October 13, 2016, at 8:54 a.m., Cohen sent Pecker a text message 

that stated: "I need to talk to you." At 9:06 a.m., Pecker sent a text message to Cohen that stated, 

"I called please call me back." The tolls between Cohen and Pecker do not show a telephone call 

between 8:54 a.m. and 9:06 a.m. However, based on my review of text messages, I have learned 

that Cohen and Pecker communicate with each other over Signal, which is an encrypted 

communications cellphone application that allows users to send encrypted text messages and make 

encrypted calls. 
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b. At 9:23 a.m., Cohen sent an email that stated "call me" to First Republic Employee-

2. The email attached documents from the Secretary of State of Delaware indicating that Cohen 

had formed a limited liability company called "Resolution Consultants LLC" on September 30, 

2016. As noted above, "Resolution Consultants" is the name of the entity that Cohen had told 

Howard he had formed recently after Howard said Davidson would "do it." At 10:44 a.m., Cohen 

called First Republic Employee-2 and told him, in sum and substance, that he needed an account 

in the name of"Resoluffon Consultants" opened·immedtately~and·that-hedid-not-want-an-address--~- .. --­

on the checks written out of the account. Later that day, another employee at First Republic 

emailed Cohen account opening paperwork to complete. Cohen returned the account opening 

documents partially completed, but failed to provide a copy of his driver's license or passport, and 

did not respond to the employee's question of how he wanted to fund the account. As a result, the 

account was never opened. 

c. On October 17, 2016, Cohen incorporated Essential Consultants LLC in Delaware. 

That same day, he filed paperwork to dissolve Resolution Consultants LLC. 

36. Despite these steps taken by Cohen, it appears that the negotiation between Cohen 

and Davidson was not progressing sufficiently fast enough for Davidson or his client, Clifford, 

and they threatened to go public with Clifford's allegations just days before the presidential 

election. Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the 

iCloud Warrant, and public sources, I lmow the following: 

a. According to an aiticle in The Washington Post, which quoted emails sent from 

Cohen's email account hosted by the Trump Organization, on October 17, 2016, Davidson emailed 

Cohen and threatened to cancel the aforementioned "settlement agreement" by the end of the day 
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if Cohen did not complete the transaction.29 According to the article, Davidson sent Cohen a 

second email later in the day that stated in part, "Please be advised that my client deems her 

settlement agreement canceled and void." At 4:00 p.m. that day, Cohen called Davidson and they 

spoke for over five minutes. 

b. Cohen's 4:00 p.m. call with Davidson and/or Davidson's threats to cancel the 

"settlement agreement" appear to have touched off a flurry of communications about the settlement 

agreement and whether Ciiffora-w01.ilclgo puoliC:-Specifically: --~--

i. At 4:43 p.m., Howard sent Cohen a text message that stated: "I'm told 

they're going with DailyMail. Are you aware?" One minute later, Cohen responded: "Call me." 

Based on my involvement in this investigation, I understand Howard's text to mean that he heard 

that Clifford was going to take her story of an extramarital affair with Trump to the Daily Mail, a 

tabloid newspaper. 

ii. At 4:45 p.m., Howard called Cohen and they spoke for over two minutes. 

Moments later, Davidson and Cohen spoke for about two minutes. 

iii. At 5:03 p.m., Cohen attempted to call Trump, but the call only lasted eight 

seconds. This was Cohen's first call after he spoke with Davidson. 

iv. At 5:25 p.m., Cohen texted Howard, stating: "Well???" 

v. At 6:44 p.m., Howard responded to Cohen's text, stating: "Not taking my 

calls." Cohen responded one minute later: ''You're lddding. Who are you trying to reach?" 

Howard responded one minute later: "The 'agent."' Based on my involvement in this 

29 Due to the partially covert nature of the investigation to this date, the USAO has not requested 

documents from the Trump Organization or Davidson, and thus does not possess the email 

referenced in this article. 
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investigation, I understand Howard's text messages to mean that he attempted to contact Davidson 

about the matter involving Clifford, but that Davidson was not taking Howard's calls. 

vi. At 6:49 p.m., Cohen called Howard and they spoke for nearly four minutes. 

c. The following day, on October 18, 2016, TheSmokingGun.com, a website that 

publishes legal documents and mugshots, published an article called: "Donald Trump and the Porn 

Superstar," which alleged that Trump had an extramarital affair with Clifford. However, the 

article noted that Clifford had declined to comment. 

37. On or about October 25, 2016, the communications between Cohen, Davidson, 

Howard and Pecker picked up again, apparently concerning a transaction involving Clifford. 

Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants and iCloud W mrnnt, as well as my review of public sources, I have learned the following: 

a. On October 25, 2016, at 6:09 p.m., Howard sent Cohen a text message stating: 

"Keith calling you urgently. We have to coordinate something on the matter he's calling you about 

or its [sic] could look awfully bad for everyone." One minute later, Davidson sent Cohen a text 

message stating "Call me." Cohen and Davidson called each other several times over the next half 

hour but appear not to have connected. At 6:42 p.m., Cohen and Davidson spoke for about eight 

minutes. At 7: 11 p.m., they spoke for another two minutes. 

b. The next morning, on or about October 26, 2016, at 8:26 a.m., Cohen called Trump 

and spoke to him for approximately three minutes. At 8:34 a.m., Cohen called Trump again and 

connected for a minute and a half 

c. At approximately 9:04 a.m.-less than thirty minutes after speaking with Trump-­

Cohen sent two emails to the person who had incorporated Resolution Consultants and Essential 

Consultants for him, and stated "can you send me asap the filing receipt" and then, in the second 
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email, "for Essential Consultants LLC." That person responded with the filing receipt two minutes 

later at 9:06 a.m. and with the certification of formation 23 minutes later, at 9:27 a.m. 

d. Shortly after that, Cohen contacted First Republic Employee-2 and told him, in sum 

and substance, that he decided not to open an account in the name of "Resolution Consulting" and 

instead would be opening areal estate consulting company in the name of"Essential Consultants." 

Cohen told First Republic Employee-2 that he was at Trump Tower, and wanted to go to a First 

Republic branch across the street to open the account, so FirsfRepTiolic Employee-2called-First----­

Republic Employee-1, a preferred banker at that branch, assist Cohen. At 11:00 a.m., First 

Republic Employee-1 called Cohen. I know from my participation in an interview with First 

Republic Employee-1, that around the time of the call he went to Cohen's office in Trump Tower-

on the same floor as the Trump Organization-and went through account opening questions, 

including know your customer questions, with Cohen. In response to a series of know-your-

customer questions about the purpose of the account-the answers to which First Republic 

Employee-1 entered into a form-Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he was opening 

Essential Consultants as a real estate consulting company to collect fees for investment consulting 

work, and all of his consulting clients would be domestic individuals based in the United States. 

Based on my review of records obtained from First Republic, it appears that this account (the 

"Essential Consultants Account'') was created at a time between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 

e. At 1:47 p.m., Cohen called Davidson and they spoke for approximately two 

minutes. At approximately 1 :49 p.m., Davidson emailed Cohen wiring instructions for an attorney 

client trust account at City National Bank. 

f. After the Essential Consultants Account was opened on October 26, 2016, Cohen 

transfe1Ted $131,000 from a home equity line of credit that Cohen had at First Republic to the 
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Essential Consultants Account. Following the transfer, at approximately 4:15 p.m. on October 26, 

2016, First Republic Employee-2's assistant emailed Cohen at his Trump Organization email 

address to tell him that the funds had been deposited into the Essential Consultants Account. 

Cohen forwarded that email to the Cohen Gmail Account and then forwarded it to Davidson .. 

g. At 6:37 p.m., Cohen asked Pecker by text message, "Can we speak? Important." 

Cohen called Pecker at 6:49 p.m. and connected for thirty seconds. At 6:57 p.m., Cohen sent 

-------·-- ---
Howard a text message, ~tating: "Please c-all me.-Iinportarit."-Colieri ·calle"d-Howard-at-1 :00 p:m.--------· ----- 1; 

and connected for about thirty seconds. At 7:06 p.m., Cohen called Pecker again and they spoke 

for nearly thirteen minutes. At 7:24 p.m., Howard sent a text message to Cohen that: "He said 

he'd call me back in 20 minutes. I told him what you are asking for his [sic] reasonable. I'll get 

it sorted." Approximately an hour later, at 8:23 p.m., Howard told Cohen by text message to 

"check your Gmail for email from my private account." In an email sent at 8:23 p.m. by Howard 

to Cohen and Davidson, with the subject line "Confirmation," Howard stated, "Thank you both 

for chatting with me earlier. Confirming agreement on: - Executed agreement, hand-signed by 

Keith's client and returned via overnight or same-day FedEx to Michael, - Change of agreement 

to reflect the correct LLC, - Transfer of funds on Thursday AM to be held in escrow until receipt 

of agreement" After receiving that email, at approximately 8:27 p.m., Cohen asked Howard by 

text message, "Can you and David [Pecker] give me a call." Howard promptly responded: "David 

is not around I think. I'll call." At 8:28 p.m., Howard called Cohen and they spoke for three 

minutes. 

38. On October 27, 2016, Cohen made a payment to Davidson of $130,000-with the 

funds intended for Clifford-for the purpose of securing her ongoing silence with respect to the 

allegations that she had an extramarital affair with Trump. Specifically, based on my review of 

49 

2017;08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 50 of 269

toll records, bank records, and information obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant and Cohen 

Email Warrants, I have learned the following: 

a. At 9:4 7 a.m., Cohen sent Davidson an email, stating: "Keith, kindly confirm that 

the wire received today, October 27, 2016 shall be held by you in your attorney's trust account 

until such time as directed for release by me, in writing. Additionally, please ensure that all 

paperwork contains the correct name of Essential Consultants LLC. I thank you in advance for 

your assistance and look forward to hea11ng frnin you later:'' __ _ 

b. At approximately 10:01 a.m., according to records provided by First Republic 

Bank, Cohen completed paperwork to wire $130,000 from the Essential Consultants Account­

which had been funded a day prior from Cohen's home equity line of credit-to the attorney client 

trust account at City National Bank that Davidson had specified in the wiring instructions he sent 

to Cohen. The wire transfer was made shortly thereafter. 

c. At 10:02 a.m., Davidson responded to Cohen's email from 9:47 a.m., stating: "I 

confirm that I will work in good faith & that no funds shall be disbursed unless & until the plaintiff 

personally signs all necessary settlement paperwork, (the form of which will match the prior 

agreement). The settlement docs will name the cmTect corporation, (Essential Consultants LLC). 

Plaintiffs signature will be notarized and returned to you via FedEx. Only after you receive FedEx 

will I disburse. Fair?" 

d. At 10:50 a.m., First Republic Employee-I sent Cohen an email confirming that the 

payment had been sent and providing him with the wire number. 

39. On October 28, 2016, and the days that followed, Cohen finalized the transaction 

with Davidson. Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant 

to the iCloud Warrant, public sources, and bank records, I know the following: 
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a. On October 28, 2016, at 11:48 a.m., Cohen spoke to Trump for approximately five 

minutes. Beginning at 1:21 p.m., Cohen attempted a series of phone calls to Davidson, Pecker, 

and Howard throughout the day, although it appears he may only have connected with Howard. 

b. Later that day, at approximately 7:01 p.m., Davidson stated to Cohen by text 

message that "all is AOK. I should have signed, notarized docs on Monday. You should have 

them on Tuesday." Cohen thanked him and said "I hope we are good." Davidson responded, "I 

assure you. We are very good." Howard aisotextedCoheri-at 7:CT8p-:-m.~"KeitnfDavMsonJ-says--------­

we are good." Cohen then responded "OK" to Howard and "Excellent" to Davidson. At 

approximately 10:30 p.m., Cohen spoke to Hicks for three minutes. 

c. On October 31, 2016, Cohen called Howard at 8:22 p.m. and they spoke for over 

three minutes. At 8:32 p.m., Cohen received text messages from both Howard and Davidson. 

Howard said: "You'll have paperwork tomorrow says KD." Davidson said: "We are AOK. You 

will be receiving a package tomorrow." Cohen responded "Thank you" to Howard and "Thanks 

Keith. Will call you then" to Davidson. From my involvement in this investigation, I believe 

Davidson was referring to a signed nondisclosure agreement when he told Cohen that he would 

receive a package. 

d. Based on my review of court filings that became public in 2018, I have learned that 

on or about October 28, 2016, "EC, LLC and/or David Dennison" entered into a "confidential 

settlement agreement and mutual release" with "Peggy Peterson," pursuant to which "Peterson" 

agreed not to disclose certain "confidential infonnation pertaining to [Dennison]" in exchange for 

$130,000. The agreement provided that "EC, LLC" would wire the funds to "Peterson's" attorney, 

who would then transfer funds to "Peterson." Cohen signed the agreement on behalf of "EC, 
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LLC." The agreement stated that the address for "EC, LLC," which was later refened to in the 

agreement as "Essential Consultants, LLC," was Cohen's residence. 

e. Consistent with the "confidential settlement agreement and mutual release," on or 

about November 1, 2016, Davidson transfened $96,645 from his attorney client trust account at 

City National Bank to a bank account in Clifford's name. The wire had the annotation "net 

settlement." On the same day, at approximately 9:48 a.m. Davidson sent Cohen a text message 

with a picture of a FedEx delivery confinnation, stating that at approximately 9:09 a.m. a package 

shipped by Davidson the previous day had anived for Cohen at his Trump Organization 

address. On the same day, at approximately 6: 14 p.m., Davidson sent Cohen an email with an 

audio file attached and said "Give this a lesson [sic] and then call me." The audio attachment was 

titled "Stormy.mp3" and was a five-minute recording of Davidson interviewing Clifford about 

recent public allegations made by an adult film star named Jessica Drake regarding her alleged 

past affair with Trump; in the recording, Clifford explained the reasons she believed that Drake 

was not credible. Less than an hour later, at approximately 7:05 p.m., Cohen called Tmmp, but it 

appears that they did not connect. Cohen then called a telephone number belonging to Kellyanne 

Conway, who at the time was Trump's campaign manager. They did not connect. At 

approximately 7:44 p.m., however, Cohen received a return call from Conway, which lasted for 

approximately six minutes. 

40. On November 4, 2016, just three days after the Clifford transaction was completed 

and just four days before the presidential election, the Wall Street Journal published an article 

alleging that the National Enquirer had "Shielded Donald Tmmp" from allegations by Playboy 

model Karen McDougal that she and Trump had an affair. The article alleged that AMI had agreed 

to pay McDougal to bury her story. McDougal, like Clifford, had been represented by Davidson. 
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Based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the Cohen Emaii'Warrants 

and iCloud Warrant, and public sources, it appears that Cohen spoke frequently to Davidson, 

Howard, Pecker, and Hicks around the time of this article's publication-just days before Election 

Day-about the importance of preventing the McDougal and Clifford stories from gaining national 

traction. Specifically, I have learned the following: 

a. Between 4:30 and 8:00 p.m. on November 4, Cohen communicated several times 

----williHoward, Peclcerandc:bavioson. For instance, at approximately4:49 p.m--:~-Cohen sent Howard.­

a text message with a screenshot of an email forwarded to him by another Trump Organization 

lawyer. The forwarded email was from a Wall Street Journal reporter, and asked for comment 

from Trump and/or the campaign on the story. Cohen also spoke with Hicks several times, 

including shortly before and/or after calls with Pecker, Howard and Davidson. Indeed, at 

approximately 7:33 p.m., using two different cellphones subscribed to him, Cohen appears to have 

been talldng to Davidson and Hicks at the same time. 

b. At approximately 8:51 p.m., Cohen sent Howard a message, stating: "She's being 

really difficult with giving Keith a statement. Basically went into hiding and unreachable." One 

minute later, Howard responded: "I'll ask him again. We just need her to disappear." Cohen 

responded, "She defmitely disappem·ed but refuses to give a statement and Keith cannot push her." 

At approximately 8:5 5 p.m., Howard responded to Cohen's text: "Let's let the dust settle. We don't 

want to push her over the edge. She's on side at present and we have a solid position and a plausible 

position that she is rightfully employed as a columnist." Based on my involvement in this 

investigation, I believe Cohen and Howard were referring to Karen McDougal when they were 

discussing "she" and "her." Additionally, I believe Howard's statement that "we have ... a 
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plausible position that she is rightfully employed as a columnist" was a reference to the fact that 

AMI had given McDougal payments for her role as a purported columnist for the company. 

c. At approximately 8:58 p.m. on November 4, 2016, Howard attempted to reassure 

Cohen about the effect of the forthcoming Wall Street Journal article, texting, "I think it'll be ok 

pal. I think it'll fade into the distance." Cohen responded, "He's pissed." Howard wrote back, 

''I'm pissed! You're pissed. Pecker is pissed. Keith is pissed. Not much we can do." Based on 

my involvement in this investigation, I believe Cohen was referring to Trump wlienlie statecf"lie' s 

pissed." Cohen asked Howard at approximately 9:00 p.m. how the Wall Street Journal could 

publish its article if "everyone denies." Howard responded, "Because there is the payment from 

AMI. It looks suspicious at best." 

d. At approximately 9:03 p.m., Hicks called Cohen and they spoke for two minutes. 

At approximately 9:11 p.m., Cohen called Howard and spoke to him for five minutes. At 

approximately 9:15 p.m., Hicks called Cohen and they spoke for nearly seven minutes. Again, 

Cohen used different phones for these two calls, such that he appears to have been on both calls 

for about a minute of overlap. At approximately 9:32 p.m., Cohen texted Pecker, "The boss just 

tried calling you. Are you free?" A minute later, Cohen texted Howard, "Is there a way to fmd 

David quicldy?" 

e. At approximately 9:50 p.m., the Wall Street Journal article was published online. 

Howard and Hicks both sent web links for the article to Cohen. Over the next half hour, Cohen 

and Howard exchanged several text messages commenting on how the story came across. The next 

morning on November 5, 2016, at approximately 7:35 a.m., Cohen texted Hicks, "So far I see only 

6 stories. Getting little to no traction." Hicks responded, "Same. Keep praying!! It's working!" 

Cohen wrote back, "Even CNN not talking about it. No one believes it and if necessary, I have a 
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statement by Storm denying everything and contradicting the other porn stars statement. I wouldn't 

use it now or even discuss with him as no one is talking about this or cares!" Based on my 

involvement in this investigation, I believe Cohen was referring to the above-referenced recorded 

audio statement by Clifford that he obtained from Davidson, and was stating that such a statement 

could be used to influence potential negative media relating to Trump, but was unnecessary at that 

time. Based on a text message from Hicks to Cohen, I believe that later that morning, Pecker 

spoke to Trump. 

41. On or about November 8, 2016, Trump won the election for President of the United 

States. 

42. On or about January 12, 2018, the Wall Street Journal first reported that Cohen 

arranged a payment to Clifford. On or about January 22, 2018, Common Cause, a govermnent 

watchdog group, filed a complaint with the Federal Election Commission, alleging that Cohen had 

violated campaign finance laws by making the payment to Clifford. Based on my review public 

sources following that report, as well as emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

have learned the following: 

a. On or about January 23, 2018, the day after Common Cause filed its complaint, 

Cohen began emailing himself drafts of statements describing his payment to Clifford. 

Additionally, on January 23, 2018, Cohen emailed the following draft of that statement to an 

individual who appears to be writing a book on Cohen's behalf: 

2017.08.02 

In October 2016, I was contacted by counsel for Ms. Clifford stating that 

news outlets, including ABC news, were pursuing the 2011 story of an 

alleged affair between Mr. Trump and Ms. Clifford. Despite the fact that 

both parties had already denied the allegation, as Mr. Trump's longtime 

special counsel and protector, I took it upon myself to match the offer and 

keep the story from breaking. I knew the allegation to be false, but Jam 

also a realist who understands that just because something is false doesn't 

mean that it doesn't create harm and damage. I could not allow this to 
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occur. I negotiated a non-disclosure agreement with Ms. Clifford's 

counsel and tendered the funds. I did this through my Delaware LLC and 

transferred personal funds to cover the agreement. I was not reimbursed 

any monies from Mr. Trump, the Trump Organization, any third party or 

the Presidential campaign. At no point did I ever advise Mr. Trump of my 

communications or actions regarding this agreement. As outlandish and 

unusual as this may appear, the Trumps have been like family to me for 

over a decade. It's what you do for family. 

(Emphasis added.) Based on my involvement in this investigation, I believe that the above email 

is an aclrnowledgement that the allegation of the affair had existed for some time (" ... the 2011 

story ... "), but that Cohen was motivated to "keep the story from breaking" again in October 2016. 

b. On or about February 13, 2018, Cohen said in a statement to The New York Times 

that "Neither the Trump Organization nor the Trump campaign was a party to the transaction with 

Ms. Clifford. The payment to Ms. Clifford was lawful, and was not a campaign contribution or a 

campaign expenditure by anyone." Cohen declined to answer follow-up questions including 

whether Trump had been aware of the payment, why Cohen made the payment, or whether similar 

payments had been made to other people. 

c. On or about February 14, 2018, Cohen was asked by The New York Times whether 

Trump had reimbursed him, whether he and Trump had made any arrangement at the time of the 

payment, or whether he had made payments to other women. Cohen stated in response, "I can't 

get into any of that." On or about February 14, 2018, Cohen also stated to The Washington Post 

that: "In a private transaction in 2016, I used my own personal funds to facilitate a payment of 

$130,000 to Ms. Stephanie Clifford. Neither the Trump Organization nor the Trump campaign 

was a party to the transaction with Ms. Clifford, and neither reimbursed me for the payment, either 

directly or indirectly." 

43. On or about March 9, 2018, Cohen stated to ABC News that ''the funds were taken 

from my home equity line and transferred internally to my LLC account in the same bank." 
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44. Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, there is probable cause to believe that 

Cohen committed violations of the Campaign Finance Offenses by making an in-ldnd contribution 

to Trump or the Trump campaign in the form of a $130,000 payment to Clifford on the eve of the 

election. Indeed, while he denies having given an unlawful contribution, in his own statements 

Cohen has admitted that he paid $130,000 of his "personal funds" to Clifford and that the payment 

occurred less than two weeks before the election, as Trump was facing negative media allegations 

about his behavior toward women, even-tn:ouglia1legations of-an-affair-between-Trump-and ------­

Clifford existed since 2011. In addition, the communication records set forth above make evident 

that Cohen communicated with members of the Trump campaign about his negotiation with 

Clifford's attorney and the need to preclude Clifford from making a statement that would have 

reflected negatively on the candidate in advance of the forthcoming election. 

C. Probable Cause Justifying Search of the Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

45. Based on the foregoing, my review ofrecords produced pursuant to subpoenas and 

the Cohen Email Wan·ants, and the iCloud Warrant, and my training and experience, there is 

probable cause to believe that the Subject Premises and Subject Devices have been used in 

furtherance of the Subject Offenses and are likely to contain instrumentalities, evidence, and fiuits 

of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen permanently 

resides at Subject Premises-I and, at least in part, works at both Subject Premises-1 and Subject 

Premises-2, and that those locations contain evidence relating to the Sterling taxi medallion 

transaction, Cohen's assets, Cohen's consulting work for Essential Consultants LLC, and his 

payment to Clifford. Additionally, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 

contains evidence of Cohen's assets and his payment to Clifford. Finally, there is probable cause 

to believe that Subject Premises-4, in which Cohen is temporarily residing, contains electronic 
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devices, including Subject Device-1 and Subject Device-2, which, in turn, contain evidence of the 

Subject Offenses, such as evidence relating to the Sterling taxi medallion transaction, Cohen's 

assets, Cohen's consulting work for Essential Consultants LLC, and his payment to Clifford. 

46. First, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen lives and operates his businesses, 

at least in part, at Subject Premises-I. Specifically, from my review of property records, I know 

that Michael Cohen and Laura Cohen own (in tmst) Subject Premises-I. From my review of 

Cohen's tax returns, nmow lielisfiniis primary-residence-as-Subj ect-Premises-1-. Additionally,-------­

from my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I know that Cohen 

routinely refers to Subject Premises-I as his home. For example, on or about September 28, 2017 

and October 6, 2017, Cohen emailed individuals that his home address is the address for Subject 

Premises-I. I also know from my review of emails that Cohen receives package delivery 

notifications that list Cohen's address as the address for Subject Premises-I. Cohen has also 

provided the address of Subject Premises-I as the address for Essential Consultants and Michael 

D. Cohen & Associates, P .C. For example, the certificates of incorporation and account opening 

documents at First Republic for both entities list their addresses as the address for Subject 

Premises- I. See supra 11 l 8(b ), 18( d). The consulting agreement between Essential Consultants 

and AT&T also indicated the address for Essential Consultants is the address for Subject Premises-

1. See supra, 19(c). 

47. There is also probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-I is likely to contain 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, from my review of 

emails produced pursuant to subpoena and the Cohen Email Wan-ants and iCloud Wan-ant, as well 

as my training and experience, I know the following: 
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a. According to records maintained by Sterling, the address for all of Cohen's. taxi 

medallion LLCs is the address for Subject Premises-1. See supra ,r 16( c ). Additionally, the 

medallion loan documents indicate that any mailings related to the loans should be sent to Subject 

Premises-1. See id. Based on my training and experience, as well as my review of public sources, 

I know that individuals keep records of properties and assets in which they have ownership 

interests. Accordingly, I submit that Subject Premises-1 likely contains evidence of Cohen's 

ownersliip ofl:fietaxi meffalhon I.;I:;Cs~the-revel'me-that-those-medallions-generak, and-th...,.--------­

transaction with Sterling in 2014 to re-finance the medallion loans that were then with Capital One 

Bank. 

b. From my review of records maintained by Sterling, I also know that Sterling 

addressed documents relating to the transaction and Cohen's attempts to modify the 

terms of the medallion loans to Subject Premises-1. For instance, Sterling addressed the 

transaction term sheet, see supra ,r 16(1), and its demand letter and notice of default, see supra ,r 

16(q), to Subject Premises-1. Accordingly, Subject Premises-1 likely contains evidence 

concerning the transaction and Cohen's negotiations with Sterling. Some of those 

records-such as records relating to a payment from Cohen to -were concealed from 

Sterling and cannot be obtained via subpoena to Sterling. Additionally, even where documents 

were sent to Cohen by Sterling (and therefore are available from Sterling via subpoena), the fact 

that they may be found in Subject Premises-1 will be relevant to Cohen's possession or knowledge 

of the documents. 

c. From my review of records maintained by First Republic, I lmow that Cohen 

provided the address for Subject Premises-1 as the mailing addresses for the Essential Consultants 

Account and MDC&A Account. See supra ,r,r 18(b), 18(e). Accordingly, it is likely that Subject 
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Premises-1 contains records relating to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A Account, 

including, among other things, account opening documents, bank statements, documents provided 

as part of the know-your-customer process, any notes made by Cohen when he was opening the 

accounts, wire transfer records, and canceled checks. Even where these records can be obtained 

from First Republic, the fact that they may be found in Subject Premises-1 will be relevant to, 

among other things, Cohen's ownership of the accounts, or his knowledge of transactions or the 

existence of fundsin accotiiit~~" 

d. Based on my review of records maintained by Capital One Bank, TD Bank, Morgan 

Stanley, City National Bank, Signature Bank, and Bethpage Credit Union, I know that Cohen 

provided the address for Subject Premises-1 as the mailing for his accounts at each of these 

financial institutions. Accordingly, it is likely that Subject Premises-1 contains records relating to 

these accounts, including, among other things, bank statements that list account balances. The 

existence of these records in Subject Premises-1 will be i-elevant to, among other things, Cohen's 

ownership of the accounts and his knowledge of the balances in these accounts. 

e. Additionally, Cohen may have records of other bank accounts or assets that were 

not disclosed to Sterling and are not presently known by law enforcement. For example, as 

described above, Cohen has received interest income since 2015 that he has not disclosed to 

Sterling or paid taxes on. Also, on Cohen's August 2014 Financial Statement, see supra 116(e), 

he disclosed $10,000,000 in "investments in overseas entities."30 The value of these investments 

was omitted from subsequent financial statements. However, for the reasons outlined above, there 

is probable cause to believe that Cohen omitted the value of those investments from his 2017 

30 Based on my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-3, I have leamed that 

Cohen told Sterling Employee-3 that the reference to "investments in overseas entities" on his 

2014 Financial Statement was to serve merely as a "placeholder" for potential future investments. 
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fmancial statements in order to understate his assets. As Subject Premises-1 is Cohen's primary 

residence and he uses Subject Premises-1 as the mailing address for bank records, there is probable 

cause to believe that account statements for unknown bank accounts or assets concealed from 

Sterling are likely to be found in Subject Premises-1. 

f. Based on my review of records maintained by AT&T and produced pursuant to the 

Cohen Email Warrants, I lmow that the address Cohen provided to AT&T for Essential Consultants 

is the address for Subject Premises-=-T. -See supra irt9(c}:-Tnerefore;-there-is-probable-cause-to 

believe that Subject Premises-1 will contain evidence concerning the operation of Essential 

Consultants or money that Cohen received, through Essential Consultants, from AT&T. 

Additionally, because Cohen used the address for Subject Premises-1 for at least one consulting 

arrangement involving Essential Consultants, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-1 may contain records of other consulting arrangements that Cohen, through Essential 

Consultants, has with other individuals or entities. 

g. Based on my review ofrecords maintained byGetzel's accounting firm, and emails 

produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that Getzel's accounting firm sent 

documents to Subject Preniises-1 and used the address for Subject Premises-I as the address listed 

on Cohen's personal and corporate tax retmns. See supra, 16(n). For instance, on or about 

October 6, 2017, an employee at Getzel's accounting firm emailed Cohen that she had sent 

Cohen's September 2017 Financial Statement by FedEx to Cohen's attention. Accordingly, 

Cohen's tax records are lilcely to be found in Subject Premises-1. 

h. Based on my review of bank records and publicly-available documents, I know that 

Cohen used $130,000 from a home equity line of credit on Subject Premises-1 to pay Clifford. I 

also know that on the settlement and nondisclosure agreement between "Peggy Peterson" and "EC, 
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LLC," the address for Essential Consultants is Subject Premises-l. Accordingly, Subject 

Premises-I is likely to contain evidence of the Campaign Finance Offenses, including settlement 

and nondisclosure agreements, payment records, written and email correspondence, and records 

pertaining to the home equity line of credit. 

i. Based on my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants and 

iCloud Warrant, I know that Cohen used at least one Apple iPhone, an Apple iPad Mini, and a 

MacBook Pro to access his iCloud account. ffasecf onmy review oflocationrecords-provided-by -----------­

Apple pursuant to the iCloud Warrant, I know that electronic devices linked to Cohen's iCloud 

account were used at Subject Premises-I to, among other things, place telephone calls and backup 

files to Cohen's iCloud account. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-I contains electronic devices, including certain Apple products, that for reasons 

discussed below are likely to contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

j. Based on my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

understand that Subject Premises-I recently sustained water damage to certain parts of the 

premises, and that Cohen has engaged contractors to perform certain remediation work on the 

premises. In addition, as set forth above, I believe that Cohen and his family are temporarily 

residing at Subject Premises-4 in the Loew's Regency Hotel, which is approximately two blocks 

from Subject Premises- I. However, based on my review of a work order sent to Cohen's email 

by a contractor, I understand that the first phase of the work order called for the contractor to "Pack 

& Remove all items & furnishings in Living Room, Kitchen, Sons Room & Dining Room" and 

store them off-site. In addition, based on my review of drawings sent to Cohen by the contractor, 

it appears that the work is primarily being done in these rooms. Thus, I believe that the 

construction - to the extent it is still ongoing - would not necessarily have caused Cohen to move 
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all documents or evidence responsive to the wan-ant out of Subject Premises-I, because it does not 

appear that work is being done to the portion of Subject Premises-I, such as a home office or 

Cohen's own room, where such documents or evidence would most likely be found.31 

48. Second, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen uses Subject Premises-2 as 

office space, and also that Subject Premises-2 contains certain electronic devices. Specifically, 

from my review of the "strategic alliance agreement" between Squire Patton Boggs and Cohen, 

ana my-reviewof1lie press rele~rseon Squire Patton Boggs's website;-I-knowihat-eohen-has-an 

office at Subject Premises-2. See supra ,r,I 18(d), 19(e). Indeed, I have learned that pursuant to 

Cohen's agreement with the law firm, he has "dedicated and segregated office space" in Squire 

Patton Boggs' s offices on the 23rd floor of 30 Rockefeller Plaza, and that the space is "physically 

separate" from the firm's offices and has "locked doors and its own locked file cabinets." See 

supra ,I 19(e). Additionally, I know that under the terms of the agreement, Cohen agreed to 

"arrange for [his] own computer server system that is not connected to [Squire Patton Boggs's] 

computer network system." I know from my participation in an interview with Getzel, who met 

Cohen at Subject Premises-2 in 2017, that Subject Premises-2 is an office with a door, it appears 

to be used only by Cohen, and it contains, among other things, a computer and paper files. 

According to Oetzel, when Oetzel saw Cohen at Subject Premises-2, he had two cellular 

telephones in Subject Premises-2. I also know from my review of emails produced pursuant to the 

Cohen Email Wan-ants that Cohen uses the address for Subject Premises-2 in the signature block 

31 As noted below, based on my training and experience, I believe that individuals who travel or 

stay in hotels for short-term periods commonly bring some items with them, such as portable 

electronic devices or sensitive items, meaning that Cohen has likely taken some evidence from 

Subject Premises-I to Subject Premises-4. Nevertheless, given the temporary nature of Cohen's 

stay at Subject Premises-4 and the scope of the work being done at Subject Premises-I, I believe 

it is unlikely that Cohen has taken all evidence that would be subject to seizure out of Subject 

Premises- I. 
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on his emails. Based on my review of notes of a call between Cohen and First Republic Employee-

2 (which notes were taken by another First Republic employee, who was participating in the call 

and taking notes), I know that, on or about November 15, 2017, Cohen told First Republic 

Employee-2 that he had a new office at 30 Rocle Moreover, I know from an article in Vanity Fair 

published on or about February 14, 2018, that Cohen was interviewed by the magazine in Subject 

Premises-2 in or about February 2018. 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, from my review of 

emails produced pursuant to subpoena and the Cohen Email Warrants and iCloud Warrant, as well 

as my training and experience, I know the following: 

a. According to records maintained by Sterling, when Cohen was emailing with 

Sterling Employee-3 in 2018 about a modification to his existing loan from Sterling, Cohen listed 

his address in his email as the address for Subject Premises-2. See supra ,r 16(t), 16(u). 

Accordingly, Subject Premises-2 likely contains evidence concerning Cohen's loan modification 

negotiations with Sterling. 

b. Based on my review ofrecords obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

know that the address Cohen provided to KAI and BTA for Essential Consultants is the address 

for Subject Premises-2. See supra ,r,r 19(a), 19(b). Therefore, there is probable cause fo believe 

that Subject Premises-2 will contain evidence concerning the operation of Essential Consultants 

or money that Cohen received, through Essential Consultants, from KAI and BTA, among other 

entities with which Cohen had a consulting arrangement. Additionally, based on my review of 

emails sent in 2018 that were obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I know that Cohen 

continues to enter into consulting mTangements through Essential Consultants, and agreements 
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relating to those arrangements indicate that Essential Consultants is located at Subject Premises-

2. Additionally, because Cohen used the address for Subject Premises-2 for multiple consulting 

an·angements involving Essential Consultants, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-2 may contain records of other unknown consulting arrangements that Cohen has with 

other individuals or entities. 

c. Based on my review ofrecords maintained by Getzel's accounting firm, and emails 

produced pursuant to the Cohen EmaffWarrants, as welras m:y-p-atfrcipation-in-an-interview-with---- ----

Getzel, I have learned that Getzel visited Subject Premises-2 to meet with Cohen about his taxes. 

See supra ,r 20(a). At that meeting, Getzel discussed with Cohen whether Cohen should disclose 

Essential Consultants on his personal financial statement to banks. According, there is probable 

cause to believe that Subject Premises-2 will contain evidence relating to Cohen's taxes, or notes 

of his conversation with Getzel. Moreover, the fact that Cohen used Subject Premises-2 for a 

meeting regarding his personal fmancial matters provides probable cause to believe that documents 

and infomiation regarding his fmances will be found in Subject Premises-2. 

d. Based on my participation in an interview with Getzel, I know that Cohen maintains 

a computer in Subject Premises-2. From my review of IP data produced pursuant to a subpoena 

and pen register to Google, it appears that Cohen is logging into his Gmail account from Subject 

Premises-2. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-2 contains 

electronic devices, that for reasons discussed below are likely to contain evidence of the Subject 

Offenses. 

e. Based upon my training and experience, I have learned that individuals who 

maintain businesses typically keep records relating to the business-such as contracts with clients 

and records of payments-at the business' identified location. I am not aware of any addresses 
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associated with Essential Consultants other than Subject Premises-I and Subject Premises-2. 

Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-I and Subject Premises-2 

will contain business records for Essential Consultants. 

50. Third, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 is likely to contain 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. In particular: 

a. As noted above, Cohen has two bank accounts at TD Ban1c. In or about November 

~· 2017, as Cohen was receivmg substantiarincome:from consulting work-whichhe-did·rrot·disclose-···· ··---·-·-·····-, 

to Sterling-Cohen opened the safety deposit box at TD Ban1<:, which is Subject Premises-3. In 

light of the aforementioned evidence that Cohen conceals assets, including assets at TD Bank, 

there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 contains fmancial assets, objects of value 

and/or documents relating to such assets or objects of value that Cohen likely did not disclose to 

Sterling. Indeed, based on my training and experience, I am aware that people often conceal 

valuable items in safety deposit boxes. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-3 will contain evidence of the Bank Fraud Offenses. 

b. In addition, based on my review of records produced by TD Bank, I know that 

Cohen has accessed the vault in which Subject Premises-3 is stored on two occasions. The first 

such occasion was on November 10, 2017. Cohen signed into the vault at approximately 5:35 and 

out of vault at approximately 5:39 on that date.32 Based on my review of toll records, I know that 

Cohen's first call after he signed out of the safety deposit box- approximately 45 minutes later­

was to Keith Davidson. Specifically, at 6:25 p.m. Cohen called Davidson and they spoke for less 

than a minute; three minutes later, Davidson called Cohen back and they spoke for approximately 

32 The entry in the bank's logbook does not specify whether this is A.M. orP.M. However, I infer 

that it is P .M., because it is unlikely that the bank would have been open at 5 :35 and 5 :39 a.m. 
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22 minutes. The second such occasion was on February 2, 2018, which is during the time period 

numerous media reports about Cohen's payment to Clifford were being published, and is one day 

after it appears that Cohen's family moved into Subject Premises-4, as set forth above. The timing 

of Cohen's two visits to the vault- one shortly before a call to Keith Davidson and the other around 

the time that Cohen came under media scrutiny in connection with the payment to Davidson's 

client- gives rise to probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 will contain evidence of the 

CampaignFinance -offenses, -such as documents relevanC totheColren's- dealing-with-R::eith--~---­

Davidson and the payment to Clifford, including documents or evidence that Cohen did not want 

to leave in his apartment where constrnction workers would be present.33 

51. Based on my review of emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants and 

cell phone location information, I believe that Cohen is temporarily residing in Subject Premises-

4. See supra ,r,r 3( d). There is also probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-4 contains 

instrumentalities and evidence of the Subject Offenses, including, the following: 

a. As described above, it appears that Cohen moved to Subject Premises-4 on or about 

February l, 2018, at which time numerous media reports about Cohen's involvement in the 

payment to Clifford were being published. See supra ,r,r 3(d). During this time same period, 

Cohen was frequently coll'esponding with the media and sent himself and others statements about 

his involvement in the payment to Clifford. See supra ,r,r 42(a)-( c). Thus, there is probable cause 

that Cohen took at least some documents and evidence relating to the Clifford payment with him 

to Subject Premises-4, in order to reference and consult them in connection with these statements. 

33 As noted above, Subject Premises-3 is approximately five inches by ten inches. Accordingly, I 

do not believe that it would fit a large volume of hard copy documents; however, a small number 

of hard-copy documents, or a large volume of documents contained on a flash drive or other 

portable storage device, would fit in Subject Premises-3. 
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b. As described above, at the time Cohen moved to Subject Premises-4, he was also 

in the midst of ongoing negotiations with Sterling regarding the refinancing of his medallion debts. 

For example, on January 30, 2018, Cohen had a lengthy phone call with Sterling Employee-3 about 

his finances and the proposed restructuring, and on February 1, 2018, Cohen sent an email to 

Sterling Employee-3 claiming that he did not have more than $1.25 million in cash. See supra ,r,1 

16(u). Thus, there is probable cause that Cohen took at least some documents and evidence relating 

to his ongoing negotiations witli Sterling witliliim to SuojecfPremEfes-4~ inorder to reference ano 

consult them in connection with these negotiations. 

c. As described above, Cohen used at least one Apple iPhone, an Apple iPad Mini, 

and a MacBook Pro to access his iCloud accounti and these electronic devices linked to Cohen's 

iCloud account were used at Subject Premises-I - Cohens' permanent residence - to place 

telephone calls and backup files to Cohen's iCloud account. See supra,r,r 47(i). Although Cohen's 

stay at Subject Premises".'4 is temporary, based on my training and experience I know that 

individuals who travel or stay in hotels for short-term periods commonly bring portable electronic 

devices with them, such as cellular phones, tablets, or laptops. Accordingly, there is probable 

cause to believe that Subject Premises-4, where Cohen currently appears to be residing, contains 

electronic devices, including Subject Device-I, Subject Device-2, and/or certain Apple products, 

that for the reasons discussed herein are likely to contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

d. Moreover, as set forth above, based on cellphone location information I know that 

Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2 were in the vicinity of Subject Premises-4 as recently as 

this morning (April 8, 2018). As set forth above, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen 

used the Subject Devices in furtherance of the Subject Offenses, including to communicate with 

Sterling employees regarding the medallion transaction, with First Republic employees regarding 
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the Essential Consultants Account, with his accountant regarding his fmances, and with 

individuals, such as Davidson, Howard and Pecker, involved in the $130,000 payment to Clifford. 

52. Although Cohen appears to be residing currently in Subject Premises-4, it is 

unknown whether Cohen will be physically present within Subject Premises-4 at the moment the 

warrant sought herein are executed. If Cohen is within Subject Premises-4 at that moment, Subject 

Device-I and Subject Device-2 - his cellphones - will likely also be within Subject Premises-4. 

--- ---~----------·---·-

If Cohen is not within Subject Premises-4 at that momeiit;ilieaevices will-lilcely be on-his-person,-----------------------: 

wherever he is located (which, based on location data for Subject Device- I and Subject Device-2 

as recently as today, is likely to be in the Southern District of New York). As such, this wanant 

seeks separate authority to seize Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2, in the event that those 

devices are not located within Subject Premises-4 ( or another Subject Premises) at the moment the 

warrants sought herein are executed. 

D. Probable Cause Justifying Search ofESI 

53. Based on the foregoing, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-I, 

Subject Premises-2 and Subject Premises-4 contain electronic devices that are likely to contain 

evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses (and, as set forth above, that Subject 

Device-I and Subject Device-2 are themselves electronic devices that are likely to contain 

evidence of the Subject Offenses). Specifically, based on my review of information produced 

pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, the iCloud Wanant, and subpoenas, as well as pen register 

data, I submit that there is probable cause that Subject Premises- I contains an Apple iPad Mini, a 

MacBook Pro, and has, at various times, contained Apple cellphones; similarly, there is probable 

cause that Subject Premises-2 contains a computer and has, at various times, contained Apple 
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cellphones. These devices are likely to include evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of the 

Subject Offenses for the following reasons: 

a. As described throughout this affidavit, Cohen used email to send and receive 

communications related to the Subject Offenses. In particular, Cohen used email to send and 

receive communications with Sterling, First Republic, Getzel, the entities to which he is providing 

consulting services, Davidson, and Howard, among others. While some of these emails have 

alreaay 6een o6fained-via subpoenas ana~searclfWarrants,tknow :from my tratrt'mg arrd-experierrce~ 

that individuals can and do delete emails :from their Internet-based inboxes but retain copies of 

those emails on their hard drives. I also know that individuals often have multiple email accounts, 

some of which may not be known to law enforcement, and as a result electronic devices can be a 

unique repository of all emails relevant to certain Subject Offenses. Indeed, :from my involvement 

in this investigation, I lmow that Cohen had an email account with the Trump Organization, but 

the USAO and FBI have not been able to obtain the contents of that account to date. Thus, emails 

relevant to the Subject Offenses are likely stored on electronic devices in Subject Premises-I, 

Subject Premises-2 and/or Subject Premises-4. 

b. Additionally, Subject Premises-I, Subject Premise-2 and Subject Premises-4 likely 

contain electronic copies of documents relevant to the Subject Offenses. Indeed, I know :from my 

training and experience that individuals often retain copies of important documents on their 

computers or other electronic devices capable of storing information, including cellphones (such 

as the Subject Devices) and tablets. Here, there are a number of documents that Cohen has likely 

retained that will be relevant to the Subject Offenses. For example, electronic devices may include 

documentation of Cohen's true net worth, a listing of his assets, an accounting of his available 
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cash, consulting agreements with third parties, and documentation of his payment to Clifford, 

among other evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

c. Third, I know from my review of emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants that Cohen sent up online banking with First Republic. Based on my training and 

experience, I know that individuals who set up online banking often receive electronic notices 

concerning financial transactions and, on occasion, save records of their financial transactions to 

their devices. Accordingly, there is probable cause to oelieve 1liarConen's- electronic devices------ ------

contain evidence ofbanldng activity, including the existence of bank accounts or assets that Cohen 

did not disclose to Sterling or Mekose. 

d. Fourth, from my review of records produced by Apple, I know that Cohen 

communicates using text message as well as encrypted communications applications. These 

applications that Cohen has downloaded onto a phone include, but are not limited to, WhatsApp, 

Signal, and Dust. I know from my review of toll records and text messages that, in paiticular, 

Cohen communicated with Pecker using these encrypted applications. Accordingly, there is 

probable cause to believe that Cohen's cellphones - the Subject Devices - will contain encrypted 

messages that are not otherwise accessible relating to the Subject Offenses. 

54. Based on my training and experience, I know that individuals who engage in 

financial crimes commonly use computers to communicate with co-conspirators, keep financial 

ledgers, and retain fraudulent documents. As a result, they often store data on their computers 

related to their illegal activity, which can include logs of online or cellphone-based "chats" with 

co-conspirators; email correspondence; contact information of co-conspirators, including 

telephone numbers, email addresses, and identifiers for instant messaging and social medial 

accounts; bank account numbers; and/or records of uses of funds. 
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55. Based on my training and.experience, I also know that, where computers are used 

in :furtherance of criminal activity, evidence of the criminal activity can often be found months or 

even years after it occurred. This is typically true because: 

• Electronic files can be stored on a hard drive for years at little or no cost and users thus 

have little incentive to delete data that may be useful to consult in the future. 

• Even when a user does choose to delete data, the data can often be recovered months 

or years later with the appropriate forensic tools. When a file is "deleted" on a home 

_______________ c_o_m~puter, the data contained in the file does not actually disappear, but instead remains 
on the hard chive, in "slack space," until it is overwritten by new data that caiinofbe _____ _ 

stored elsewhere on the computer. Similarly, files that have been viewed on the Internet 

are generally downloaded into a temporary Internet directory or "cache," which is only 

overwritten as the "cache" fills up and is replaced with more recently viewed Internet 

pages. Thus, the ability to retrieve from a hard drive or other electronic storage media 

depends less on when the file was created or viewed than on a particular user's 

operating system, storage capacity, and computer habits. 

• In the event that a user changes computers, the user will typically transfer files from 

the old computer to the new computer, so as not to lose data. In addition, users often 

keep backups of their data on electronic storage media such as thumb drives, flash 

memory cards, CD-ROMs, or portable hard drives. 

56. Based on the foregoing, I respectfully submit there is probable cause to believe that 

Cohen engaged in the Subject Offenses, and that evidence of this criminal activity is likely to be 

found in the Subject Premises, on computers and electronic media found in the Subject Premises, 

and on the Subject Devices. In particular, there is probable cause to believe that the Subject 

Premises and Subject Devices will contain evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of violations of 

the Subject Offenses, as more fully described in Sectioµ II of Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F to 

the proposed warrants, including the following: 

a. Evidence necessary to establish the occupancy or ownership of the Subject 

Premises, including without limitation, utility and telephone bills, mail envelopes, addressed 

c01Tespondence, bank statements, identification documents, and keys. 
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b. Evidence relating to Sterling, Melrose, and/or taxi medallions. 
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c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Cohen and/or entities 

associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to nd/or entities associated with him. 

d. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

e. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any docwnents that j 
I 

___ .. l 
··Indicate the natme and purpose ~f payments made to or from EssentiaCCorisiiltants or t~he-na-tur~-e---------1 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

f. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the natme and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

g. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual' income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records. 

h. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and and any payments by :o Cohen. 

i. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

j. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 
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k. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howm·d about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

1. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

m. Evidence of communications with Donald Tlump and/or agents or associates of the 

Tlump Campaign about the Access Hollywooa tape ana -other -potentia:1-sollfc-es-of-negative--- ----------­

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

n. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

o. Evidence relating to Cohen's lmowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

• contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

p. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances; 

q. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution; 

r. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

III. Procedures for Searching ESI 

A. Execution of Warrant for ESI 

57. Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(e)(2)(B) provides that a wan-ant to search 

for and seize property "may authorize the seizure of electronic storage media or the seizure or 
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copying of electronically stored information ... for later review." Consistent with Rule 41, this 

application requests authorization to seize any computer devices and storage media and transport 

them to an appropriate law enforcement facility for review. This is typically necessary for a number 

of reasons: 

111 First, the volume of data on computer devices and storage media is often impractical 

for law enforcement personnel to review in its entirety at the search location. 

• Second, because computer data is particularly vulnerable to inadvertent or intentional 

modification-or destruction, computer devices are iaeally examifiea-in a controlled~ 

environment, such as a law enforcement laboratory, where trained personnel, using 

specialized software, can make a forensic copy of the storage media that can be 

subsequently reviewed in a manner that does not change the underlying data. 

111 Third, there are so many types of computer hardware and software in use today that it 

can be impossible to bring to the search site all of the necessary technical manuals and 

specialized personnel and equipment potentially required to safely access the 

underlying computer data. 

• Fourth, many factors can complicate and prolong recovery of data from a computer 

device, including the increasingly common use of passwords, encryption, or other 

features or configurations designed to protect or conceal data on the computer, which 

often take considerable time and resources for forensic personnel to detect and resolve. 

58. As discussed herein, Squire Patton Boggs is a functioning law film that conducts 

legitimate business unrelated to Cohen's commission of the Subject Offenses. Subject Premises-

2 is an office located inside of Squire Patton Boggs's New York office. In order to execute the 

warrant in the most reasonable fashion, law enforcement personnel will attempt to investigate on 

the scene of what computers or storage media, if any, must be seized or copied, and what computers 

or storage-media need not-be seized or copied. Law enforcement personn_el will speak with S_q11ire 

Patton Boggs personnel on the scene as may be appropriate to determine which files and electronic 

devices within Subject Premises-2 belong to or were used by Cohen. While, based on the 

foregoing, it does not appear that Cohen shared electronic devices or a server with Squire Patton 

Boggs, where appropiiate, law enforcement personnel will copy data, rather than physically seize 
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computers, to reduce the extent of any disruption of Squire Patton Boggs's operations. If, after 

inspecting the seized computers off-site, it is determined that some or all of this equipment is no 

longer necessary to retrieve and preserve the evidence, the Government will return it. 

59. Additionally, because Cohen is an attorney, and claims to serve as a personal 

attorney for Trump, the review of evidence seized from the Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

will be conducted pursuant to established screening procedures to ensure that the law enforcement 

------ ~---~--

personnel involved in the investigation, including attorneys fortlie Government;-collect-evidence----

in a manner reasonably designed to protect any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When 

appropriate, the procedures will include use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from 

the investigative team, in order to review potentially privileged communications and determine 

which communications to release to the investigation and prosecution team. 

B. Accessing ESI on the Subject Devices 

60. As described above, the Subject Devices are both Apple brand devices. 

61. I know from my training and experience, as well as from information found in 

publicly available materials including those published by Apple, that some models of Apple 

devices such as iPhones and iPads offer their users the ability to unlock the device via the use of a 

fingerprint or thumbprint ( collectively, "fingerprint") in lieu of a numeric or alphanumeric 

passcode or password. This feature is called Touch ID. I also know that the Apple iPhone X offers 

its users the ability to unlock the device via the use of facial recognition (through infrared and 

visible· light scans) in lieu of a numeric or alphanumeric passcode or password. This feature is 

called Face ID. 

62. If a user enables Touch ID on a given Apple device, he or she can register up to 5 

fingerprints that can be used to unlock that device. The user can then use any of the registered 
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fingerprints to unlock the device by pressing the relevant fmger(s) to the device's Touch ID sensor, 

which is found in the round button ( often refen-ed to as the "home" button) found at the bottom 

center of the front of the device. If a user enables Face ID on a given Apple device, he or she can 

unlock the device by raising the iPhone to his or her face, or tapping the screen. In my training 

and experience, users of Apple devices that offer Touch ID or Face ID often enable it because it is 

considered to be a more convenient way to unlock the device than by entering a numeric or 

---·"-•----------~------

alphanumeric passcode or password, as well as a more secure way to protect the device's contents. 

63. In some circumstances, Touch ID or Face ID cannot be used to unlock a device that 

has either security feature enabled, and a passcode or password must be used instead. These 

circumstances include: (1) when the device has just been turned on or restarted; (2) when more 

than 48 hours has passed since the last time the device was unlocked; (3) when the passcode or 

password has not been entered in the last 6 days, and the device has not been unlocked via Touch 

ID in the last 8 hours or the device has not been unlocked via Face ID in the last 4 hours; (4) the 

device has received a remote lock command; or ( 5) five unsuccessful attempts to unlock the device 

via Touch ID or Face ID are made. 

64. The passcodes or passwords that would unlock the Subject Devices are not known 

to law enforcement. Thus, it will likely be necessary to press the fmgers of the user of the Subject 

Devices to the devices' Touch ID sensor, or hold the Subject Devices in front of the user's face to 

activate the Face ID sensor, in an attempt to unlock the devices for the purpose of executing the 

search authorized by this warrant. Attempting to unlock the relevant Apple devices via Touch ID 

with the use of the :fingerprints of the user, or via Face ID by holding the device in front of the 

user's face, is necessary because the government may not otherwise be able to access the data 

contained on those devices for the purpose of executing the search authorized by this warrant. 
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65. Based on these facts and my training and experience, it is likely that Cohen is the 

user of the Subject Devices, and thus that his fingerprints are among those that are able to unlock 

the Subject Devices via Touch ID or his face is able to unlock the Subject Devices via Face ID. 

66. Although I do not lmow which of a given user's 10 fingerprints is capable of 

unlocking a particular device, based on my training and expeiience I know that it is common for a 

user to unlock a Touch ID-enabled Apple device via the fingerprints on thumbs or index fingers. 

In the eveiitfhat law enforcement isunable to unloclf1lieSu.15jecfDev1ces as aescribe-d--above~-----~-­

within the five attempts permitted by Touch ID, this will simply result in the device requiring the 

entry of a password or passcode before it can be unlocked. 

67. I also know from my training and experience, and my review of publicly available 

materials published by Apple that Apple brand devices, such as the Subject Devices, have a feature 

that allows a user to erase the contents of the device remotely. By logging into the Internet, the 

user or any other individual who possesses the user's account information can take steps to 

completely wipe the contents of the device, thereby destroying evidence of criminal conduct, along 

with any other information on the device. The only means to prevent this action is to disable the 

device's ability to connect to the Internet immediately upon seizure, which requires either access 

to the device itself to alter the settings, or the use of specialized equipment that is not consistently 

available to law enforcement agents at every arrest. 

68. Due to the foregoing, I request that the Court authorize law enforcement to press 

the fingers (including thumbs) of Cohen to the Touch ID sensors the Subject Devices, or hold the 

Subject Devices in front of Cohen's face, for the purpose of attempting to unlock the Subject 

Devices via Touch ID or Face ID in order to search the contents as authorized by this warrant. 

78 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 79 of 269

C. Review of ESI 

69. Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation 

of forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement 

officers and agents, and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and 

related proceedings, attomeys for the government, attomey support staff, agency personnel 

assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under government 

confrol) will review the ESI contamea tlierem for mformation responsive to tlie warrant. -- • 

70. In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques 

to determine which files or other ESI contain evidence or fruits of the Subject Offenses. Such 

techniques may include, for example: 

• surveying directories or folders and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• conducting a file-by-file review by "opening" or reading the first few "pages" of such 
files in order to determine their precise contents (analogous to performing a cursory 
examination of each document in a file cabinet to determine its relevance); 

• "scanning" storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted data or 
deliberately hidden files; and 

• performing electronic keyword searches through all electronic storage areas to 
determine the existence and location of data potentially related to the subject matter of 
the investigation34

; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

34 Keyword searches alone are typically inadequate to detect all relevant data. For one thing, 

keyword searches work only for text data, yet many types of files, such as images and videos, do 
not store data as searchable text. Moreover, even as to text data, there may be information properly 

subject to seizure but that is not captured by a keyword search because the infonnation does not 

contain the keywords being searched. 
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71. Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to restrict their search to 

data falling within the categories of evidence specified in the warrant. Depending on the 

circumstances, however, law enforcement personnel may need to conduct a complete review of all 

the ESI from seized devices or storage media to evaluate its contents and to locate all data 

responsive to the wan-ant. 

D. Return ofESI 

72. If the Government deteniifues tliat tlie electl'onicdevk-es-are-no-longer necessary----------- _j 

to retrieve and preserve the data, and the devices themselves are not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41 ( c ), the Government will return these items, upon request. 

Computer data that is encrypted or unreadable will not be returned unless law enforcement 

personnel have determined that the data is not (i) an instrumentality of the offense, (ii) a fiuit of 

the criminal activity, (iii) contraband, (iv) otherwise unlawfully possessed, or (v) evidence of the 

Subject Offenses. 
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IV. Conclusion and Ancillary Provisions 

73. Based on the foregoing, I respectfully request the court to issue a warrant to seize 

the items and information specified in Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F to this affidavit and to the . 

Search and Seizure Warrants. 

74. In light of the confidential nature of the continuing investigation, I respectfully 

request that this affidavit and all papers submitted herewith be maintained under seal until the 

Court orders otherwise. 

Sworn to before me on 
SthdayofApril,2018 /Jy T6u:-i"tf,,,-,,,·e 
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ATTACHMENT A 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-I 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-1 ") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Apmiment ■located inside the building at 502 Park A venue, New York, New York 

10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-floor brick residential building. Subject 

Premises-1 is located on the -)f the building. 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-1 are evidence, :fiuits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.'S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from Janumy 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal fmancial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

g. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and and/or entities controlled by the 
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-
and any payments by to Cohen, :from January 

1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

---------=-~~-;'...-~ 
David Pecker, ana7of-DyfanHowa.roal5our--Dcmald·-Trul'np;--the-'Frump-€ampaign,Stephanie---- ----< 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 
I 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the rnn up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-1 also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 

any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 

drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 

or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises- I also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 

---- concerning the configuration-of the -seizedor-copied-computer. devices_or_storage_me_dia. _____ ------~- ~--- _________ _ 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

@ scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

@ performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occU1Tences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other infmmation reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT B 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-2 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-2") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

An office belonging to or assigned to Michael Cohen located on the 23rd floor of the 

building at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York 10112, inside of the offices of the law firm 

Squire Patton Boggs. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza is a 66-floor office building 

that spans the entire block between Sixth Avenue and Rockefeller Plaza. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pe1tains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 •· 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Ban1c, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

and/or entities controlled by 
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. - -
, and any payments by to Cohen, from January 

1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

______ _c____ _ __c__J~EYidence_ofc_ommunications between Michael Cohen and AmericanMedia, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

I. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, any desktop and 

laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone belonging to Michael Cohen 
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or in his possession, portable hard drives, disk drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. 

In lieu of seizing any such computer devices or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the 

copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 
----'------

concerning the configuration oftlie seiZecl otcopietl--i::-omputer-devices-or-storage medias--------·------ - -

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the wal1"ant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

e surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

e opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

@ performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system infonnation, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the wanant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 

--- --- ----------~ 
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ATTACHMENT C 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-3 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-3") are described as follows, and include 

all locked and closed containers found therein: 

A safe deposit box located inside the TD Bank branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New 

York, New York 10019, marked as box /J. The safe deposit box is in the name of Michael 

Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-3 are evidence, frnits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

1. Evidence relating to Michael Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash 

equivalents, assets, monthly and annual income, and income sources, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

2. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

3. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

4. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

5. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

6. Evidence of communications with Donald Trnmp and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

7. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 
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8. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

9. Any portable electronic storage device. 

B. Search of Seized Electronic Devices 

Probable cause exists to search any seized electronic storage device for the items set 

forth in Section II(A)(l)-(8), above. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure ofany electronic storage device, law enforcement personnel (which may 

include, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, attomeys for the govemment, attorney 

support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside 

technical experts under government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for 

information responsive to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

111 scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

111 performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices if necessary to evaluate its contents and to 

locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 

established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
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any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENTD 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-4 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-4") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel at 540 Park Avenue, New York, New 

York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park Avenue and 61st Street. Subject 

Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. 

Il. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a fmancial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer anv interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal fmancial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

g. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and •• and/or entities controlled by 
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' -
md any payments by to Cohen, from January 

1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

-------~---------J.___E:v:id_e_nce_pf communications between Michael Copen and American Media, Inc., I 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump -Campaign, Stephante------~------cil 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 
f 
~ 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements~ and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

fmancial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that fmancial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evi~ence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 

any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 

drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 

or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 

concerning tlieconfiguration ofllie seizeoot copiecl cornputerdevices-orstorage-media:-----

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

111 scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

111 performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system infonnation, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information re:flecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the wan-ant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 

established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to 

address potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT E 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure- Subject Device-1 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-1") is 
described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 
depress the fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 
Device-1, or hold Subject Device-1 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 

----~-------~t_o_g-ain access to tlie contents of any such-device as autliotizeclby-tli1s warrant. -----

II. Review ofESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 
and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 
attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 
this investigation, and outside technical experts under government control) are authorized to 
review the ESI contained on Subject Device-1 for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 
violations of18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 
bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 
fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 
(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from Januaiy 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Meh-ose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 
communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 
Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 

Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

and/or entities controlled by 
••• and any payments by· o Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or--legaLrepresentatives,-.including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Tmmp and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Tmmp Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that :financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

fmancial transactions involving that fmancial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-1 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 

preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-1 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 4l(c), the Government will return Subject Device-1, upon 

request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT F 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure - Subject Device-2 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure wanant ("Subject Device-2") is 

described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

Dming the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 

depress the :fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 

Device-2, or hold Subject D~yice-2 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order i 
to gain access to the contents of any such device as autfiorizea-fiyl:fiis wanaJir.-----------'------'-- -,, 

II. Review of ESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 

and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 

attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 

this investigation, and outside technical experts under govemment control) are authorized to 

review the ESI contained on Subject Device-2 for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 

violations of18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 

bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 

fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 

(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Banlc, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 

communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 

Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 

Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January I, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relatin!l to aEn:eements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled by 

md any payments by :o Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

-----~agents .. or-legaLrepresentati~es,-including_any_nondisclosure_agre.ements_and_r.elated_d.oe.umen.ts.,__ _____ _ 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January I, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a fmancial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that :financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
fmancial transactions involving that fmancial institution, from January I, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-2 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 

preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-2 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 4l(c), the Govemment will return Subject Device-2, upon 

request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attomey-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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AO J 06 (Rev. 06/09) Application for a Sea~ch Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 

(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

Four Premises and Two Electronic Devices, See 
Attached Affidavit and Riders 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

APPLICATION FOR A SEARCH WARRANT 

I, a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government, request a search warrant and state under 

--~....c_·· penalzy._of_p_erjury_that I have reason to believe that on the following person pr prpperty (identify the person or describe the 

pr.apertv.Jo be $earched (IM giv(Lfts lfrcationl.: . • . ·:- . 
r·our f-'rem1ses ana Two t:.lec ronic Devices, See Attached Affidavit and Riders 

located in the Southern District of New York , there is now concealed (identify the 
-------- ------------

person or describe the property to be seized): 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT AND RIDERS. 

The basis for the search under Fed. R. Crim. P. 41(c) is (check one or more): 

~ evidence of a crime; 

~ contraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed; 

r&f property designed for use, intended for use, or used in committing a crime; 

0 a person to be arrested or a person who is unlawfully restrained. 

The search is related to a violation of: 

Code Section 
18 U.S.C. s 371, 1005, 1014, 
1343 and 1344, and 

Offense Description 
Conspiracy, false bank entries, false statements to a financial institution, 

wire fraud, bank fraud, and 
52 USC 30116 and 30109 illegal campaign contributions 

The application is based on these facts: 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT AND RIDER. 

~ Continued on the attached sheet. 

0 Delayed notice of days (give exact ending date if more than 30 days: ) is requested 
-----

under 18 U.S.C. § 3103a, the basis of which is set forth on the attached sheet. 

Printed name and title 

Sworn to before me and signed in my presence. 

Date: 04/08/2018 

City and state: N c...., Ye< K-1 }Ji 
----,~--____,_, --

Hon. Henry B. Pitman, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

In the Matter of the Application of the United 

States of America for a Search and Seizure 

Warrant for the Premises Known and Described 

as (1) 502 Park Avenue, ,■■■■■■...Yew 

York, New York 10022, (2) Michael Cohen's 

Office at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 23rd Floor, New 

■v ~~k, New York 10112, (3) Safe Deposit Box# 

Located at the TD Bank Branch at 500 Park 

Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and (4) 
-~-

Loews Regency Hotel, 540 Park A venue, Room 

1728, New York, New York 10065, and Any 

Closed Containers/Items Contained Therein, and 

the Electronic Devices Known and Described as 

(1) an Aople iPhone with Phone Number . 

- and (2) an Apple iPhone with Phone \ 

Number : 

Reference No. 2018R00127 : 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK) ss.: 

TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL 

Agent Affidavit in Support of 

Application for Search and Seizure 
Warrant 

Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation, being duly sworn, 

deposes and says: 

I. Introduction 

A. Affiant 

1. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau oflnvestigation ("FBI"). I have been 

a Special Agent with the FBI since 2009. In the course of my experience and training in these 

positions, I have participated in criminal investigations into federal offenses involving a wide array 

of financial crimes, including frauds on financial institutions, as well as into offenses involving 

public corruption. I also have training and experience executing search warrants, including those 

involving electronic evidence. 

2. I make this Affidavit in support of an application pursuant to Rule 41 of the Federal 

Rules of Criminal Procedure for a warrant to search the premises specified below (the "Subject 
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Premises") and the electronic devices specified below (the "Subject Devices") for, and to seize, 

the items and information described in Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F. This affidavit is based 

upon my personal knowledge; my review of documents and other evidence; my conversations with 

other law enforcement personnel; and my training, experience and advice received concerning the 

use of electronic devices in criminal activity and the forensic analysis of electronically stored 

information ("ESI''). Because this affidavit is being submitted for the limited purpose of ! 
l 

I 

establishing probable cause, it -doe~ not include alTTnefactstliafTliave learned-during tne Cbuts~ ----------~-- -f 
' 

of my investigation. Where the contents of documents and the actions, statements, and 

conversations of others are reported herein, they are reported in substance and in part, except where 

otherwise indicated. 

B. The Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

3. Subject Premises-I, Subject Premises-2, Subject Premises-3 and Subject Premises-

4 (collectively, the "Subject Premises") are particularly described as: 

a. Subject Premises-I is Apartment -located inside the building at 502 

Park Avenue, New York, New York 10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-

floor brick residential building. Subject Premises-I is located on the.floor of the building. 

Based on my review of New York City property records, I have learned that Michael Cohen and 

Laura Cohen own Subject Premises-1.1 Additionally, as described below, Subject Premises-I is 

Cohen's full-time residence. 

b. Subject Premises-2 is an office located on the 23rd floor of the building at 

30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York 10112. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza 

1 As noted infra, I have learned that on or about October 28, 2015, Cohen transferred Subject 

Premises- I into a trust. 
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is a 66-floor office building that .spans the entire block between Sixth A venue and Rockefeller 

Plaza. Subject Premises-2 is located on the 23rd floor of the building inside of the offices of the 

law firm Squire Patton Boggs. The office is assigned to Michael Cohen. As described below, 

Michael Cohen works and conducts meetings at Subject Premises-2. 

c. Subject Premises-3 is a safety deposit box located inside the TD Bank 

branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019. Based on my review of records 

~---~------------- ,,, ___________ 7--;-----0----.----.-------,--~~ 

maintained by TD Bank, I have learned that the safety deposifoox is approximately five~hrches-by-

ten inches in size, and is marked as box. The safety deposit box is in the name of Michael 

Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

d. Subject Premises-4 is Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel 

at 540 Park A venue, New York, New York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park 

A venue and 61 st Street. Subject Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. Based on my 

review of emails obtained pursuant to search warrants described below, I have learned that on or 

about January 5, 2018, Cohen received an email from an employee of Loews Regency, which 

included a price quote for a long-term stay suite based on a three-month stay from January 8 to 

April 8, 2018.2 On or about January 29, 2018, Cohen sent an email to a Loews Regency employee, 

stating, in pertinent part: "I just spoke to my wife and she has scheduled the move for Thursday. 

Please mark down that we will be taking possession on Thursday, February 1st." Based on my 

review of cell phone location data, I have learned that, over the past 24 hours, two cellular phones 

used by Cohen have been located in the vicinity of Subject Premises-4. In particular, on or about 

2 Although the quoted price contemplated a three-month stay from January 8 to April 8, it appears 

that Cohen did not move in until February 1, and as of today, April 8, cellphone location 

information demonstrates that Cohen's cellular phones are in still in the vicinity of Subject 

Premises-4. 
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April 8, 2018, law enforcement agents using a "triggerfish" device identified Room 1728 as the 

room within the hotel in which the Subject Devices are most likely present.3 

e. Therefore, I believe that Cohen is temporarily residing in Subject 

Prernises-4. 

4. Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2 ( collectively, the "Subject Devices") are 

particularly described as: 

a. Subject Device-I is an Apple iPhones·erviced6y AT&T witlfthetelephonenumhe,.---~~~---'---··'·"l'I 

Based on my review ofrecords maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject 

Device-I is subscribed to Michael Cohen. Based on my review of cellphone location information 

maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject Device-I is presently located in the Southern 

District of New York. 

b. Subject Device-2 is an Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

Based on my review ofrecords maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject 

Device-2 is subscribed to Michael Cohen. Based on my review of cellphone location information 

maintained by AT&T, I have learned that Subject Device-2 is presently located in the Southern 

District ofNewYork. 

c. Based on my training, experience, and research, and from consulting the 

manufacturer's and service providers' advertisements and product technical specifications 

available online, I know that the Subject Devices have capabilities that allow them to, among other 

things: make and receive telephone calls; save and store contact information; send and receive 

3 Based on my conversations with these agents, I understand that it is also possible that the Subject 

Devices are one floor below, in Room 1628. However, as noted, I understand that Cohen received 

a price quote for a long-term stay suite and is residing there with his family. Based on my 

conversations with FBI agents conducting surveillance, I understand that Room 1728 appears to 

be a suite, whereas Room 1628 appears to be a standard room. 

5 
2017.08.02 

I 
! 
I 

' :;I 
I 
~ 
fl 
1. 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 108 of 269

emails and text messages; download and run mobile telephone applications, including encrypted 

call and messaging application such as WhatsApp, Signal, and Dust; take, send, and receive 

pictures and videos; save and store notes and passwords; and store documents. 

C. The Subject Offenses 

5. For the reasons detailed below, I believe that there is probable cause to believe that 

the Subject Premises and Subject Devices contain evidence,. fruits, and instrumentalities of 

violations of 18 l[s.c:-rr1005~(fiilse15anR entriesJ;--ror4-(fat~re-·statements-to~a-financial-----­

institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank fraud) ( collectively, the "Bank Fraud Offenses"), 

52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) (the 

"Campaign Finance Offenses"), and 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other• 

Subject Offenses) (collectively, the "Subject Offenses"). 

D. Prior Applications 

6. The FBI and the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New 

York ("USAO") have been investigating several courses of criminal conduct by Michael Cohen. 

Cohen is an attorney who currently holds himself out as the personal attorney for President Donald 

Trump, and who previously served for over a decade as an executive in the Trump Organization, 

an international conglomerate with real estate and other holdings. 

7. In connection with an investigation then being conducted by the Office of the 

Special Counsel ("SCO"), the FBI sought and obtained from the Honorable Beryl A. Howell, Chief 

United States District Judge for the District of Columbia, three search warrants for emails and 

other content information associated with two email accounts used by Cohen, and one search 

warrant for stored content associated with an iCloud account used by Cohen. Specifically: 
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a. On or about July 18, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search warrant for 

emails in the account J ~gmail.com (the "Cohen Gmail Account'') sent or received 

between January 1, 2016 and July 18, 2017 (the "First Cohen Gmail Warrant"). 

b. On or about August 8, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search warrant 

for content stor.ed in the iCloud account associated with Apple ID 

"Cohen iCloud Account" and the "Cohen iCloud Warrant"). 

@gmail.com (the 

C. On or about November 13, 1017~1lie-FBT sought and obtained a search 

warrant for emails in the Cohen Gmail Account sent or received between June 1, 2015 and 

November 13, 2017 (the "Second Cohen Gmail Warrant"). 

d. On or about November 13, 2017, the FBI sought and obtained a search 

warrant for emails in the account 1 . (the "Cohen MDCPC Account"} sent or 

received between the opening of the Cohen MDCPC Account4 and November 13, 2017 (the "First 

Cohen MDCPC Warrant"). 

8. The SCO has since referred certain aspects of its investigation into Cohen to the 

USAO, which is working with the FBI's New York Field Office. As part of that referral, on or 

about February 8, 2018, the SCO provided the USAO with all non-privileged emails and other 

content information obtained pursuant to the First Cohen Gmail Warrant, Second Cohen Gmail 

Warrant, and Cohen MDCPC Warrant. On or about March 7, 2018, the SCO provided the USAO 

4 Based on my review of this warrant and the affidavit in support of it, I know that the warrant did 

not specify a time period, but the affidavit indicated that, pursuant to court order, the service 

provider had provided non-content information for the Cohen MDCPC Account that indicated that 

the account contained emails from the approximate period of March 2017 through the date of the 

warrant. 
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with all non-privileged content obtained pursuant to the Cohen iCloud Warrant.5 A filter team 

working with the SCO had previously reviewed the content produced pursuant to these warrants 

for privilege. 

9. On or about February 28, 2018, the USAO sought and obtained search warrants for 

emails in the Cohen Gmail Account and the Cohen MDCPC Account, among other accounts, sent 

or received between November 14, 2017 and February 28, 2018 (the "Third Cohen Gmail Warrant" 

and the "Second Cohen .MDCPC Wai-iant"r-Tne content prooucea.-pursuanttcrthesewarrantds-----~----------­

subject to an ongoing review for privilege by an SDNY filter team.6 

10. The emails search warrants described above are referred to collectively as the 

"Cohen Email Warrants." 

11. On or about April 7, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained a warrant for 

prospective and historical cellphone location information for Subject Device-I and Subject 

Device-2. On or about April 8, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained authority to employ 

an electronic technique, commonly known as a "triggerfish," to determine the location of Subject 

Device-I and Subject Device-2. 

II. Probable Cause 

A. Overview 

12. The United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York and FBI 

are investigating, among other things, schemes by Target Subject Michael Cohen (a) to defraud 

multiple banks from in or about 2016 up to and including the present, and (b) to make an illegal 

5 The SCO had previously provided a subset of this non-privileged content on or about February 

2, 2018. 
6 On or about February 28, 2018 and April 7, 2018, the USAO and FBI sought and obtained Rule 

41 search warrants authorizing the search of emails and content obtained pursuant to previously 

issued warrants for additional subject offenses. 
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campaign contribution in October 2016 to then-presidential candidate Donald Trump. As noted, 

Cohen is an attorney who currently holds himself out as the personal attorney for President Donald 

Trump, and who previously served for over a decade as an executive in the Trump Organization, 

an international conglomerate with real estate and other holdings. 

13. The investigation has revealed that Cohen has made affirmative misrepresentations 

in and omitted material information from financial statements and other disclosures that Cohen 1 

Provided to multiple banks in connection with a transaction mtenoea·--to--relieve·-cob:en of~---------- ii 
I 
I 

I 
! 

r 

~ 
i 

approximately $22 million in debt he owed on taxi medallion loans from the banks. As set forth u 
~-t, 

in detail below, in these financial statements, and in his oral and other written statements to these 

banks, Cohen appears to have (i) intentionally misrepresented his ability to pay cash by failing to 

disclose cash he began receiving in 2017 from new consulting work; (ii) significantly understated 

his total holdings of cash and cash equivalents; (iii) failed to disclose tens of thousands of dollars 

he received in monthly interest income, and (iv) failed to inform the banks from which he was 

seeking debt relief that he had agreed to make a $3.8 million cash payment to a third party, -

-· in connection with acquisition of the taxi medallions securing Cohen's 

debt. By making these misrepresentations and material omissions, Cohen avoided making 

monthly payments on his loans, and attempted to fraudulently induce the banks to relieve him of 

certain repayment obligations and personal guarantees that Cohen and his wife had signed. 

14. Additionally, the investigation has revealed that shortly before the 2016 

presidential election, Cohen made a payment of $130,000 from a limited liability corporation 

("LLC") to Stephanie Clifford, an individual who is alleged to have had an extramarital affair with 

then-candidate Trump. This payment was made to Clifford in exchange for an agreement not to 

make any public disclosures about her alleged affair with Trump. As set forth below, there is 
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probable cause to believe that Cohen made this payment to Clifford for the purpose of influencing 

the presidential election, and therefore that the payment was an excessive in-kind contribution to 

the Trump campaign. 

15. Based on my review of emails obtained from the Cohen Email Warrants, 

information obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant, and documents produced pursuant to 

subpoenas, as well as my review of public sources, I have learned that Cohen has used the Subject 

Premises to (a) receive documents-related to the transaction-intended to relieve Cohenof liisLax1 

medallion debt, (b) receive documents and/or conduct meetings related to his consulting work, ( c) 

receive documents and/or conduct meetings relating to his finances and assets, some of which, as 

noted above and as detailed further herein, he has concealed from the banks in connection with the 

refinancing of his taxi medallion debt, ( d) receive and send documents relating to his payment to 

Clifford, and ( e) house and operate electronic devices that were utilized in connection with, among 

other things, the taxi medallion transaction, Cohen's consulting work, and his payment to Clifford. 

Specifically, as described below, Subject Premises-1 likely contains evidence concerning Cohen's 

taxi medallion loans, his negotiations with banks, his personal finances, his consulting work, his 

tax returns, and his payment to Clifford, as well as electronic devices containing such evidence, 

all of which constitute or contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. Additionally, as described 

below, Subject Premises-2 likely contains evidence relating to Cohen's consulting work, his 

finances, and his payment to Clifford, as well as electronic devices containing such evidence. 

Subject Premises-3, as described below, likely contains evidence relating to Cohen's assets and 

finances, including assets that may not have been disclosed to banks in connection with the 

refinancing of Cohen's taxi medallion debt or documents relating to such assets, and documents 

or evidence related to Cohen's payment to Clifford. Subject Premises-4 likely contains electronic 
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2017.08.G2 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 113 of 269

devices, including Subject Device-1 and Subject Device-2, which themselves contain evidence of 

the Subject Offenses, including concerning Cohen's taxi medallion loans, his negotiations with 

banks, his personal finances, his consulting work, his tax returns, and his payment to Clifford. 

Accordingly, and as set forth in more detail below, there is probable cause to believe that the 

Subject Premises and Subject Devices will include evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

B. Probable Cause Regarding Subjects' Commission of the Subject Offenses7 

---------------~-The BanlfFraud Scfieme --------~ 

(i) Cohen's Statements to Sterling National Bank 

16. As set forth in detail below, in 2014, Cohen, through LLCs controlled by him and 

his wife, Laura Cohen, entered into a series ofloans from Sterling National Bank ("Sterling") and 

the Melrose Credit Union ("Melrose"), secured by taxi medallions, for approximately $20 million. 

Though entered into by LLCs, the loans were also secured by personal guarantees in the names of 

both Cohen and his wife. Over time, as the taxi industry weakened and the medallions lost value, 

Cohen sought to renegotiate the terms of those loans and/or relieve himself from their obligations, 

including the personal guarantees. As part of that effort, Cohen made a series ofrepresentations 

to Sterling and Melrose about his net worth, assets~ available cash and income, among other things. 

Specifically, based on my review of records maintained by Sterling and Melrose, and public 

sources concerning the taxi industry and the value of taxi medallions, as well as my participation 

in interviews with a Sterling executive vice-president (the "Sterling Employee-I") and two other 

7 In the following recitation of probable cause, I frequently refer to phone calls or text messages 

involving Cohen. The text messages described herein as sent or received by Cohen were all sent 

or received from the telephone numbers associated with Subject Device-I or Subject Device-2. 

The vast majority of the phone calls described herein made or rnceived by Cohen were made or 

received by the telephone numbers associated with Subject Device-1 or Subject Device-2, although 

in certain limited instances Cohen used a landline or other phone. 
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Sterling employees ("Sterling Employee-2" and "Sterling Employee-3"), I have learned, among 

other things, the following: 

a. Taxi medallions are small metal plaques affixed to taxis. Without a medallion, it 

is illegal to operate a taxi in cities with medallion systems, such as New York City. Cohen and his 

wife own multiple LLCs that collectively own 32 taxi medallions ( each LLC owns two 

medallions).8 Cohen's purchase of these New York taxi medallions was originally financed by 

operator, and leased his medallions to a third party. That third party made monthly payments to 

Cohen, who in turn used some of those proceeds to make his monthly loan payments to Capital 

One. 

b. In early 2014, Cohen became a customer of Sterling when he sought to refinance a 

mortgage on a rental property-that he owned. In or around April 2014, Cohen raised with Sterling 

the prospect of refinancing his taxi medallion loans, which were then at Capital One. By in or about 

September 2014, Cohen began negotiating a lending transaction with Sterling that would allow 

Cohen to pay off his loans at Capital One and borrow more money from the then-increase in value 

of the medallions. According to Sterling Employee- I, in 2014, prior to the recent upheaval in the 

taxi industry-as a result of the emergence of ride-sharing services, such as Uber-taxi medallion 

loans were viewed by banks and investors as safe, short term credits, as the market value of taxi 

medallions was consistently rising. Consequently, taxi medallion loans-like the loans held by 

Cohen-were frequently refinanced at increasing amounts as the value of the medallions rose. 

According to Sterling Employee-I, borrowers typically cashed out the increase in the loan amount 

8 One of these companies, Mad Dog Cab Corp., was jointly owned by Sondra Cohen, who I 

believe is Cohen's mother. 
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and used the additional funds for other purposes. Cohen appears to have followed this approach in 

2014, when he agreed to refmance his medallion loans for approximately $22 million, which­

according to letters from Capital One in Sterling's files-was greater than his previous debt at 

Capital One Bank ($21 million, of which $14.6 million was a line of credit to Cohen). This allowed 

Cohen to cash out the proceeds from the transaction. 

c. Based on my reviey; of records maintained by Sterling, I have learned that on or 

about December 8, 20 f4, eacli of Cofien'ssixteenfaxirneualliDifLLCs enterea. ~intfflo-an agreements~~ 

and promissory notes with Steriing for the principal sum of $1,375,000, with repayment due on 

December 8, 2016. Each loan was signed by Michael or Laura Cohen, depending on who was the 

sole shareholder of the LLC. The address listed for each of the LLCs was the address for Subject 

Premises-I. The loans were also each secured by a security agreement, dated the same day, mal~ing 

the medallions collateral for the notes. To give Sterling additional security, Michael and Laura 

Cohen signed personal guarantees and confessions of judgment, giving Sterling the right to pursue 

collection against the Cohens' personal assets were their corporations to default under the loan 

agreements. The personal guaranty agreements stated that the LLCs had offices at the address for 

Subject Premises-I, and contained a notice provision that stated that any notices required by the 

agreements should be mailed to Subject Premises- I. In total, Sterling agreed to lend approximately 

$22 million to the Cohens' companies. 

d. Pursuant to participation agreements, Sterling transferred 45 percent of Cohen's 

taxi medallion debt to Melrose. 9 

9 Melrose, which had a business principally focused on taxi medallion loans, is now in 

conservatorship by the National Credit Union Administration ("NCUA"). 
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e. In evaluating Cohen's requested refmancing of the taxi medallions, Sterling (and 

Melrose, consistent with its participation in the deal) conducted due diligence. At Sterling's 

request, Cohen provided Sterling with a statement of financial condition, dated August 1, 2014 

(the "August 2014 Financial Statement"), which indicated that Cohen had $100,740,000 in total 

assets, $23,550,000 in total liabilities, and a net worth of $77, 190,000.1° From my review of a 

Sterling credit memorandum, dated September 29, 2014, I know that Sterling viewed the 

transaction favorably because, accounting fodoan payments; casnflows trortrthime-dalliorrs-were-----­

projected to be positive, the value of the collateral (as estimated by Sterling) exceeded $42 million, 

and the net worth of Cohen-who was the direct obligor under the guarantee agreements-was 

over $77 million. An internal Sterling credit and risk rating analysis report, dated October 20, 

2014, recommended approval of the loans for substantially the same reasons. 

f. Based on my review of records maintained by Sterling and public sources, I have 

learned that over time, the collateral backing Cohen's loans (taxi medallions) lessened in value due 

to the rise in ride-sharing companies. Additionally, Cohen began falling behind on loan payments 

to Sterling and Melrose. I know from records maintained by Sterling and an interview with Sterling 

Employee-2 that, beginning in or around September 2015, Cohen told Sterling, in sum and 

substance, that the individual leasing Cohen's medallions had fallen behind in making payments to 

Cohen, and that as a result, the monthly cash flow from his taxi medallions had been reduced, 

leaving him with a shortfall of approximately $16,000 each month. For instance, I have reviewed 

an email from Sterling Employee-2, dated September 9, 2015, summarizing a call with Cohen­

which according to the email and toll records for Cohen's cellphone occurred on September 8, 

10 Cohen subsequently provided Sterling with a revised statement of financial condition, also 

datedAugust 1, 2014, which reported assets of$99,420,000, total liabilities of$23,550,000, and a 

net worth of $75,870,000. 
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2015---during which Cohen told Sterling Employee-2, in sum and substance, about his cash flow 

problems and a monthly shortfall of approximately $16,000. In that same email, Sterling 

Employee-2 commented that despite Cohen's statements, his personal financial information 

"indicate[ d] a strong ability to make up the difference in payments." Cohen, however, according 

to Sterling Employee-2, pushed the bank for a reduction in Cohen's monthly payments. 

g. From my review of records maintained by Sterling and my participation in an 

again oil September 28, 2015, and that during the call Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that the 

individual to whom Cohen leases the medallions had again reduced monthly payments to Cohen. I 

know from my review of records maintained by Sterling that between in or about September 2015 

and November 2015, Sterling raised the possibility-both internally and with Cohen-of Cohen 

posting his real estate holdings, personal residence, or some other collateral as additional security 

for the banks.11 According to these records, however, Cohen resisted these requests. From my 

review of loan documents and records maintained by Sterling, I lmow that in or about November 

2015, as a result of Cohen's representation that he was not earning sufficient returns on his 

medallions to cover monthly interest payments, Sterling and Melrose agreed to amend their loans 

with Cohen by, among other things, reducing the interest rate Cohen paid to Melrose and extending 

the loan maturity date to December 8, 2017. 

h. I lmow from intenriews with Sterling Employee-I and Sterling Employee-2, as well 

as emails I have reviewed, that in or about October 2016, Cohen told Sterling Employee-I that 

Cohen had a potential buyer of his taxi medallions, named Fred Weingarten, who would agree to 

11 Based on my review of property records, I know that on or about October 28, 2015, around 

the time period when Sterling raised the possibility of Cohen posting his personal residence-

Subject Premises-I-as collateral, Cohen transferred Subject Premises-I into a trust. • 
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assume Cohen's debt with Sterling and Melrose. Based on my review of records maintained by 

Sterling, as well as the interviews with Sterling Employee-I and Sterling Employee-2 referenced 

abov~, I know that by or before October 2016, Cohen had entered into negotiations to sell his sixteen 

corporate taxi medallion entities to 

for the balance of the loans, which at the time was $21,376,000. I know from my review of records 

maintained by Sterling, and my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, that as a 

condition of the transfer of the -medallion loans-· and-6ecauseSrerlmg was unfamiltarwith-·■-----­

-Sterling requested that Cohen make a substantial principal payment on the loan, of 

approximately one million dollars, prior to the transfer. Cohen rejected this request initially. But 

on or about January 31, 2017, Cohen told Sterling Employee-I, in sum and substance, that he would 

make a one million dollar principal reduction payment in order to move forward with the medallion 

transfer deal with Indeed, in an email sent by Cohen to Sterling Employee-2 on or 

about February 22, 201 7, Cohen confirmed that he "agreed to pay down 1 million from the loan 

amount." 

1. Pursuant to the participation agreements between Sterling and Melrose, Sterling 

was required to secure Melrose's agreement to participate in the transfer of the taxi medallion debt 

from Cohen to . On or about April 17, 2017, Sterling sent a memorandum to 

Melrose summarizing the terms of the proposed transaction, and noting the requirement that 

Melrose agree to the terms. On or about May 2, 2017, Sterling Employee-I told 

that Melrose had agreed to the deal in principle, and that Sterling would be sending the parties a 

term sheet shortly. 

j. In order for the banks to conduct diligence and evaluate the proposed transaction 

fully, they requested financial info1mation from the parties. On or about June 7, 2017, Sterling 

16 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 119 of 269

Employee-I emailed Cohen to request an "updated personal financial statement," completed 

jointly with Cohen's wife, and Cohen's most recent federal income tax return. On or about June 

8, 2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-1 a Sterling personal financial statement form that had 

been filled out by hand, which referenced a statement of financial condition, dated May 1, 2017 

(the "May 2017 Financial Statement") that was also attached. The May 2017 Financial Statement 

included a cover letter from Cohen's accountant, Jeffrey Getzel, stating, in sum and substance, that 

-~~ -----~ --the information inthestatement came from-Colien-ana tharGetzernacl nofconfirmed itsaccuracy- ----~---

or completeness. The May 2017 Financial Statement stated that Cohen had total assets of 

$41,955,000, total liabilities of $39,130,000, and a net worth of $2,825,000. The May 2017 

Financial Statement indicated that Cohen's assets were comprised of $1,250,000 in cash, 

$26,155,000 in closely held companies (such as the taxi medallion entities and his real estate 

holdings), $3,200,000 in real estate investments, and his $11,000,000 personal residence.12 

k. Based on my review of reports of law enforcement interviews of Sterling 

Employee-I, I have learned that Sterling Employee-I reviewed the May 2017 Financial Statement 

with Cohen to, among other things, verify its accuracy, and Sterling Employee-I asked Cohen about 

specific line items on the financial statement, including the cash amount, value of medallions, and 

total liabilities. Cohen stated to Sterling Employee-I, in sum and substance, that the May 2017 

Financial Statement was accurate. 

1. On or about August 16, 2017, Sterling Employee-I emailed Cohen and Allen 

Weingarten, attaching a non-binding term sheet memorializing the potential transaction between 

12 Based on my review of Cohen's financial statements, I know that the precipitous decline in 

assets from his 2014 financial statement to his 2017 financial statements can be explained 

primarily by reported depreciation in the value of Cohen's real estate assets and medallion 

investments. 
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Sterling, Melrose, Cohen, anc The term sheet included a cover letter addressed 

to Cohen at Subject Premises-I. The parties negotiated the provisions of the term sheet and, on or 

about September 5, 2017, Sterling Employee-I sent, :1nd Cohen a copy of the 

executed term sheet. According to the term sheet,] ould borrow $20,000,000 

from Sterling and Melrose, to be secured by the medallions that -;1,1as to acquire from 

Cohen. 

m. As part of the agreement, according to the term .slieet, $'1~2o.5~9I3-in principat(wh:tch:~~-- ----------~------·f 

is what would remain after the $20,000,000 payment on the outstanding loan balance) would be 

repaid by Cohen and the two banks, with Cohen paying fifty percent and the banks dividing the 

remaining half of the balance. Based on my review of an internal Sterling credit memorandum, 

dated October 4, 2017, the parties reached a preliminary agreement that Cohen would pay $632,956 

of the remaining $1,265,912 principal loan balance, and Sterling and Melrose would absorb 

$357,167 and $275,789, respectively, in the form of charge-offs. According to Sterling Employee-

1, Sterling was willing to divide the repayment of the outstanding principal balance-despite its 

prior insistence that Cohen make a principal pay-down of at least one million dollars-because 

Cohen represented on a telephone call with Sterling Employee-I, in sum and substance, that he had 

insufficient liquidity to pay the full outstanding principal balance. As part of the agreement, Sterling 

and Melrose also agreed to relieve Cohen and his wife of the personal guarantees that they made 

on behalf of the LLCs. Thus, after completing the -transaction, Cohen would no longer 

have had any outstanding obligations to Sterling or Melrose. 

n. Based on my review of emails sent by Sterling employees, I have learned that 

because the transaction between the parties was subject to full credit underwriting by Sterling and 

Melrose (as well as Melrose's regulators at NCUA), in August and September 2017, Sterling 
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required and requested additional financial statements and tax returns for Cohen and -

for its credit underwriting process. In response to Sterling's requests, on or about September 25, 

2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-2 a copy of his 2016 tax return. The tax return listed 

Cohen's mailing address as Subject Premises-I. Additionally, on or about October 5, 2017, Cohen 

re-sent Sterling Employee-2 a copy of his May 2017 Financial Statement. A day later, on October 

6, 2017, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-2 a statement of financial condition, dated September 

---· ··-·····---------·=--=----=-=~---:--::----'-:-:-::--------:-~--=-=-=:----c--c-cc---~ 

30, 2017 (the "September 2017 Financial Statement"). 

o. Like the May 2017 Financial Statement, the September 2017 Financial Statement 

included a cover letter from Jeffrey Getzel, Cohen's accountant, stating, in sum and substance, that 

the information in the statement came from Cohen, and that Getzel had not confirmed its accuracy 

or completeness. The September 2017 Financial Statement stated that Cohen had total assets of 

$33,430,000, total liabilities of $45,630,000, and a negative net worth of $12,200,000. 13 Notably, 

unlike Cohen's May 2017 Financial Statement, the September 2017 Financial Statement 

represented to Sterling that Cohen had a negative net worth. The September 2017 Financial 

Statement indicated that Cohen's assets were comprised of $1,250,000 in cash, $17,630,000 in 

closely held companies (including the taxi medallion entities and his real estate holdings), 14 

$3,200,000 in real estate investments, and his $11,000,000 personal residence (which, for the"first 

13 Based on my review of Cohen's financial statements, I know that this further decline in 

assets can be explained primarily by reported depreciation in the value of Cohen's real estate assets 

and medallion investments. 

14 Notably, the September 2017 Financial Statement valued each of Cohen's thirty-two New 

York taxi medallions at approximately $180,187.50, which was considerably less than the 

$650,000 valuation ascribed to each medallion in the Cohen-Weingarten term sheet. 
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time, he indicated was held by a trust).15 The September 201 7 Financial Statement included assets 

and liabilities not held in Cohen's name, such as various entities associ~ted with his taxi medallions 

and some of his real estate investment entities. 

p. From my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, and my review of 

records maintained by Sterling, I have also learned that around the time Cohen provided Sterling 

with these financial statements-i.e., in or around September 2017-Cohen stopped paying 

monthly loan payments on nis-taxi -me-'dallfotr loamrnlto-gether:-Acc-ording-to-Sterling-Emp loyee---. --·---·--·----·--'" ,[J 

. I 

2, Cohen informed Sterling, in sum and substance, that he had insufficient funds to pay the monthly I 
principal and interest payments on his medallion loans. By in or about December 2017, Sterling 

and Melrose had not been paid approximately $276,937.92 in monthly principal and interest 

payments on the medallion loans. Based on Cohen's financial condition as conveyed in the 

September 2017 Financial Statement, and his delinquency in making payments to Sterling, among 

other things, the bank's credit underwriting committee dete1mined ( and memorialized in a 

December 2017 memorandum) that the Cohen--'.ransaction was favorable for the bank 

- that is, that '-would be a better borrower than Cohen. 

q. On or about December 26, 2017, Sterling sent Cohen a demand letter requesting 

the immediate receipt of past-due loan payments. The demand letter was addressed to Cohen at 

Subject Premises-I. On December 29, 2017, Sterling sent Cohen a letter stating that he was in 

default under the loans between Sterling and Cohen's medallion corporations. The notice of 

default was addressed to Cohen at Subject Premises-I. Cohen did not make an immediate payment 

on the loans, but instead sent an e-mail to Sterling Employee-I on or about January 24, 2018, 

15 Based on my review of property records maintained by the City of New York, and my 

paiiicipation in an interview with Getzel, I know that in 2015, Cohen transferred his residence to 

a trust. He did not disclose that transaction to Getzel or Sterling until in or about September 2017. 
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stating that during the closing of the Cohen--:ransaction, Cohen would "bring all 

payments up to date as well as deposit the payoff differential." Cohen also requested by email on 

January 24, 2018, that at the closing of the Cohen-"'I-transaction, Sterling provide a letter 

stating that all of Cohen's debts have been satisfied and that Cohen's personal gt1arantees of the 

medallion loans had been terminated. 

r. The Cohen-"'1-transaction, however, did not close. On or about January 

t 

I 
I 
I 
I 
ii 
f 
i 

29, 2018, the attorney emaifeaafforneys forSterlingahaslatea----'tnaC''a:nhis-time------ I 
there is no deal with Michael Cohen. Some of the numbers have changed and we are not prepared 

to go forward." 

s. Based on my participation in the interview with Sterling Employee-2 and my 

review of records maintained by Sterling, I know that after the Cohen- deal fell apart, 

Sterling assigned Cohen's loans to Sterling Employee-3, who specializes in collecting on 

defaulting loans. From my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-3, my review of 

telephone call notes taken by Sterling Employee-3, and my review of telephone records, I know 

that Sterling Employee-3 spoke several times to Cohen on or about January 30, 2018 about paying 

down and/or restructuring Cohen's outstanding taxi medallion loans. On the calls, which in total 

lasted more than an hour, Cohen stated in sum and substance that he did not have more than 

$1,250,000 to pay toward the medallion loans. On the call, in the course of reviewing the failed 

transaction, Sterling Employee-3 questioned Cohen about the price 

ras to have paid for each medallion, and whether there was a side agreement between 

Cohen and ·- Cohen denied that there was any side agreement with • 

t. On or about January 31, 2018, Cohen emailed Sterling Employee-3 and proposed 

paying $500,000 to bring the loans current and $750,000 to bring the principal balance to 
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$20,500,000. Cohen also suggested revised monthly interest payment amounts. The signature 

block on the email indicated that Cohen's address was the address for Subject Premises-2. On or 

about January 31, 2018, Sterling Employee-3 responded to Cohen and stated, in sum and 

substance, that Cohen would need to pay the entirety of the overdue payments and pay down the 

principal balance of the loan to $20,000,000 (in total, a payment of approximately $1,750,000), 

and would need to make larger monthly interest payments. 

-~--u.~0n-or-about-February-l,--2018,C0hen-emailed-Ster-ling-Employee""3-and-proposecL--"" 

"[p]ayment of $1.250m which ALL can be used to pay down principal, if [Sterling] will waive 

past due amounts," but stated "I do NOT have more than the $1.250m." (Emphasis in original.) 

Cohen also stated, in sum and substance, that he had insufficient financial resources to post 

additional collateral or pre-fund monthly payments. The signature block on the email indicated 

that Cohen's address was the address for Subject Premises-2. Based on my participation in an 

interview with Sterling Employee-3, I have learned that since January 30, 2018, Sterling has 

continued to renegotiate the medallion loans with Cohen based on Cohen's representations about 

his current financial position. In particular, according to Sterling Employee-3, Cohen and Sterling 

have an agreement in principal to restructure Cohen's loans based in part of Cohen's agreement to 

make a principal payment of approximately $750,000, to make a payment of $500,000 to become 

current on interest payments, and to post $192,000 in cash collateral for his future monthly 

payments on the loan. Cohen also agreed to pledge an interest he had in a property. Sterling 

Employee-3 has stated that had Cohen indicated he had more than $1,250,000 available to him, 

Sterling would have, among other things, negotiated for a larger reduction to the principal amount 

of the loan. 
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(ii) Cohen Made Material Misrepresentations About His Finances to Banks 

Cohen Concealed from Sterling and Melrose Cash Derived from Consulting Work 

17. As set forth in detail below, despite multiple written and oral representations by 

Cohen to Sterling (and, by extension, Melrose16) that he had insufficient funds to pay down the 

principal balance of the medallion loans, make monthly , interest payments, or pay past-due 

accounts and received these funds during the very period in which he made disclosures to Sterling 

about his personal finances (including his assets and liabilities) and his ability to make payments 

on the medallion loans. In these disclosures to Sterling-and despite being asked about these bank 

accounts by his accountant-Cohen misled the bank by claiming he had insufficient liquidity to 

satisfy his obligations or meet the bank's demands, while withholding information about these 

ongoing revenue streams and liquid financial assets at First Republic. 

18. Specifically, ,based on my review of documents and bank records produced 

pursuant to a subpoena by First Republic, and my participation in and review of reports of 

interviews with a First Republic sales manager ("First Republic Employee-I") and a First Republic 

senior managing director ("First Republic Employee-2"), I have learned, among other things, the 

following: 

16 Based on my review of a report of an interview conducted with an employee of Melrose, I 

have learned that, pursuant to the participation agreement between Sterling and Melrose, Cohen's 

financial statements and other records in Sterling's possession were forwarded to Melrose so that 

Melrose could make a determination as to whether to approve of the Cohen-'­

transaction. Based on my review of reports of interviews with Melrose employees, I also know 

that Cohen called employees at Melrose regarding the Cohen-1-transaction. 
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a. Cohen and his wife have been customers of First Republic since approximately 

June 2011. Cohen controls several checking and loan accounts at First Republic, some in his own 

name and others in the names of corporate entities. According to First Republic's know-your­

customer records on Cohen, 17 his primary physical address is the address for Subject Premises-1. 

b._ On or about October 26, 2016, in Manhattan, New York, Cohen opened a new 

----~che:ki~=-~ccount at First Republic in the name of~ssential Consultants LLC (the "Essential / 

Consultants Account"). Cohen was the only authorized signatory on1lie accounc-A:ccorcling-to~--------------------_J: 

account opening documents, the primary address for Essential Consultants LLC was the address 

for Subject Premises-1. When Cohen opened the Essential Consultants Account, First Republic 

Employee-1 conducted an in-person interview of Cohen. In response to a series of know-your­

customer questions about the purpose of the account-the answers to which First Republic 

Employee-1 entered into a form 18-Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he was opening 

Essential Consultants as a real estate consulting company to collect fees for investment consulting 

work, and all of his consulting clients would be domestic individuals based in the United States. 

Cohen also stated, in sum and substance, that his purpose in setting up the account was to keep the 

revenue from his consulting business-which he said was not his main source of income-separate 

from his personal finances. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen's 

statements about the intended purpose of the account and source of funds for the account were 

false. Specifically, as described below, the account was not intended to receive-and does not 

17 Certain financial institutions are required to conduct such procedures pursuant to the Bank 

Secrecy Act and its implementing regulations. See 31 U.S.C. § 5318; 31 C.F.R. § 1020.220. 

18 First Republic Employee-1 first filled out the form on the day he interviewed Cohen, October 

• 26, 2016. On or about December 19, 2016, at the request of bank compliance personnel, First 

Republic Employee-1 updated the form to add more detail about Cohen's statements. 
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appear to have received-money in connection with real estate consulting work; in _addition, the 

account has received substantial payments from foreign sources. 

c. I know from my review of First Republic bank records that were scheduled by an 

FBI forensic accountant that after Cohen opened the Essential Consultants Account, Cohen 

received payments into that account from foreign businesses and entities that do not reflect the 

stated client profile for the residential and commercial real-estate consulting services. Specifically, 

from my review of the Essential Consultants Account scfieaufi::-and puofic sources, 1-1mowthe--~-­

following: 

i. Beginning on or about January 31, 2017, Cohen began receiving monthly 

payments of $83,333 into the Essential Consultants Account from an entity called Columbus Nova 

LLC. According to public sources, Columbus Nova is an investment management firm controlled 

by Renova Group, an industrial holding company based in Zurich, Switzerland that is controlled 

by Russian national Viktor Vekselberg. From January 2017 to August 2017, the Essential 

Consultants Account received seven payments totaling $583,332.98 from Columbus Nova LLC. 

ii. Beginning on or about April 5, 2017, the Essential Consultants Account 

began receiving payments from Novartis Investments, SARL, which I believe to be the in-house 

financial subsidiary of the Swiss pharmaceutical company Novartis International AG (''Novartis"). 

Between April 2017 and February 2018, the Essential Consultants Account received eleven wire 

payments from a Swiss bank account held in the name of Novartis, each in the amount of $99,980, 

for a total of $1,099,780. 

iii. Beginning in or about April 2017, the Essential Consultants Account started 

receiving wire payments from a bank account associated with the telecommunications company 

AT&T Inc. ("AT&T"). Specifically, on or about April 14, 2017, AT&T sent $100,000 to the 
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Essential Consultants Account and, from in or about June 2017 to in or about January 2018, the 

Essential Consultants Account received ten $50,000 payments from AT&T. In total, AT&T sent 

$600,000 to the Essential Consultants Account. 

iv. On or about May 10, 2017, June 9, 2017, July 10, 2017, and November 27, 

2017, the Essential Consultants Account received four deposits in the amount $150,000 (totaling 

$600,000) from a bank account in South Korea. The account holder from which the money was 

------sent-is-Korea-Aerospace-Industries-Ltd,-(-''KAI,,). KAI"is_ a-South_Korea-based_company_thaL __ _ 

produces and sells fixed-wing aircraft, helicopter aircraft, and satellites to the United States 

Department of Defense, among other customers. 

v. On or about May 22, 2017, the Essential Consultants Account received a 

$150,000 deposit from an account at Kazkommertsbank, a Kazakhstani bank. The listed account 

holder at Kazkommertsbank was a second Kazakhstani bank named BTA Bank, AO. A message 

accompanying the wire payment indicated that the payment was a "monthly consulting fee as per 

Inv BTA-101 DD May 10, 2017 consulting agreement WIN DD 08 05 2017 CNTR W/NDD 

08/05/2017." 

vi. In total, from on or about January 31, 2017 to on or about February 1, 2018, 

the Essential Consultants Account received approximately $3,033,112.98 in transfers and checks 

from the aforementioned entities. As of on or about January 10, 2018, the balance in the Essential 

Consultants Account was $1,369,474.23. Cohen's withdrawals from the Essential Consultants 

account reveal that it was used for largely personal purposes, including to pay, among other things, 

American Express bills and fees from "the Core Club," a private social club in New York. 

d. On or about April 4, 2017, Cohen opened another new checking account at First 

Republic, this one in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates, P.C. (the "MDC&A Account"). 
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Cohen was the only authorized signatory on the account. According to account opening 

documents, the primary address for MDC&A Account was the address for Subject Premises-I. 

Among other things, the MDC&A Account received ten wire transfers and one check from an 

account in the name of Squire Patton Boggs, a law firm. As noted above, Subject Premises-2 is 

located inside the New York office of Squire Patton Boggs. In total, from on or about April 5, 

2017, to on or about January 2, 2018, the MDC&A Account received $426,097.70 in deposits, and 

the balance in the account as of January 2, 2OTS:-was $344~521-T3~5~~Ascl.iscussea below, Cohen 

never disclosed any of the balance in the Essential Consultants or MDC&A accounts to Sterling 

during the negotiations with respect to the transaction or the subsequent loan 

refinancing negotiations, including in his May 2017 Financial Statement and September 2017 

Financial Statement. 

19. Based on my review of emails that were seized pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants, and my review of reports of interviews with employees of AT&T and Novartis, it 

appears that the aforementioned payments to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A 

Account were for political consulting work, including consulting for international clients on issues 

pending before the Trump administration. Specifically, from my review of emails from the Cohen 

Gmail Account, the Cohen MDCPC Account, and public sources, I have learned the following: 

a. On or about April 28, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an individual whom I believe 

is affiliated with KAI. In the email, Cohen attached a "Consulting Agreement" between KAI and 

Essential Consultants dated as of about May 1, 2017. The agreement indicates that Essential 

Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-2. The document indicates that Essential 

Consultants would render "consulting and advisory services, as requested" by KAI, and that KAI 

would pay Essential Consultants "a consulting fee of One Million Two Hundred Thousand 
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($1,200,000.00) US Dollars," disbursed through eight $150,000 installments between May 2017 

and December 2017. I have also reviewed invoices in amounts of $150,000 that Cohen emailed 

to an individual whom I believe is affiliated with KAI. At the top of the invoices the address listed 

for Essential Consultants is the address for Subject Premises-2. 

b. On or about May 8, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an individual whom I believe is 

affiliated with BTA Bank. The signature block on Cohen's email listed "Essential Consultants 

LLC" and "Michael D. Cohen & Associates, PC" ancrproviaea1lie addresiffor SuojecrPremises- ~~· 

2. In the email, Cohen attached a document purporting to be a "Consulting Agreement" between 

B TA Bank and Essential Consultants dated as of about May 8, 2017. The agreement indicates that 

Essential Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-2. The document indicates that 

Essential Consultants would render "consulting and advisory services" to BTA Bank, and that 

BTA Bank would pay Essential Consultants "a consulting fee of One Million Eight Hundred 

Thousand ($1,800,000.00) US Dollars," disbursed through monthly payments of $150,000. On or 

about May 10, 2017, Cohen sent an email to an employee ofBTA Bank, and attached to the email 

an invoice to BTA Bank in the name of Essential Consultants, with the address of Subject Premises-

2. The invoice contemplated a $150,000 payment to Essential Consultants for a "monthly 

consulting fee." 

c. On or about January 23, 2017, Cohen appears to have entered into a consulting 

agreement with AT&T, which contemplates that Essential Consultants "shall render consulting and 

advisory services to [AT&T]" and that AT&T would "advise [Essential Consultants] of those issues 

and matters with respect to which AT&T Services desires [Essential Consultants]' s assistance and 

advice." The agreement indicates that Essential Consultants had the address of Subject Premises-

1. The contract calls for AT&T "to pay the Consultant for his services ... a consulting fee of Fifty 
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Thousand ($50,000) Dollars ... per month." Based on my review of reports of interviews with 

AT&T employees, I have learned that AT&T retained Cohen to consult on political issues, 

including net neutrality, the merger between AT&T and Time Warner, and tax reform. 

d. On or about March 1, 2017, Cohen appears to have entered into a contract between 

Novartis and Essential Consultants, which provides that Essential Consultants will "provide 

consulting and advisory services to Novartis on matters that relate to the repeal and replacement of 

--------------th@--Affordable-Garn-Act---in-the--US-and -any-other-issues----mutually-agreeable--to--[Essential--------~- -----------­

Consultants] and Novartis." The contract provides for a "consulting fee of One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand ($1,200,000) US dollars," to be paid to Essential Consultants in equal monthly 

installments over the course of a year. Based on my review of reports of interviews with Novartis 

employees, I have learned that Novartis retained Cohen to provide political consulting services and 

to gain access to relevant policymakers in the Trump Administration. 

e. In or about February 2017, Cohen began negotiating the terms of a "strategic 

alliance" with Squire Patton Boggs. On or about March 4, 2017, Squire Patton Boggs emailed 

Cohen a "strategic alliance agreement." Under the terms of the agreement, Cohen agreed to 

generate business for the law firm, and Squire Patton Boggs agreed to pay to Cohen "an annual 

strategic alliance fee of $500,000, payable in twelve (12) equal monthly installments." Squire 

Patton Boggs also agreed to provide Cohen with "dedicated and segregated office space in [Squire 

Patton Boggs's] New York and Washington D.C. offices, which office space shall be physically 

separate from [Squire Patton Boggs's] offices and have locked doors and its own locked file 

cabinets." On or about April 3, 2017, Squire Patton Boggs announced on its website that is had 

formed a "strategic alliance" with Michael D. Cohen & Associates and would "jointly represent 

clients." 
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20. Despite the significant amount of money that Cohen received into the Essential 

Consultants Account and the J\1DC&A Account, and the cash balance in both accounts, Cohen did 

not disclose that information to Sterling or Melrose. Specifically, based on my review of documents 

provided by Getzel (as noted above, Cohen's accountant at the time), my participation in an 

interview with Getzel, and my review of notes anc 

have learned the following: 

I 

a.-In-or- abouLMay-20-1-7,-GetzeLmeLwith-Cohen_aLSubj ecLPremises,,2._AL the _____ _ 

meeting, Cohen told Getzel, in sum and substance, that he had set up a law practice called Michael 

D. Cohen & Associates P.C., and a consulting company called Essential Consultants LLC. Cohen 

told Getzel, in sum and substance, that he expected to earn $75,000 per month in connection with 

his law practice, and that he expected gross revenues for the consulting business to be between five 

and six million dollars annually. 

b. In or about October 2017, if not earlier, Getzel was preparing a personal financial 

statement for Cohen. On or about October 6, 2017, Getzel sent an email to Cohen in which Getzel 

wrote that "[a]ttached is a draft of the new PFS as of September 30, 2017" and attached a draft of 

the September 2017 Financial Statement. The draft statement reflected that as of September 30, 

2017, Cohen had only $1,250,000 in cash, total assets of approximately $33,430,000 (comprised of 

taxi medallion interests, real estate interests, and his personal residence and property), and liabilities 

of approximately $45,630,000, leaving him purportedly over $12 million in debt. In the same email, 

Getzel questioned Cohen, in sum and substance, about the fact that the financial statement did not 

list any value associated with either the Essential Consultants Account or the J\1DC&A Account: 

"[w]e did not add any value for you[r] two operating entities - Michael D. Cohen & Associates 
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POC [sic] and Essential Consultants LLC. Please advise whether or not these should be disclosed 

and what value." 

c. On or about October 6, 2017, Cohen called Getzel by telephone-which is reflected 

on toll records for Cohen's cellphone-and told Getzel, in sum and substance, not to include 

Essential Consultants or MDC&A in the September 2017 Financial Statement because they had no 

value. On or about October 6, 2017, following the call with Getzel, Cohen, using the Cohen 
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Account, responded to Getzel' s email with the answer "[l]ooks-goocfto me."-Conen-n~verdirected----- -------- ·1 
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Getzel to make any changes to his cash position as listed in the September 2017 Financial 

Statement. In a letter dated October 6, 2017, addressed to Getzel, Cohen stated, "I have reviewed 

the attached statement of financial condition and find it to be correct and consistent with the 

representations that I made to your firm. The attached is an accurate reflection of my assets, 

liabilities and net worth (deficit) as of September 30, 2017." Attached to that letter was the 

September 2017 Financial Statement, which, as noted above, was then transmitted to Sterling in 

connection with the proposed taxi medallion transaction between Sterling, Cohen, and 

21. Based on my review of a report of an interview with Sterling Employee-I, I have 

learned that Cohen did not disclose his income stream from Essential Consultants to Sterling 

Employee-I or, to his knowledge, anyone else at Sterling. According to Sterling Employee-I, 

knowledge of such an income stream would have affected Sterling's demands during the 

negotiations, particularly with respect to the amount of a principal paydown of Cohen's debt. 

Cohen Understated His Available Cash 

22. In addition to withholding the existence of his Essential Consultants income from 

Sterling and Melrose, it appears that Cohen also substantially understated his available cash and 

cash equivalents in his financial disclosures. Specifically, I know from my review of the September 
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2017 Financial Statement that Cohen provided to Sterling that Cohen represented that he had 

$1,250,000 in cash as of September 30, 2017. I also know that on or about January 30, 2018, in a 

• telephone call with Sterling Employee-3, and on February 1, 2018, in an email to Sterling 

Employee-3, Cohen represented that he did not have more than $1,250,000 in cash. But, from my 

review of a summary of bank records that were scheduled by forensic accountants, I have learned 

that Cohen had approximately $5,000,000 in cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2017. 

Additionally, • as of F eoruary-l~I0T8~Colien-liad approximately$6~000;000-iu--cash-and-cash-·· 

equivalents. Specifically, from my review of the account schedule and bank records, I have learned 

the following: 

a. Cohen has three checking and/or savings accounts at Capital One Bank, one of 

which is in his wife's name. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $1,105,680.35 in his savings 

account, and $1,262,982.29 in total in the three accounts at Capital One Bank. As of February 1, 

2018, Cohen had a total of $1,389,245.78 in these accounts. 

b. Cohen has three accounts at Morgan Stanley in his name. As of September 30, 

2017, the combined total in cash and cash equivalents in those three accounts was $1,270,600.41. 

As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $1,284.996.13 in these accounts. 

c. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $260,689.18 in an account at Signature Bank. 

As ofFebruary 1, 2018, Cohen had $261,517.55 in this account. 

d. In addition to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A Account at First 

Republic, Cohen also had two joint checking accounts with Laura Cohen at First Republic. In total, 

as of September 30, 2017, Cohen had at least $1,876,209.27 in total in his four accounts at First 

Republic. As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $3,332,992.95 in these accounts. 
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e. Cohen has an account at Bethpage Credit Union with $25,931.39 in it as of 

September 30, 2017. 

f. As of September 30, 2017, Cohen had $17,542.54 in accounts at Sterling. 

g. Cohen has two accounts at TD Bank-one in his name and one held jointly with his 

wife. Cohen also has a safety deposit box at TD Bank-Subject Premises-3. The safety deposit 

box was opened on December 13,2017 in the names of Michael and Laura Cohen. 

h:--Jniotatas-of-S-eptember-30,---20-1-7-;-eohen·hadatleast-$4,7-13,93-5~08--in-his-account,~------ -1 

at Capital One Bank, City National Bank, Signature Bank, Sterling Bank, Bethpage Credit Union, 

First Republic, and Morgan Stanley. As of February 1, 2018, Cohen had $6,268,732.59 in his 

accounts at Capital One Bank, City National Bank, Signature Bank, First Republic, and Morgan 

Stanley.19 

23. Accordingly, based on the foregoing, it appears that Cohen's written and oral 

representations to Sterling and Melrose that he did not have more than $1,250,000 were false, and 

that Cohen withheld information regarding approximately $5 million in funds from Sterling and 

Melrose in order to secure favorable terms in his renegotiation of his medallion loan. Based on 

my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-2, and my review ofreports of interviews 

with Sterling Employee-I and two Melrose employees, it is my understanding that that Sterling 

and Melrose would view Cohen's understating of his assets as material to its decision whether to 

renegotiate Cohen's medallion loans and on what terms, or to its decision whether approve of the 

transfer of those loans to 

19 Based on my review of the account schedules described above, I know that, as of the date of this 

affidavit, the account balances for TD Bank have not yet been included in the schedule for either 

date and the account balances for Sterling National Bank and Bethpage Credit Union have not yet 

beeti included in the schedule for February 1, 2018. Thus, to the extent that these accounts have 

positive balances, Cohen's total balances in fact were even higher on these dates. 
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Cohen Has Unreported Interest Income 

24. It appears that Cohen also hid from Sterling interest income that he was receiving in 

connection with a six million dollar loan he made to another individual._ Specifically, I know from 

my review of the May 2017 Financial Statement and September 2017 Financial Statement that 

Cohen provided to Sterling that Cohen did not disclose that he had made a note receivable in the 

amount of approximately $6 million, or that he was earning approximately $60,000 per month in 

inter1:st~in'-c-ame~in-·c·onne·ction-witl,rtharluan-:-Bur,frorirmyi:eview-of-a-summafy-of'bank-records 

that were reviewed by another law enforcement agent, my review of property records and 

documents obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, and my participation in an interview 

with Getzel, I have learned the following: 

a. Based on my review of property records, I have learned that on or about March 12, 

2012, Cohen agreed to lend approximately 

$2,000,000.20 It appears that the promissory note was unsecured by any real property. On or about 

April 28, 2014, Cohen and- amended the promissory note, and restructured the loan to 

increase the principal amount to approximately $5,000,000. Under the terms of the amended 

promissory note, the loan was secured b)-apartment in Sunny Isles Beach, Florida. On 

or about April 8, 2015, Cohen and 

amount to $6,000,000.21 

:estated the promissory note to increase the principal 

b. Based on my review of a copy of the restated note, which was obtained pursuant to 

the Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that under the terms of the amended and restated 

20 I learned from Getzel that 

21 The note states that the loan is to husband and wife, 

jointly and severally. For ease of referenc~, I refer ;imply to ";-herein. 
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promissory note, Cohen's loan to s an interest-only loan, and that the principal balance 

of the loan bears interest at an annual rate of 12.25 percent. I also lmow that the amended and 

restated promissory note includes a schedule of payments that require -to pay Cohen 

approximately $61,250 per month beginning in April 2015 and ending in April 2019. The note also 

requires that -:epay the principal balance of $6,000,000 on April 28, 2019. I 
c. Based on my review of bank records, I have learned that, consistent with the terms I 

of the amended and restated promissory note, -nasmadernonthly--paymehts-of--- --------------r 

approximately $61,250 since April 2015. Specifically, based on my review of records maintained 

by Capital One Bank, I have learned that from April 2015 to October 2015, Cohen received checks 

from an entity callee totaling $61,250 per month, which he 

deposited into his personal bank account at Capital One Bank.22 It appears from my review of bank 

records and public sources tha1-is the owner of 

From my review of records maintained by Capital One Banlc, I have also learned that since October 

2015, Cohen has received checks from an entity called totaling 

$61,250 per month, which he deposited into his personal bank account at Capital One Bank. It 

appears from my review of banlc records and public sources that- is also the owner of,■ 

In total, it appears that Cohen receives approximately $735,000 per year 

in interest payments from -

d. Based on my review of Cohen's May 2017 and September 2017 Financial 

Statements, my review of his 2015 and 2016 tax returns obtained via subpoena and from the Cohen 

Email Warrants, and my participation in an interview with Getzel, I have learned that Cohen did 

22 In April 2015, Cohen received a pro-rated payment. For all months thereafter, the total payment 

equaled $61,250, but - often made the payment in multiple checks. 
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not disclose this interest income he was receiving from to Sterling or Melrose, or list it 

on his tax returns. I have also learned that while this interest income is taxable, Cohen did not tell 

Getzel-his accountant-about the income, and Getzel only learned about the income because he 

25. Accordingly, based on the foregoing, it appears that Cohen's representations to 

Sterling and Melrose that he did not have more than $I,250,000 were false, and that Cohen 

withheld information relating to the interest income he is receiving from : 

secure favorable terms in his renegotiation of his medallion loan. 

Cohen Had a Side A reement Wit) 

n order to 

26. As set forth in detail below, during the course of Cohen's negotiations to sell his 

interest in taxi medallions and the associated debt to Cohen not only 

misrepresented his financial position to Sterling, but also failed to disclose a side agreement he 

had negotiated with- it appears tha1-1greed to pay an above-market price 

for Cohen's taxi cab medallions, and in exchange, Cohen agreed to pay tpproximately 

$3 .8 million in cash. Specifically, from my review of documents produced pursuant to a subpoena 

by Sterling, and my participation in interviews with Sterling Employee-I, Sterling Employee-2, 

and Sterling Employee-3, I have learned, among other things, the following: 

a. On or about September 5, 20 I 7, an executed term sheet was circulated by Sterling 

Employee-I to Cohen and - The term sheet listed Cohen's address as the address for 

Subject Premises-I. According to the term sheet, 1 would borrow $20,000,000 

from Sterling and Melrose, to be secured by the medallions that -was to acquire from 

23 Accordingly, this interest income-which should have been reported as such on Cohen's tax 
returns-is included herein in calculations of Cohen's true cash position. 
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Cohen. At a price of $20 million for thirty-two taxi medallions, the proposed transaction valued 

each medallion as worth $625,000. The term sheet also contemplated a $1,265,913 pay-down of 

the principal balance of the loan. The term sheet made no mention of a $3.8 million payment from 

Cohen to _, or any other form of payment or financial transaction between the parties. 

b. Additionally, an internal Sterling credit memorandum, dated October 4, 2017, 

describing the terms of the Cohen transaction and the new loan to : did 

not mention any payments from Coheri to --incluciing a $3:8million-pa)1me'nt---The--------­

memorandum also noted that the "loan amount of $20MM indicates a $625M purchase price per 

medallion" but "it is recognized that this is not in line with current market values." Indeed, 

according to an internal Sterling memorandum dated February 5, 2018, in the month of January 

2018, taxi medallions sold for amounts ranging from $120,000 to $372,000. According to Sterling 

Employee-I and Sterling Employee-2, they were never told tha agreed to a purchase 

price of $625,000 in exchange for a lump sum payment from Cohen, or that Cohen would make 

any payment to 

c. On or about January 30, 2018, Sterling Employee-3 asked Cohen whether Cohen 

had a side agreement with to pay -a sum of money for entering into the 

medallion transaction. Sterling Employee-3 asked Cohen about such an arrangement because, 

according to Sterling Employee-3, the price that - was paying for each medallion 

appeared to be well above the market price. Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he had no 

side agreement-and never had a side agreement-with ' 

27. While Cohen and did not disclose any payment from Cohen to 

in communications with Sterling, it appears that such a payment was contemplated. 

Indeed, based on my review of records maintained by Getzel, and my participation in an interview 
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with Getzel, I have learned the following, in substance and in part, regarding the proposed side 

payment from Cohen to -

a. On or about September 19, 2017, Getzel prepared a memorandum for Cohen 

. entitled, "Sale of NYC Medallion Entities and Debt Assumption" (the "Getzel Memorandum"). 

The Getzel Memorandum summarized the proposed transaction between Cohen and 

in part, as follows: "Michael and Laura Cohen will transfer ownership of their 13 NYC medallion 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

entities to a Buyer who will assume theirbaru(-iiiae6teaness, upon tne [Coherrn'Jpaying~dowrrthe------------=---- --M 

I ; 
debt portfolio of the 13 entities by $500,000 and a cash payment to the Buyer of $3,800,000." 24 

b. According to Getzel, Cohen told him the parameters of the deal, including the 

payment of $3,800,000 to but Getzel did not know where Cohen was going to obtain 

$3,800,000 to pay - As noted above, Cohen had more than $5,000,000 in cash and 

cash equivalents as of September 2017, but had only disclosed in his September 2017 Financial 

Statement that he had $1.25 million in cash. 

28. Based on my review ofrecords maintained by Sterling (as well as Melrose, the bank 

with the participating interest in the loans) and reports of interviews of representatives of Sterling 

(and Melrose), I have seen no evidence that Sterling, Melrose, or any other financial institution 

involved in the potential deal with Cohen and 

side payment from Cohen to -

:vas aware of the planned $3.8 million 

The Illegal Campaign Contribution Scheme 

29. The USAO and FBI are also investigating a criminal violation of campaign finance 

laws by Michael Cohen. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen made 

24 The reference to thirteen medallions appears to be an error by Getzel. Cohen and his wife 

together owned sixteen corporations, which in turn owned 32 taxi medallions. 
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an excessive in-kind contribution to the presidential election campaign of then-candidate Donald 

Trump in the form of a $130,000 payment to Stephanie Clifford, an individual who was rumored 

to have had an extramarital affair with Trump, in exchange for her agreement not to disclose that 

alleged affair. As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that this payment was intended 

to keep Clifford from making public statements about the rumored affair on the eve of the 2016 

presidential election, and thus constitutes a campaign contribution in excess of the applicable limit. 

From my reviewof public sources;! have leame~dthe-following:~~--

a. In or around October 2011, there were rumors published on the gossip websites 

TheDirty. com that Trump had had an extramarital affair with Clifford, an adult film actress whose 

screen name is Stormy Daniels, in or around July 2006. In or about October 2011, Life & Style 

Magazine, a tabloid sold in supermarkets, also published an article, based on the report in 

TheDirty. com, alleging an affair had occurred between Trump and Clifford. Both Trump and 

Clifford, through their representatives, issued denials in response to the articles. 

b. Specifically, on or about October 11, 2011, Keith Davidson, who identified himself 

as Clifford's attorney, sent a cease and desist letter to TheDirty.com, demanding that the article 

regarding Trump and Clifford be remoyed from the website. Additionally, on or about October 

12, 2011, Cohen, who was then Executive Vice-President and Special Counsel to the Trump 

Organization, stated to El News that "[t]he totally untrue and ridiculous story ... emanated from 

a sleazy and disgusting website .... The Trump Organization and Donald J. Trump will be bringing 

a lawsuit ... [and] Mr. Trump and the Trump Organization would like to thank and commend 

Stormy Daniels and her attorneys for their honesty and swift actions." 

31. On or about June 16, 2015, Trump formally launched his 2016 presidential 

campaign. On or about May 4, 2016, Trump became the presumptive Republican Party nominee 
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for president, and on July 19, 2016, Trump officially became the nominee. Based on my review 

of public sources, I have learned that while it does not appear that Cohen had an official title as 

part of the Trump campaign, on multiple occasions Cohen made public statements on behalf of 

Trump or his campaign. For instance, on or about August 18, 2016, Cohen appeared on CNN to 

defend Trump's polling numbers. 

32. On or about October 7, 2016, The Washington Post published online a video and 

--- -- ----c- ---accompanying- audio in-which-Trump-referred-to-women-in-what-the_ article_described.-as---''vulgar ___ ~~-~---·· 

terms" in a 2005 conversation with Billy Bush, who w~s then the host of Access Hollywood. The 

following day, on October 8, 2016, Trump appeared in a video in which he stated, among other 

things, "I've said and done things I regret and words released today on this more than a decade old 

video are one of them. Anyone who knows me knows these words don't reflect who I am. I said 

it. I was wrong and I apologize." Based on my review of public sources, I also know that 

representatives of the Trump Campaign stated, in sum and substance, that the Access Hollywood 

comment was an old and isolated incident. 

33. Based on my review of public sources, including an article published in Slate 

magazine by a reporter who interviewed Clifford, I have learned that around this same time, in or 

about October 2016, Clifford was in discussions with ABC's Good Morning America show and 

Slate magazine, among other media sources, to provide these media outlets with her statement 

about her alleged relationship with Trump. According to the article in Slate, which the author 

based on conversations with Clifford over the telephone and by text message, Clifford wanted to 

be paid for her story or be paid by Trump not to disclose her accusation. As Cohen summarized 

in a 2018 email obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants: "In October 2016, I was contacted 
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by counsel for Ms. Clifford stating that news outlets, including ABC News, were pursuing the 2011 

story of an alleged affair between Mr. Trump and Ms. Clifford." 

34. From my review of telephone toll records25 and information produced pursuant to 

the i Cloud Warrant and Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that in the days following the Access 

Hollywood video, Cohen exchanged a series of calls, text messages, and emails with Keith 

Davidson, who was then Clifford's attorney, David Pecker and Dylan Howard of American Media, 

Inc--:-("AMf'J;---the-publisher-ofthe..:...National-Enquirer;26 'Trump,and-Hope Hicks,who-was-then-- -- ----- -------­

press secretary for Trump's presidential campaign. Based on thy timing of these calls, and the 

content of the text messages and emails, I believe that at least some of these communications 

concerned the need to prevent Clifford from going public, particularly in the wake of the Access 

Hollywood story. In particular, I have learned the following: • 

a. On October 8, 2016, at approximately 7:20 p.m., Cohen received a call from Hicks. 

Sixteen seconds into the call, Trump joined the call, and the call continued for over four minutes.27 

Based on the toll records that the USAO has obtained to date, I believe that this was the first call 

25 My attribution of certain telephone numbers to certain individuals as described in this 

affidavit is based on my review of the vCard ( virtual contact file) and text messages obtained from 

Cohen's telephone pursuant to the iClou4 Warrant. 

26 Pecker is President of AMI and, according to his own statements in public reports, a personal 

friend of Trump. Howard is the chief content officer of AMI, who according to public records 

reports directly to Pecker. 

27 I believe that Trump joined the call between Cohen and Hicks based on my review of toll 

records. Specifically, I know that a call was initiated between Cohen's telephone number and 

Tnunp's telephone number at the same time the records indicate that Cohen was talking to Hicks. 

After the Cohen-Trump call was initiated, it lasted the same period of time as the Cohen-Hicks 

call. Additionally, the toll records indicate a "-1" and then Trump's telephone number, which, 

based on my training and experience, means that the call was either transferred to Trump, or that 

Trump was added to the call as a conference or three-way call participant. In addition, based on 

my conversations with an FBI agent who has interviewed Hicks, I have learned that Hicks stated, 

in substance, that to the best of her recollection, she did not learn about the allegations made by 

Clifford until early November 2016. Hicks was not specifically asked about this three-way call. 

41 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 144 of 269

Cohen had received or made to Hicks in at least multiple weeks, and that Cohen and Trump spoke 

about once a month prior to this date - specifically, prior to this call on October 8, 2016, Cohen 

and Trump had spoken once in May, once in June, once in July, zero times in August, and twice 

in September. 

b. Approximately ten minutes after the call ended, Hicks and Cohen spoke again for 

about two minutes. 

c. -At7:3 9 p.m., immediafelyaffer llie -seconocallwith-Hicks-ende-d;-Cohen-called------ ---­

David Pecker (as noted above, the President of American Media Inc., or AMI) and they connected 

for thirty seconds. Approximately four minutes later, Cohen called Pecker again and they spoke 

for more than a minute. Three minutes after ending his call with Pecker, Cohen received a call 

from Dylan Howard (as noted above, the Chief Content Officer of AMI), and they spoke for 

approximately a minute. According to toll records, it does not appear that Cohen and Howard 

spoke regularly prior to October 8, 2016, as it had been over a month since they had called each 

other. 

d. At 7:56 p.m., approximately eight minutes after his call with Howard ended, Cohen 

called Hicks and they connected for two minutes. At approximately the same time this call ended, 

Cohen received a call from Pecker, and they spoke for about two minutes. At 8:03 p.m., about 

three minutes after ending his call with Pecker, Cohen called Trump, and they spoke for nearly 

eight minutes. 

e. At 8:39 p.m. and 8:57 p.m., Cohen received calls from Howard and spoke to him 

for about four and six minutes, respectively. At 9:13 p.m., about ten minutes after Cohen and 

Howard hung up from the second of these calls, Howard sent Cohen a text message that said: 

"Keith will do it. Let's reconvene tomorrow." Based on my involvement in this investigation, I 
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believe that when Howard wrote "Keith," he was referring to Keith Davidson, the attorney for 

Stephanie Clifford. At 3:31 a.m., now on October 9, 2016, Cohen sent Howard a text message in 

response that said: "Thank you." Eight minutes later, Cohen sent Howard a text message that said: 

"Resolution Consultants LLC. is the name of the entity I formed a week ago. Whenever you wake, 

please call my cell." 

f. The following day, on October 10, 2016, at 10:58 a.m., Howard sent a text message 

to Cohen and Davidson, which stated:"!Zefffi7Micliael: connecting youooth in regarcl~rto~that ___ ·---~-~--·-·· 

business opportunity. Spoke to the client this AM and they're confirmed to proc~ed with the 

opportunity. Thanks. Dylan. Over to you two." At 12:25 p.m., Davidson sent Cohen a text message 

that stated: "Michael - if we are ever going to close this deal - In my opinion, it needs to be today. 

Keith." Davidson and Cohen then spoke by phone for about three minutes. Based on my 

participation in this investigation, I believe that when Howard wrote that the "client" was 

"confirmed to proceed with the opportunity," he was referring to Clifford's agreement in principle 

to accept money from Cohen in exchange for her agreement not to discuss any prior affair with 

then-candidate Trump.28 

g. Based on my review of records obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

know that on or about October 10, 2016, Clifford and Davidson appear to have signed a "side letter 

agreement" that stated it was an exhibit to a "confidential settlement agreement and mutual 

release" between "Peggy Peterson" and "David Dennison." The· purpose of the document, 

28 As set forth below, AMI was also involved in a payment to model Karen McDougal. 

However, because these communications were in close temporal proximity to the events involving 

the negotiation of a payment to Clifford, the execution of the agreement with Clifford, and the 

payment of money to Clifford, I believe that these communications were related to Clifford. 

Additionally, based on my review of public statements by McDougal, I have learned that she 

negotiated an agreement with AMI several months prior to these· communications between Cohen 

and Pecker, Howard, and Davidson. 

43 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 146 of 269

according to the agreement, was to define the "true name and identity" of persons named by 

pseudonym in "confidential settlement agreement and mutual release." The side letter agreement 

specifies the identity of "Peggy Peterson" to be Clifford, but the space for "Dennison's" identity 

is blank. The agreement also includes a signature page for "Peterson," "Dennison," and their 

attorneys. The signature page is signed by "Peterson" and his attorney, Davidson, but the 

document is unsigned by "Dennison" and his attorney. Based on my involvement in this 

investigation, I believe that Davidso_11:_~gLCohen this partially-signed "side letter ag~~emen_t'_' _in ____ ~ 

order to facilitate the closing of a deal between Davidson's client and Cohen or his client on 

October 10, 2016. 

35. It appears that on October 13, 2016, and the days that followed, Cohen took steps 

to complete a transaction with Davidson, including attempting to open an account from which 

Cohen could transfer funds to Davidson. Specifically, from my review of toll records, information 

obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant and Cohen Email Warrants, records maintained by First 

Republic, as well as my participation in interviews with First Republic employees, I have learned 

the following: 

a. On the morning of October 13, 2016, at 8:54 a.m., Cohen sent Pecker a text message 

that stated: "I need to talk to you." At 9:06 a.m., Pecker sent a text message to Cohen that stated, 

"I called please call me back." The tolls between Cohen and Pecker do not show a telephone call 

between 8:54 a.m. and 9:06 a.m. However, based on my review of text messages, I have learned 

that Cohen and Pecker communicate with each other over Signal, which is an encrypted 

communications cellphone application that allows users to send encrypted text messages and make 

encrypted calls. 
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b. At 9:23 a.m., Cohen sent an email that stated "call me" to First Republic Employee-

2. The email attached documents from the Secretary of State of Delaware indicating that Cohen 

had formed a limited liability company called "Resolution Consultants LLC" on September 30, 

2016. As noted above, "Resolution Consultants" is the name of the entity that Cohen had told 

Howard he had formed recently after Howard said Davidson would "do it." At 10:44 a.m., Cohen 

called First Republic Employee-2 and told him, in sum and substance, that he needed an account 

-----~--in-the-name-of--''Resolution-Consultants'_:__openedimmediatelJ,-and-thathe.didnoLwantan_address -----------------------­

on the checks written out of the account. Later that day, another employee at First Republic 

emailed Cohen account opening paperwork to complete. Cohen returned the account opening 

documents partially completed, but failed to provide a copy of his driver's license or passport, and 

did not respond to the employee's question of how he wanted to fund the account. As a result, the 

account was never opened. 

c. On October 17, 2016, Cohen incorporated Essential Consultants LLC in Delaware. 

That same day, he filed paperwork to dissolve Resolution Consultants LLC. 

36. Despite these steps taken by Cohen, it appears that the negotiation between Cohen 

and Davidson was not progressing sufficiently fast enough for Davidson or his client, Clifford, 

and they threatened to go public with Clifford's allegations just days before the presidential 

election. Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the 

iCloud Warrant, and public sources, I know the following: 

a. According to an article in The Washington Post, which quoted emails sent from 

Cohen's email account hosted by the Trump Organization, on October 17, 2016, Davidson emailed 

Cohen and threatened to cancel the aforementioned "settlement agreement" by the end of the day 
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if Cohen did not complete the transaction.29 According to the article, Davidson sent Cohen a 

second email later in the day that stated in part, "Please be advised that my client deems her 

settlement agreement canceled and void." At 4:00 p.m. that day, Cohen called Davidson and they 

spoke for over five minutes. 

b. Cohen's 4:00 p.m. call with Davidson and/or Davidson's threats to cancel the 

"settlement agreement" appear to have touched off a flurry of communications about the settlement 

agreement and whether Clifford would go public. Specifically:-

1. At 4:43 p.m., Howard sent Cohen a text message that stated: "I'm told 

they're going with DailyMail. Are you aware?" One minute later, Cohen responded: "Call me." 

Based on my involvement in this investigation, I understand Howard's text to mean that he heard 

that Clifford was going to take her story of an extramarital affair with Trump to the Daily Mail, a 

tabloid newspaper. 

ii. At 4:45 p.m., Howard called Cohen and they spoke for over two minutes. 

Moments later, Davidson and Cohen spoke for about two minutes. 

iii. At 5:03 p.m., Cohen attempted to call Trump, but the call only lasted eight 

seconds. This was Cohen's first call after he spoke with Davidson. 

1v. At 5:25 p.m., Cohen texted Howard, stating: "Well???" 

v. At 6:44 p.m., Howard responded to Cohen's text, stating: "Not taking my 

calls." Cohen responded one minute later: "You're kidding. Who are you trying to reach?" 

Howard responded one minute later: "The 'agent."' Based on my involvement in this 

29 Due to the partially covert nature of the investigation to this date, the USAO has not requested 

documents from the Trump Organization or Davidson, and thus does not possess the email 

referenced in this article. 
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investigation, I understand Howard's text messages to mean that he attempted to contact Davidson 

about the matter involving Clifford, but that Davidson was not taking Howard's calls. 

v1. At 6:49 p.m., Cohen called Howard and they spoke for nearly four minutes. 

c. The following day, on October 18, 2016, TheSmokingGun.com, a website that 

publishes legal documents and mugshots, published an article called: "Donald Trump and the Porn 

Superstar," which alleged that Trump had an extramarital affair with Clifford.. However, the 

article noted that Clifford had declined to comment. 
---------

37. On or about October 25, 2016, the communications between Cohen, Davidson, 

Howard and Pecker picked up again, apparently concerning a transaction involving Clifford. 

Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants and iCloud Warrant, as well as my review of public sources, I have learned the following: 

a. On October 25, 2016, at 6:09 p.m., Howard sent Cohen a text message stating: 

"Keith calling you urgently. We have to coordinate something on the matter he's calling you about 

or its [sic] could look awfully bad for everyone." One minute later, Davidson sent Cohen a text 

message stating "Call me." Cohen and Davidson called each other several times over the next half 

hour but appear not to have connected. At 6:42 p.m., Cohen and Davidson spoke for about eight 

minutes. At 7:11 p.m., they spoke for another two minutes. 

b. The next morning, on or about October 26, 2016, at 8:26 a.m., Cohen called Trump 

and spoke to him for approximately three minutes. At 8:34 a.m., Cohen called Trump again and 

connected for a minute and a half. 

c. At approximately 9:04 a.m.-less than thirty minutes after speaking with Trump­

Cohen sent two emails to the person who had incorporated Resolution Consultants and Essential 

Consultants for him, and stated "can you send me asap the filing receipt" and then, in the second 
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email, "for Essential Consultants LLC." That person responded with the filing receipt two minutes 

later at 9:06 a.m. and with the certification of formation 23 minutes later, at 9:27 a.m. 

d. Shortly after that, Cohen contacted First Republic Employee-2 and told him, in sum 

and substance, that he decided not to open an account in the name of "Resolution Consulting" and 

instead would be opening a real estate consulting company in the name of "Essential Consultants." 

Cohen told First Republic Employee-2 that he was at Trump Tower, and wanted to go to a First 

·----------. ---
Republic branch across the street to op.en the account, so-PirsfRepuofic Employee-2~c-alle·d-Ftrst---·······-· • 

Republic Employee-1, a preferred banker at that branch, assist Cohen. At 11:00 a.m., First 

Republic Employee- I called Cohen. I know from my participation in an interview with First 

Republic Employee-1, that around the time of the call he went to Cohen's office in Trump Tower-

on the same floor as the Trump Organization-and went through account opening questions, 

including know your customer questions, with Cohen. In response to a series of know-your-

customer questions about the purpose of the account-the answers to which First Republic 

Employee-1 entered into a form-Cohen stated, in sum and substance, that he was opening 

Essential Consultants as a real estate consulting company to collect fees for investment consulting 

work, and all of his consulting clients would be domestic individuals based in the United States. 

Based. on my review of records obtained from First Republic, it appears that this account (the 

''Essential Consultants Account") was created at a time between 11 :00 a.m. and 1 :00 p.m. 

e. At 1:47 p.m., Cohen called Davidson and they spoke for approximately two 

minutes. At approximately 1 :49 p.m., Davidson emailed Cohen wiring instructions for an attorney 

client trust account at City National Bank. 

f. After the Essential Consultants Account was opened on October 26, 2016, Cohen 

transferred $131,000 from a home equity line of credit that Cohen had at First Republic to the 
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Essential Consultants Account. Following the transfer, at approximately 4: 15 p.m. on October 26, 

2016, First Republic Employee-2's assistant emailed Cohen at his Trump Organization email 

address to tell him that the funds had been deposited into the Essential Consultants Account. 

Cohen forwarded that email to the Cohen Gmail Account and then forwarded it to Davidson. 

g. At 6:37 p.m., Cohen asked Pecker by text message, "Can we speak? Important." 

Cohen called Pecker at 6:49 p.m. and connected for thirty seconds. At 6:57 p.m., Cohen sent 

Howard a text message, stating: ''Please callme. Important."-Conen called Howanl at '7:00-p:m:·--~------------. 

and connected for about thirty seconds. At 7:06 p.m., Cohen called Pecker again and they spoke 

for nearly thirteen minutes. At 7:24 p.m., Howard sent a text message to Cohen that: "He said 

he'd call me back in 20 minutes. I told him what you are asking for his [sic] reasonable. I'll get 

it sorted." Approximately an hour later, at 8:23 p.m., Howard told Cohen by text message to 

"check your Gmail for email from my private account." In an email sent at 8:23 p.m. by Howard 

to Cohen and Davidson, with the subject line "Confirmation," Howard stated, "Thank you both 

for chatting with me earlier. Confirming agreement on: - Executed agreement, hand-signed by 

Keith's client and returned via overnight or same-day FedEx to Michael, - Change of agreement 

to reflect the correct LLC, - Transfer of funds on Thursday AM to be held in escrow until receipt 

of agreement." After receiving that email, at approximately 8:27 p.m., Cohen asked Howard by 

text message, "Can you and David [Pecker] give me a call." Howard promptly responded: "David 

is not around I think. I'll call." At 8:28 p.m., Howard called Cohen and they spoke for three 

minutes. 

38. On October 27, 2016, Cohen made a payment to Davidson of $130,000-with the 

funds intended for Clifford-for the purpose of securing her ongoing silence with respect to the 

allegations that she had an extramarital affair with Trump. Specifically, based on my review of 
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toll records, bank records, and information obtained pursuant to the iCloud Warrant and Cohen 

Email Warrants, I have learned the following: 

a. At 9:47 a.m., Cohen sent Davidson an email, stating: "Keith, kindly confirm that 

the wire received today, October 27, 2016 shall be held by you in your attorney's trust account 

until such time as directed for release by me, in writing. Additionally, please ensure that all 

paperwork contains the correct name of Essential Consultants LLC. I thank you in advance for 

• your assistance and look forward-tolieanng from you later:" 

b. At approximately 10:01 a.m., according to records provided by First Republic 

Bank, Cohen completed paperwork to wire $130,000 from the Essential Consultants Account­

which had been funded a day prior from Cohen's home equity line of credit-to the attorney client 

trust account at City National Bank that Davidson had specified in the wiring instructions he sent 

to Cohen. The wire transfer was made shortly thereafter. 

c. At 10:02 a.m., Davidson responded to Cohen's email from 9:47 a.m., stating: "I 

confirm that I will work in good faith & that no funds shall be disbursed unless & until the plaintiff 

personally signs all necessary settlement paperwork, (the form of which will match the prior 

agreement). The settlement docs will name the correct corporation, (Essential Consultants LLC). 

Plaintiffs signature will be notarized and returned to you via FedEx. Only after you receive FedEx 

will I disburse. Fair?" 

d. At 10:50 a.m., First Republic Employee-1 sent Cohen an email confirming that the 

payment had been sent and providing him with the wire number. 

39. On October 28, 2016, and the days that followed, Cohen finalized the transaction 

with Davidson. Specifically, based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant 

to the iCloud Warrant, public sources, and bank records, I know the following: 
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a. On October 28, 2016, at 11 :48 a.m., Cohen spoke to Trump for approximately five 

minutes. Beginning at 1 :21 p.m., Cohen attempted a series of phone calls to Davidson, Pecker, 

and Howard throughout the day, although it appears he may only have connected with Howard. 

b. Later that day, at approximately 7:01 p.m., Davidson stated to Cohen by text 

message that "all is AOK. I should have signed, notarized docs on Monday. You should have 

them on Tuesday." Cohen thanked him and said "I hope we are good." Davidson responded, "I 

assure you. We are very good." Howard al~()texted Cohen at 7:08 p.m., "Keith [Davidson]s_a~y_s ______ _ 

we are good." Cohen then responded "OK" to Howard and "Excellent" to Davidson. At 

approximately 10:30 p.m., Cohen spoke to Hicks for three minutes. 

c. On October 31, 2016, Cohen called Howard at 8:22 p.m. and they spoke for over 

three minutes. At 8:32 p.m., Cohen received text messages from both Howard and Davidson. 

Howard said: "You'll have paperwork tomorrow says KD." Davidson said: "We are AOK. You 

will be receiving a package tomorrow." Cohen responded "'thank you" to Howard and "Thanks 

Keith. Will call you then" to Davidson. From my involvement in this investigation, I believe 

Davidson was referring to a signed nondisclosure agreement when he told Cohen that he would 

receive a package. 

d. Based on my review of court filings that became public in 2018, I have learned that 

on or about October 28, 2016, "EC, LLC and/or David Dennison" entered into a "confidential 

settlement agreement and mutual release" with "Peggy Peterson," pursuant to which "Peterson" 

agreed not to disclose certain "confidential information pertaining to [Dennison]" in exchange for 

$130,000. The agreement provided that "EC, LLC" would wire the funds to "Peterson's" attorney, 

who would then transfer funds to "Peterson." Cohen signed the agreement on behalf of "EC, 
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LLC." The agreement stated that the address for "EC, LLC," which was later referred to in the 

agreement as "Essential Consultants, LLC," was Cohen's residence. 

e. Consistent with the "confidential settlement agreement and mutual release," on or 

about November 1, 2016, Davidson transferred $96,645 from his attorney client trust account at 

City National Bank to a bank account in Clifford's name. The wire had the annotation "net 

settlement." On the same day, at approximately 9:48 a.m. Davidson sent Cohen a text message 

with a picture of a FedEx dcliveryconfirmation, statinirtlfat at approximmely9:09-a~m~a-pa:ckage~~-­

shipped by Davidson the previous day had arrived for Cohen at his Trump Organization 

address. On the same day, at approximately 6:14 p.m., Davidson sent Cohen an email with an 

audio file attached and said "Give this a lesson [sic] and then call me." The audio attachment was 

titled "Stormy.mp3" and was a five-minute recording of Davidson interviewing Clifford about 

recent public allegations made by an adult film star named Jessica Drake regarding her alleged 

past affair with Trump; in the recording, Clifford explained the reasons she believed that Drake 

was not credible. Less than an hour later, at approximately 7:05 p.m., Cohen called Trump, but it 

appears that they did not connect. Cohen then called a telephone number belonging to Kellyanne 

Conway, who at the time was Trump's campaign manager. They did not connect. At 

approximately 7:44 p.m., however, Cohen received a return call from Conway, which lasted for 

approximately six minutes. 

40. On November 4, 2016, justthree days after the Clifford transaction was completed 

and just four days before the presidential election, the Wall Street Journal published an article 

alleging that the National Enquirer had "Shielded Donald Trump" from allegations by Playboy 

model Karen McDougal that she and Trump had an affair. The article alleged that AMI had agreed 

to pay McDougal to bury her story. McDougal, like Clifford, had been represented by Davidson. 

52 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 155 of 269

Based on my review of toll records, information obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants 

and iCloud Warrant, and public sources, it appears that Cohen spoke frequently to Davidson, 

Howard, Pecker, and Hicks around the time of this article's publication-just days before Election 

Day-about the importance of preventing the McDougal and Clifford stories from gaining national 

traction. Specifically, I ~ave learned the following: 

a. Between 4:30 and 8:00 p.m. on November 4, Cohen communicated several times 

with Howard, Pecker and Davidson. For instan~e, a! approximately :!:_:_4J_p.m., Cohen sent Ho\\1~~<!­

a text message with a screenshot of an email forwarded to him by another Trump Organization 

lawyer. The forwarded email was from a Wall Street Journal reporter, and asked for comment 

from Trump and/or the campaign on the story. Cohen also spoke with Hicks several times, 

including shortly before and/or after calls with Pecker, Howard and Davidson. Indeed, at 

·approximately 7:33 p.m., using two different cellphones subscribed to him, Cohen appears to have 

been talking to Davidson and Hicks at the same time. 

b. At approximately 8:51 p.m., Cohen sent Howard a message, stating: "She's being 

really difficult with giving Keith a statement. Basically went into hiding and umeachable." One 

minute later, Howard responded: "I'll ask him again. We just need her to disappear." Cohen 

responded, "She definitely disappeared but refuses to give a statement and Keith cannot push her." 

At approximately 8:55 p.m., Howard responded to Cohen's text: "Let's let the dust settle. We don't 

want to push her over the edge. She's on side at present and we have a solid position and a plausible 

position that she is rightfully employed as a columnist." Based on my involvement in this 

investigation, I believe Cohen and Howard were referring to Karen McDougal when they were 

discussing "she" and "her." Additionally, I believe Howard's statement that "we have ... a 
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plausible position that she is rightfully employed as a columnist" was a reference to the fact that 

AMI had given McDougal payments for her role as a purported columnist for the company. 

c. At approximately 8:58 p.m. on November 4, 2016, Howard attempted to reassure 

Cohen about the effect of the forthcoming Wall Street Journal article, texting, "I think it'll be ok 

pal. I think it'll fade into the distance." Cohen responded, "He's pissed." Howard wrote back, 

"I'm pissed! You're pissed. Pecker is pissed. Keith is pissed. Not much we can do." Based on 

my involvement in this investig11-tion, I believe Cohep. was referring to Trump when he stated "he's 

pissed." Cohen asked Howard at approximately 9:00 p.m. how the Wall Street Journal could 

publish its article if "eve1yone denies." Howard responded, "Because there is the payment from 

AMI. It looks suspicious at best." 

d. At approximately 9:03 p.m., Hicks called Cohen and they spoke for two minutes. 

At approximately 9: 11 p.m., Cohen called Howard and spoke to him for five minutes. At 

approximately 9: 15 p.m., Hicks called Cohen and they spoke for nearly seven minutes. Again, 

Cohen used different phones for these two calls, such that he appears to have been on both calls 

for about a minute of overlap. At approximately 9:32 p.m., Cohen texted Pecker, "The boss just 

tried calling you. Are you free?" A minute later, Cohen texted Howard, "Is there a way to fmd 

David quickly?" 

e. At approximately 9:50 p.rn., the Wall Street Journal article was published online. 

Howard and Hicks both sent web links for the article to Cohen. Over the next half hour, Cohen 

and Howard exchanged several text messages commenting on how the story came across. The next 

rnoming on November 5, 2016, at approximately 7:35 a.m., Cohen texted Hicks, "So far I see only 

6 stories. Getting little to no traction." Hicks responded, "Same. Keep praying!! It's working!" 

Cohen wrote back, "Even CNN not talking about it. No one believes it and if necessary, I have a 
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statement by Storm denying everything and contradicting the other porn stars statement. I wouldn't 

use it now or even discuss with him as no one is talking about this or cares!" Based on my 

involvement in this investigation, I believe Cohen was ref erring to the above-referenced recorded 

audio statement by Clifford that he obtained from Davidson, and was stating that such a statement 

could be used to influence potential negative media relating to Trump, but was unnecessary at that 

time. Based on a text message from Hicks to Cohen, I believe that later that morning, Pecker 

------spoke-to-Trump. -------

41. On or about November 8, 2016, Trump won the election for President of the United 

States. 

42. On or about January 12, 2018, the Wall Street Journal first reported that Cohen 

arranged a payment to Clifford. On or about January 22, 2018, Common Cause, a government 

watchdog group, filed a complaint with the Federal Election Commission, alleging that Cohen had 

violated campaign finance laws by making the payment to Clifford. Based on my review public 

sources following that report, as well as emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

have learned the following: 

a. On or about January 23, 2018, the day after Common Cause filed its complaint, 

Cohen began emailing himself drafts of statements describing his payment to Clifford. 

Additionally, on January 23, 2018, Cohen emailed the following draft of that statement to an 

individual who appears to be writing a book on Cohen's behalf: 

2017.08.02 

In October 2016, I was contacted by counsel for Ms. Clifford stating that 
news outlets, including ABC news, were pursuing the 2011 story of an 
alleged affair between Mr. Trump and Ms. Clifford. Despite the fact that 
both parties had already denied the allegation, as Mr. Trump's longtime 
special counsel and protector, I took it upon myself to match the offer and 
keep the story from breaking. I knew the allegation to be false, but I am 
also a realist who understands that just because something is false doesn't 
mean that it doesn't create harm and damage. I could not allow this to 
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occur. I negotiated a non-disclosure agreement with Ms. Clifford's 

counsel and tendered the funds. I did this through my Delaware LLC and 

transferred personal funds to cover the agreement. I was not reimbursed 

any monies from Mr. Trump, the Trump Organization, any third party or 

the Presidential campaign. At no point did I ever advise Mr. Trump of my 

communications or actions regarding this agreement. As outlandish and 

unusual as this may appear, the Trumps have been like family to me for 

over a decade. It's what you do for family. 

(Emphasis added.) Based on my involvement in this investigation, I believe that the above email 

is an acknowledgement that the allegation of the affair had existed for some time (" .. . the 2011 

story ... "), but that Cohen was motivated to "keep the story from breaking" again in October 2016. 

b. On or about February 13, 2018, Cohen said in a statement to The New York Times 

that "Neither the Trump Organization nor the Trump campaign was a party to the transaction with 

Ms. Clifford. The payment to Ms. Clifford was lawful, and was not a campaign contribution or a 

campaign expenditure by anyone." Cohen declined to answer follow-up questions including 

whether Trump had been aware of the payment, why Cohen made the payment, or whether similar 

payments had been made to other people. 

c. On or about February 14, 2018, Cohen was asked by The New York Times whether 

Trump had reimbursed him, whether he and Trump had made any arrangement at the time of the 

payment, or whether he had made payments to other women. Cohen stated in response, "I can't 

get into any of that." On or about February 14, 2018, Cohen also stated to The Washington Post 

that: "In a private transaction in 2016, I used my owri personal funds to facilitate a payment of 

$130,000 to Ms. Stephanie Clifford. Neither the Trump Organization nor the Trump campaign 

was a party to the transaction with Ms. Clifford, and neither reimbursed me for the payment, either 

directly or indirectly." 

43. On or about March 9, 2018, Cohen stated to ABC News that "the funds were taken 

from my home equity line and transferred internally to my LLC account in the same bank." 
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44. Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, there is probable cause to believe that 

Cohen committed violations of the Campaign Finance Offenses by making an in-kinq contribution 

to Trump or the Trump campaign in the form of a $130,000 payment to Clifford on the eve of the 

election. Indeed, while he denies having given an unlawful contribution, in his own statements 

Cohen has admitted that he paid $130,000 of his "personal funds" to Clifford and that the payment 

occurred less than two weeks before the election, as Trump was facing negative media allegations 

about his behavior toward women, even tfiougn-allegat10ns ofanaffair-oetween~Trurrrp-a:nd----­

Clifford existed since 2011. In addition, the communication records set forth above make evident 

that Cohen communicated with members of the Trump campaign about his negotiation with 

Clifford's attorney and the need to preclude Clifford from making a statement that would have 

reflected negatively on the candidate in advance of the forthcoming election. 

C. Probable Cause Justifying Search of the Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

45. Based on the foregoing, my review of records produced pursuant to subpoenas and 

the Cohen Email Warrants, and the iCloud Warrant, and my training and experience, there is 

probable cause to believe that the Subject Premises and Subject Devices have been used in 

furtherance of the Subject Offenses and are likely to contain instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits 

of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen permanently 

resides at Subject Premises-I and, at least in part, works at both Subject Premises-I and Subject 

Premises-2, and that those locations contain evidence relating to the Sterling taxi medallion 

transaction, Cohen's assets, Cohen's consulting work for Essential Consultants LLC, and his 

payment to Clifford. Additionally, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 

contains evidence of Cohen's assets and his payment to Clifford. Finally, there is probable cause 

to believe that Subject Premises-4, in which Cohen is temporarily residing, contains electronic 
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devices, including Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2, which, in turn, contain evidence of the 

Subject Offenses, such as evidence relating to the Sterling taxi medallion transaction, Cohen's 

assets, Cohen's consulting work for Essential Consultants LLC, and his payment to Clifford. 

46. First, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen lives and operates his businesses, 

at least in part, at Subject Premises-I. Specifically, from my review of property records, I know 

that Michael Cohen and Laura Cohen own (in trust) Subject Premises-I. From my review of 

---~Go hen's- tax-returns,-I-know-he lists-his-pl'imary-residence as Subj ect-=-Frnmise-s-1--.------AdditionaUy,~-­

from my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I know that Cohen 

routinely refers to Subject Premises-I as his home. For example, on or about September 28, 2017 

and October 6, 2017, Cohen emailed individuals that his home address is the address for Subject 

Premises- I. I also know from my review of emails that Cohen receives package delivery 

notifications that list Cohen's address as the address for Subject Premises- I. Cohen has also 

provided the address of Subject Premises-I as the address for Essential Consultants and Michael 

D. Cohen & Associates, P.C. For example, the certificates of incorporation and account opening 

documents at First Republic for both entities list their addresses as the address for Subject 

Premises-I. See supra ,I,I l 8(b ), 18( d). The consulting agreement between Essential Consultants 

and AT&T also indicated the address for Essential Consultants is the address for Subject Premises-

1. See supra ,I 19( c ). 

47. There is also probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-I is likely to contain 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, from my review of 

emails produced pursuant to subpoena and the Cohen Email Warrants and iCloud Warrant, as well 

as my training and experience, I know the following: 
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a. According to records maintained by Sterling, the address for all of Cohen's taxi 

medallion LLCs is the address for Subject Premises-I. See supra 1 16(c). Additionally, the 

medallion loan documents indicate that any mailings related to the loans should be sent to Subject 

Premises-I. See id. Based on my training and experience, as well as my review of public sources, 

I know that individuals keep records of properties and assets in which they have ownership 

interests. Accordingly, I submit that Subject Premises-I likely contains evidence of Cohen's 

-ownership-0f.-the-taxi-medall-i0n-L1Gs,the-revenue--that-those--medallions-generate,--and-th1v-------­

transaction with Sterling in 2014 to re-finance the medallion loans that were then with Capital One 

Bank. 

b. From my review of records maintained by Sterling, I also know that Sterling 

addressed documents relating to the transaction and Cohen's attempts to modify the 

terms of the medallion loans to Subject Premises-I. For instance, Sterling addressed the 

transaction term sheet, see supra 1 16(1), and its demand letter and notice of default, see supra 1 

16(q), to Subject Premises-I. Accordingly, Subject Premises-I likely contains evidence 

concerning the ransaction and Cohen's negotiations with Sterling. Some of those 

records-such as records relating to a payment from Cohen to--were concealed from 

Sterling and cannot be obtained via subpoena to Sterling. Additionally, even where documents 

were sent to Cohen by Sterling (and therefore are available from Sterling via subpoena), the fact 

that they may be found in Subject Premises-1 will be relevant to Cohen's possession or knowledge 

of the documents. 

c. From my review of records maintained by First Republic, I know that Cohen 

provided the address for Subject Premises-I as the mailing addresses for the Essential Consultants 

Account and :MDC&A Account. See supra 1118(6), 18(e). Accordingly, it is likely that Subject 
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Premises-I contains records relating to the Essential Consultants Account and MDC&A Account, 

including, among other things, account opening documents, bank statements, documents provided 

as part of the know-your-customer process, any notes made by Cohen when he was opening the 

accounts, wire transfer records, and canceled checks. Even where these records can be obtained 

from First Republic, the fact that they may be found in Subject Premises-I will be relevant to, 

among other things, Cohen's ownership of the accounts, or his knowledge of transactions or the 

existence of funds in accounts--:-

d. Based on my review of records maintained by Capital One Bank, TD Bank, Morgan 

Stanley, City National Bank, Signature Bank, and Bethpage Credit Union, I know that Cohen 

provided the address for Subject Premises-I as the mailing for his accounts at each of these 

financial institutions. Accordingly, it is likely that Subject Premises-I contains records relating to 

these accounts, including, among other things, bank statements that list account balances. The 

existence of these records in Subject Premises-I will be relevant to, among other things, Cohen's 

ownership of the accounts and his knowledge of the balances in these accounts. 

e. Additionally, Cohen may have records of other bank accounts or assets that were 

not disclosed to Sterling and are not presently known by law enforcement. For example, as 

described above, Cohen has received interest income since 2015 that he has not disclosed to 

Sterling or paid taxes on. Also, on Cohen's August 2014 Financial Statement, see supra ,i 16(e), 

he disclosed $10,000,000 in "investments in overseas entities."30 The value of these investments 

was omitted from subsequent financial statements. However, for the reasons outlined above, there 

is probable cause to believe that Cohen omitted the value of those investments from his 2017 

30 Based on my participation in an interview with Sterling Employee-3, I have learned that 

Cohen told Sterling Employee-3 that the reference to "investments in overseas entities" on his 

2014 Financial Statement was to serve merely as a "placeholder" for potential future investments. 
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financial statements in order to understate his assets. As Subject Premises-I is Cohen's primary 

residence and he uses Subject Premises- I as the mailing address for bank records, there is probable 

cause to believe that account statements for unknown bank accounts or assets concealed from 

Sterling are likely to be found in Subject Premises-I. 

f. Based on my review of records maintained. by AT&T and produced pursuant to the 

Cohen Email Warrants, I know that the address Cohen provided to AT&T for Essential Consultants 

is the address for Subject Premises- I. -See-supraiff9-(c)-:-Tnerefore, there iS probable~cause-to 

believe that Subject Premises-I will contain evidence concerning the operation of Essential 

Consultants or money that Cohen received, through Essential Consultants, from AT&T. 

Additionally, because Cohen used the address for Subject Premises-I for at least one consulting 

arrangement involving Essential Consultants, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises- I may contain records of other consulting arrangements that Cohen, through Essential 

Consultants, has with other individuals or entities. 

g. Based on my review of records maintained by Getzel' s accounting firm, and emails 

produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I have learned that Getzel' s accounting firm sent 

documents to Subject Premises-I and used the address for Subject Premises-I as the address listed 

on Cohen's personal and corporate tax returns. See supra ~ 16(n). For instance, on or about 

October 6, 2017, an employee at Getzel's accounting firm emailed Cohen that she had sent 

Cohen's September 2017 Financial Statement by FedEx to Cohen's attention. Accordingly, 

Cohen's tax records are likely to be found in Subject Premises- I. 

h. Based on my review of bank records and publicly-available documents, I know that 

Cohen used $130,000 from a home equity line of credit on Subject Premises-I to pay Clifford. I 

also know that on the settlement and nondisclosure agreement between "Peggy Peterson" and "EC, 
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LLC," the address for Essential Consultants is Subject Premises-I. Accordingly, Subject 

Premises- I is likely to contain evidence of the Campaign Finance Offenses, including settlement 

and nondisclosure agreements, payment records, written and email correspondence, and records 

pertaining to the home equity line of credit. 

i. Based on my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants and 

iCloud Warrant, I know that Cohen used at least one Apple iPhone, an Apple iPad Mini, and a 

MacBook-Pro-to-access-his-i eloud-account-:--Based-on-my-review-of location-records-provided-by--­

Apple pursuant to the iCloud Warrant, I know that electronic devices linked to Cohen's iCloud 

account were used at Subject Premises-I to, among other things, place telephone calls and backup 

files to Cohen's iCloud account. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises- I contains electronic devices, including certain Apple products, that for reasons 

discussed below are likely to contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

j. Based on my review of emails produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

understand that Subject Premises-I recently sustained water damage to certain parts of the 

premises, and that Cohen has engaged contractors to perform certain remediation work on the 

premises. In addition, as set forth above, I believe that Cohen and his family are temporarily 

residing at Subject Premises-4 in the Loew's Regency Hotel, which is approximately two blocks 

from Subject Premises-I. However, based on my review of a work order sent to Cohen's email 

by a contractor, I understand that the first phase of the work order called for the contractor to "Pack 

& Remove all items & furnishings in Living Room, Kitchen, ~ons Room & Dining Room" and 

store them off-site. In addition, based on my review of drawings sent to Cohen by the contractor, 

it appears that the work is primarily being done in these rooms. Thus, I believe that the 

construction - to the extent it is still ongoing - would not necessarily have caused Cohen to move 
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all documents or evidence responsive to the warrant out of Subject Premises- I, because it does not 

appear that work is being done to the portion of Subject Premises-I, such as a home office or 

Cohen's own room, where such documents or evidence would most likely be found.31 

48. Second, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen uses Subject Premises-2 as 

office space, and also that Subject Premises-2 contains certain electronic devices. Specifically, 

from my review of the "strategic alliance agreement" between Squire Patton Boggs and Cohen, 

------andc.my-re:v:iew 0£ the-press_release_on_ Squire_:eatton-Boggs~s-website,_IJmow_thaLCohen_has_an _____ _ 

office at Subject Premises-2. See supra ,r,r 18(d), 19(e). Indeed, I have learned that pursuant to 

Cohen's agreement with the law firm, he has "dedicated and segregated office space" in Squire 

Patton Boggs's offices on the 23rd floor of 30 Rockefeller Plaza, and that the space is "physically 

separate" from the firm's offices and has "locked doors and its own locked file cabinets." See 

supra ,r 19(e). Additionally, I know that under the terms of the agreement, Cohen agreed to 

"arrange for [his] own computer server system that is not connected to [Squire Patton Boggs's] 

computer network system." I know from my participation in an interview with Getzel, who met 

Cohen at Subject Premises-2 in 2017, that Subject Premises-2 is an office with a door, it appears 

to be used only by Cohen, and it contains, among other things, a computer and paper files. 

According to Getzel, when Getzel saw Cohen at Subject Premises-2, he had two cellular 

telephones in Subject Premises-2. I also lmow from my review of emails produced pursuant to the 

Cohen Email Warrants that Cohen uses the address for Subject Premises-2 in the signature block 

31 As noted below, based on my training and experience, I believe that individuals who travel or 

stay in hotels for short-term periods commonly bring some items with them, such as portable 

electronic devices or sensitive items, meaning that Cohen has likely taken some evidence from 

Subject Premises-I to Subject Premises-4. Nevertheless, given the temporary nature of Cohen's 

stay at Subject Premises-4 and the scope of the work being done at Subject Premises-I, i believe 

it is unlikely that Cohen has taken all evidence that would be subject to seizure out of Subject 

Premises- I . 
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on his emails. Based on my review of notes of a call between Cohen and First Republic Employee-

2 (which notes were taken by another First Republic employee, who was participating in the call 

and taking notes), I know that, on or about November 15, 2017, Cohen told First Republic 

Employee-2 that he had a new office at 30 Rock. Moreover, I know from an article in Vanity Fair 

published on or about February 14, 2018, that Cohen was interviewed by the magazine in Subject 

Premises-2 in or about February 2018. 

_ . ___ .49 ___ There_is_also_probable_cause_to_helieYethat_SubjectJ>r.emises.:-2_is_likely~to~c_ontain ______ -·-----~-·-·c·· 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. Specifically, from my review of 

, emails produced pursuant to subpoena and the Cohen Email Warrants and iCloud Warrant, as well 

as my training and experience, I know the following: 

a. According to records maintained by Sterling, when Cohen was emailing with 

Ster ling Employee-3 in 2018 about a modification to his existing loan from Ster ling, Cohen listed 

his address in his email as the address for Subject Premises-2. See supra ~ 16(t), 16(u). 

Accordingly, Subject Premises-2 likely contains evidence concerning Cohen's loan modification 

negotiations with Sterling. 

b. Based on my review of records obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I 

know that the address Cohen provided to KAI and ETA for Essential Consultants is the address 

for Subject Premises-2. See supra~~ 19(a), 19(b). Therefore, there is probable cause to belleve 

that Subject Premises-2 will contain evidence concerning the operation of Essential Consultants 

or money that Cohen received, through Essential Consultants, from KAI and ETA, among other 

entities with which Cohen had a consulting arrangement. Additionally, based on my review of 

emails sent in 2018 that were obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, I know that Cohen 

continues to enter into consulting arrangements through Essential Consultants, and agreements 
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relating to those arrangements indicate that Essential Consultants is located at Subject Premises-

2. Additionally, because Cohen used the address for Subject Premises-2 for multiple consulting 

arrangements involving Essential Consultants, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-2 may contain records of other unknown consulting arrangements that Cohen has with 

other individuals or entities. 

c. Based on my review ofrecords maintained by Getzel's accounting firm, and emails 

produced pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, as weUa.s-my participationin an interview-with 

Getzel, I have learned that Getzel visited Subject Premises-2 to meet with Cohen about his taxes. 

See supra ,r 20(a). At that meeting, Getzel discussed with Cohen whether Cohen should disclose 

Essential Consultants on his personal financial statement to banks. According, there is probable 

cause to believe that Subject Premises-2 will contain evidence relating to Cohen's taxes, or notes 

of his conversation with Getzel. Moreover, the fact that Cohen used Subject Premises-2 for a 

meeting regarding his personal financial matters provides probable cause to believe that documents 

and information regarding his finances will be found in Subject Premises-2. 

d. Based on my participation in an interview with Getzel, I know that Cohen maintains 

a computer in Subject Premises-2. From my review ofIP data produced pursuant to a subpoena 

and pen register to Google, it appears that Cohen is logging into his Gmail account from Subject 

Premises-2. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-2 contains 

electronic devices, that for reasons discussed below are likely to contain evidence of the Subject 

. Offenses. 

e. Based upon my training and experience, I have learned that individuals who 

maintain businesses typically keep records relating to the business-such as contracts with clients 

and records of payments-at the business' identified location. I am not aware of any addresses 
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associated with Essential Consultants other than Subject Premises-1 and Subject Premises-2. 

Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-1 and Subject Premises-2 

will contain business records for Essential Consultants. 

50. Third, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 is likely to contain 

instrumentalities, evidence, and fruits of the Subject Offenses. In particular: 

a. As noted above, Cohen has two bank accounts at TD Bank. In or about November 

2017, as Cohen was receiving substantiarincome ffonfconsulfmgwotk which-he-didnot-disclose-~---­

to Sterling-Cohen opened the safety deposit box at TD Bank, which is Subject Premises-3. In 

light of the aforementioned evidence that Cohen conceals assets, including assets at TD Bank, 

there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 contains fmancial assets, objects of value 

and/or documents relating to such assets or objects of value that Cohen likely did not disclose to 

Sterling. Indeed, based on my training and experience, I am aware that people often conceal 

valuable items in safety deposit boxes. Accordingly, there is probable cause to believe that Subject 

Premises-3 will contain evidence of the Bank Fraud Offenses. 

b. In addition, based on my review of records produced by TD Bank, I know that 

Cohen has accessed the vault in which Subject Premises-3 is stored o·n two occasions. The first 

such occasion was on November 10, 2017. Cohen signed into the vault at approximately 5:35 and 

out of vault at approximately 5:39 on that date.32 Based on my review of toll records, I know that 

Cohen's first call after he signed out of the safety deposit box - approximately 4 5 minutes later -

was to Keith Davidson. Specifically, at 6:25 p.m. Cohen called Davidson and they spoke for less 

than a minute; three minutes later, Davidson called Cohen back and they spoke for approximately 

32 The entry in the bank's log book does not specify whether this is A .. M. or P.M. However, I infer 

that it is P .M., because it is unlikely that the bank would have been open at 5 :35 and 5 :39 a.m. 
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22 minutes. The second such occasion was on February 2, 2018, which is during the time period 

numerous media reports about Cohen's payment to Clifford were being published, and is one day 

after it appears that Cohen's family moved into Subject Premises-4, as set forth above. The timing 

of Cohen's two visits to the vault- one shortly before a call to Keith Davidson and the other around 

the time that Cohen came under media scrutiny in connection with the payment to Davidson's 

client- gives rise to probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-3 will contain evidence of the 

Campaign Finance Offenses, such.as documents relevant -fo-tlie-Conen'sclealtng-with~Keith---­

Davidson and the payment to Clifford, including documents or evidence that Cohen did not want 

to leave in his apartment where construction workers would be present. 33 

51. Based on my review of emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants and 

cell phone location information, I believe that Cohen is temporarily residing in Subject Premises-

4. See supra ,r,r 3(d). There is also probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-4 contains 

instrumentalities and evidence of the Subject Offenses, including, the following: 

a. As described above, it appears that Cohen moved to Subject Premises-4 on or about 

February 1, 2018, at which time numerous media reports about Cohen's involvement in the 

payment to Clifford were being published. See supra ,r,r 3(d). Du,ring this time same period, 

Cohen was frequently corresponding with the media and sent himself and others statements about 

his involvement in the payment to Clifford. See supra ,r,r 42(a)-(c). Thus, there is probable cause 

that Cohen took at least some documents and evidence relating to the Clifford payment with him 

to Subject Premises-4, in order to reference and consult them in connection with these statements. 

33 As noted above, Subject Premises-3 is approximately five inches by ten inches. Accordingly, I 

do not believe that it would fit a large volume of hard copy documents; however, a small number 

of hard-copy documents, or a large volume of documents contained on a flash drive or other 

_portable storage device, would fit in Subject Premises-3. 
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b. As described above, at the time Cohen moved to Subject Premises-4, he was also 

in the midst of ongoing negotiations with Sterling regarding the refinancing of his medallion debts. 

For example, on January 30, 2018, Cohen had a lengthy phone call with Sterling Employee-3 about 

his finances and the proposed restructuring, and on February 1, 2018, Cohen sent an email to 

Sterling Employee-3 claiming that he did not have more than $1.25 million in cash. See supra ,r,r 

16(u). Thus, there is probable cause that Cohen took at least some documents and evidence relating 

-to-his ongoing-negotiations-with-Sterling-with-him to-Subj ect-Premises-4,-in order to-referenee-and-- ----­

consult them in connection with these negotiations. 

c. As described above, Cohen used at least one Apple iPhone, an Apple iPad Mini, 

and a MacBook Pro to access his iCloud account, and these ele_ctronic devices linked to Cohen's 

iCloud account were used at Subject Premises-I - Cohens' permanent residence - to place 

telephone calls and backup files to Cohen's iCloud account. See supra ,r,r 4 7(i). Although Cohen's 

stay at Subject Premises-4 is temporary, based on my training and experience I know that 

individuals who travel or stay in hotels for short-term periods commonly bring portable electronic 

devices with them, such as cellular phones, tablets, or laptops. Accordingly, there is probable 

cause to believe that Subject Premises-4, where Cohen currently appears to be residing, contains 

electronic devices, including Subject Device-I, Subject Device-2, and/or certain Apple products, 

that for the reasons discussed herein are likely to contain evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

d. Moreover, as set forth above, based on cellphone location information I know that 

Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2 were in the vicinity of Subject Premises-4 as recently as 

this morning (April 8, 2018). As set forth above, there is probable cause to believe that Cohen 

used the Subject Devices in furtherance of the Subject Offenses, including to communicate with 

Sterling employees regarding the medallion transaction, with First Republic employees regarding 
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the Essential Consultants Account, with his accountant regarding his finances, and with 

individuals, such as Davidson, Howard and Pecker, involved in the $130,000 payment to Clifford. 

52. Although Cohen appears to be residing currently in Subject Premises-4, it is 

unknown whether Cohen will be physically present within Subject Premises-4 at the moment the 

warrant sought herein are executed. If Cohen is within Subject Premises-4 at that moment, Subject 

Device-I and Subject Device-2 - his cellphones - will likely also be within Subject Premises-4. 

If CohenTs-not within Sul:iject Premises--4-anliat moment;-tneclevices will likely-he on his-person~-----­

wherever he is located (which, based on location data for Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2 

as recently as today, is likely to be in the Southern District of New York). As such, this warrant 

seeks separate authority to seize Subject Device-I and Subject Device-2, in the event that those 

devices are not located within SubjectPremises-4 (or another Subject Premises) at the moment the 

warrants sought herein are executed. 

D. Probable Cause Justifying Search ofESI 

53. Based on the foregoing, there is probable cause to believe that Subject Premises-I, 

Subject Premises-2 and Subject Premises-4 contain electronic devices that are likely to contain 

evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses (and, as set forth above, that Subject 

Device-I and Subject Device-2 are themselves electronic devices that are likely to contain 

evidence of the Subject Offenses). Specifically, based on my review of information produced 

pursuant to the Cohen Email Warrants, the iCloud Warrant, and subpoenas, as well as pen register 

data, I submit that there is probable cause that Subject Premises- I contains an Apple iPad Mini, a 

MacBook Pro, and has, at various time_s, contained .Apple cellphones; similarly, there is probable 

cause that Subject Premises-2 contains a computer and has, at various times, contained Apple 
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cellphones. These devices are likely to include evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of the 

Subject Offenses for the following reasons: 

a. As described throughout this affidavit, Cohen used email to send and receive 

communications related to the Subject Offenses. In particular, Cohen used email to send and 

receive communications with Sterling, First Republic, Oetzel, the entities to which he is providing 

consulting services, Davidson, and Howard, among others. While some of these emails have 

·a:lready-be·en-o btairred via·subpoenas-and-search-warrants;-I-know-frorn-my·training-and-experience--­

that individuals can and do delete emails from their Internet-based inboxes but retain copies of 

those emails on their hard drives. I also know that individuals often have multiple email accounts, 

some of which may not be known to law enforcement, and as a result electronic devices can be a 

unique repository of all emails relevant to certain Subject Offenses. Indeed, from my involvement 

in this investigation, I know that Cohen had an email account with the Trump Organization, but 

the USAO and FBI have not been able to obtain the contents of that account to date. Thus, emails 

relevant to the Subject Offenses are likely stored on electronic devices in Subject Premises-I, 

Subject Premises-2 and/or Subject Premises-4. 

b. Additionally, Subject Premises-I, Subject Premise-2 and Subject Premises-4 likely 

contain electronic copies of documents relevant to the Subject Offenses. Indeed, I know from my 

training and experience that individuals often retain copies of important documents on their 

computers or other electronic devices capable of storing information, including cellphones (such 

as the Subject Devices) and tablets. Here, there are a number of documents that Cohen has likely 

retained that will be relevant to the Subject Offenses. For example, electronic devices may include 

documentation of Cohen's true net worth, a listing of his assets, an accounting of his available 
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cash, consulting agreements with third parties, and documentation of his payment to Clifford, 

among other evidence of the Subject Offenses. 

c. Third, I know from my review of emails obtained pursuant to the Cohen Email 

Warrants that Cohen sent up online banking with First Republic. Based on my training and 

experience, I know that individuals who set up online banking often receive electronic notices 

concerning financial transactions and, on occasion, save records of their financial transactions to 

their devices. Accordingly, there is probable cause to 6elieve UiatCofien'selectrontc-devic-es~~------­

contain evidence of banking ictivity, including the existence of bank accounts or assets that Cohen 

did not disclose to Sterling or Melrose. 

d. Fourth, from my review of records produced by Apple, I know that Cohen 

communicates using text message as well as encrypted communications applications. These 

applications that Cohen has downloaded onto a phone include, but are not limited to, Whats,App, 

Signal, and Dust. I know from my review of toll records and text messages that, in particular, 

Cohen communicated with Pecker using these encrypted applications. Accordingly, there is 

probable cause to believe that Cohen's cellphones -the Subject Devices -will contain encrypted 

messages that are not otherwise accessible relating to the Subject Offenses. 

54. Based on my training and experience, I know that individuals who engage in 

financial crimes commonly use computers to communicate with co-conspirators, keep fmancial 

ledgers, and retain fraudulent documents. As a result, they often store data on their computers 

related to their illegal activity, which can include logs of online or cellphone-based "chats" with 

co-conspirators; email correspondence; contact information of co-conspirators, includihg 

telephone numbers, email addresses, and identifiers for instant messaging and social medial 

accounts; bank account numbers; and/or records of uses of funds. 
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55. Based on my training and experience, I also know that, where computers are used 

in furtherance of criminal activity, evidence of the criminal activity can often be found months or 

even years after it occurred. This is typically true because: 

• Electronic files can be stored on a hard drive for years at little or no cost and users thus 

have little incentive to delete data that may be useful to consult in the future. 

• Even when a user does choose to delete data, the data can often be recovered months 

or years later with the appropriate forensic tools. When a file is "deleted" on a home 

---· computer,_the_data_contained in the file does not actually disappear, but instead remains 

on the hard drive, in "slack space," until itis ove_rwl"itten by new 4ata tl:iat cannoroe-­

stored elsewhere on the computer. Similarly, files that have been viewed on the Internet 

are generally downloaded into a temporary Internet directory or "cache," which is only 

overwritten as the "cache" fills up and is replaced with more recently viewed Internet 

pages. Thus, the ability to retrieve from a hard drive or other electronic storage media 

depends less on when the file was created or viewed than on a particular user's 

operating system, storage capacity, and computer habits. 

• In the event that a user changes computers, the user will typically transfer files from 

the old computer to the new computer, so as not to lose data. In addition, users often 

keep backups of their data on electronic storage media such as thumb drives, flash 

memory cards, CD-ROMs, or portable hard drives. 

56. Based on the foregoing, I respectfully submit there is probable cause to believe that 

Cohen engaged in the Subject Offenses, and that evidence of this criminal activity is likely to be 

found in the Subject Premises, on computers and electronic media found in the Subject Premises, 

and on the Subject Devices. In particular, there is probable cause to believe that the Subject 

Premises and Subject Devices will contain evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of violations of 

the Subject Offenses, as more fully described in Section II of Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F to 

the proposed warrants, including the following: 

a. Evidence necessary to establish the occupancy or ownership of the Subject 

Premises, including without limitation, utility and telephone bills, mail envelopes, addressed 

correspondence, bank statements, identification documents, and keys. 

2017.08.02 

b. Evidence relating to Sterling, Melrose, and/or taxi medallions. 
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c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Cohen and/or entities 

associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including tc md/or entities associated with him. 

d. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

e. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of pay~ents. rn;ie to or-from Es~ent1~r Consultants or tne nafifre------•-·~···-···•··'f 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. l 
ll 
ij 

f. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

g. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records. 

h. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and and any payments b~-to Cohen. 

1. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nonclisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

j. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 
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k. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

1. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

m. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

n. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

o. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

p. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances; 

q. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution; 

r. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

III. Procedures for Searching ESI 

A. Execution of Warrant for ESI 

57. Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(e)(2)(B) provides that a warrant to search 

for and seize property "may authorize the seizure of electronic storage media or the seizure or 
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copying of electronically stored information ... for later review." Consistent with Rule 41, this 

application requests authorization to seize any computer devices and storage media and transport 

them to an appropriate law enforcement facility for review. This is typically necessary for a number 

of reasons: 

• First, the volume of data on computer devices and storage media is often impractical 

for law enforcement personnel to review in its entirety at the search location. 

• Second, because computer data is particularly vulnerable to inadvertent or intentional 

-~-mcmification or -destruction~ computer a.evtce-s-ate~ide-ally~examined-in-a--cuntrolled~---­

environment, such as a law enforcement laboratory, where trained personnel, using 

specialized software, can make a forensic copy of the storage media that can be 

subsequently reviewed in a manner that does not change the underlying data. 

• Third, there are so many types of computer hardware and software in use today that it 

can be impossible to bring to the search site all of the necessary technical manuals and 

specialized personnel and equipment potentially required to safely access the 

underlying computer data. 

• Fourth, many factors can complicate and prolong recovery of data from a computer 

device, including the increasingly common use of passwords, encryption, or other 

features or configurations designed to protect or conceal data on the computer, which 

often take considerable time and resources for forensic personnel to detect and resolve. 

58. As discussed herein, Squire Patton Boggs is a functioning law firm that conducts 

legitimate business unrelated to Cohen's commission of the Subject Offenses. Subject Premises-

2 is an office located inside of Squire Patton Boggs' s New York office. In order to execute the 

warrant in the most reasonable fashion, law enforcement personnel will attempt to investigate on 

the scene of what computers or storage media, if any, must be seized or copied, and what computers 

or storage media need not be seized or copied. Law enforcement personnel will speak with Squire 

Patton Boggs personnel on the scene as may be appropriate to determine which files and electronic 

devices within Subject Premises-2 belong to or were used by Cohen. While, based on the 

foregoing, it does not appear that Cohen shared electronic devices or a server with Squire Patton 

Boggs, where appropriate, law enforcement personnel will copy data, rather than physically seize 
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computers, to reduce the extent of any disruption of Squire Patton Boggs's operations. If, after 

inspecting the seized computers off-site, it is determined that some or all of this equipment is no 

longer necessary to retrieve and preserve the evidence, the Government will return it. 

59. Additionally, because Cohen is an attorney, and claims to serve as a personal 

attorney for Trump, the review of evidence seized from the Subject Premises and Subject Devices 

will be conducted pursuant to established screening procedures to ensure that the law enforcement 

personnel involved in the investigation, including attorneysfor llie-Government~wllect-evidence--~------~---­

in a manner reasonably designed to protect any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When 

appropriate, the procedures will include use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from 

the investigative team, in order to review potentially privileged communications and determine 

which communications to release to the investigation and prosecution team. 

B. Accessing ESI on the Subject Devices 

60. As described above, the Subject Devices are both Apple brand devices. 

61. I know from my training and experience, as well as from information found in 

publicly available materials including those published by Apple, that some models of Apple 

devices such as iPhones and iPads off er their users the ability to unlock the device via the use of a 

fingerprint or thumbprint ( collectively, "fingerprint") in lieu of a numeric or alphanumeric 

passcode or password. This feature is called Touch ID. I also know that the Apple iPhone X offers 

its users the ability to unlock the device via the use of facial recognition (through infrared and 

visible light scans) in lieu of a numeric or alphanumeric passcode or password. This feature is 

called Face ID. 

62. If a user enables Touch ID on a given Apple device, he or she can register up to 5 

fingerprints that can be used to unlock that device. The user can then use any of the registered 
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fingerprints to unlock the device by pressing the relevant finger(s) to the device's Touch ID sensor, 

which is found in the round button ( often referred to as the "home" button) found at the bottom 

center of the front of the device. If a user enables Face ID on a given Apple device, he or she can 

unlock the device by raising the iPhone to his or her face, or tapping the screen. In my training 

and experience, users of Apple devices that offer Touch ID or Face ID often enable it because it is 

considered to be a more convenient way to unlock the device than by entering a numeric or 

alpliaiiumefic passcocle or passwora.~aswellas a more secure wayto-protectthe-device' s contents:---~ ---

63. In some circumstances, Touch ID or Face ID cannot be used to unlock a device that 

has either security feature enabled, and a passcode or password must be used instead. These 

circumstances include: (1) when the device has just been turned on or restarted; (2) when more 

than 48 hours has passed since the last time the device was unlocked; (3) when the passcode or 

password has not been entered in the last 6 days, and the device has not been unlocked via Touch 

ID in the last 8 hours or the device has not been unlocked via Face ID in the last 4 hours; ( 4) the 

device has received a remote lock command; or (5) five unsuccessful attempts to unlock the device 

via Touch ID or Face ID are made. 

64. The passcodes or passwords that would unlock the Subject Devices are not known 

to law enforcement. Thus, it will likely be necessary to press the fingers of the user of the Subject 

Devices to the devices' Touch ID sensor, or hold the Subject Devices in front of the user's face to 

activate the Face ID sensor, in an attempt to unlock the devices for the purpose of executing the 

search authorized by this warrant. Attempting to unlock the relevant Apple devices via Touch ID 

with the use of the fingerprints of the user, or via Face ID by holding the device in front of the 

user's face, is necessary because the government may not otherwise be able to access the data 

contained on those devices for the purpose of executing the search authorized by this warrant. 
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65. Based on these facts and my training and experience, it is likely that Cohen is the 

user of the Subject Devices, and thus that his fingerprints are among those that are able to unlock 

the Subject Devices via Touch ID or his face is able to unlock the Subject Devices via Face ID. 

66. Although I do not know which of a given user's 10 fingerprints is capable of 

unlocking a particular device, based on my training and experience I know that it is common for a 

user to unlock a Touch ID-enabled Apple device via the fingerprints on thumbs or index fingers. 

--------

In the event that law enforcement is un-;bletounlock theSuojecfDevices as des-aibed-above----·--------
1
i 
i' 

I 

within the five attempts permitted by Touch ID, this will simply result in the device requiring the ! 
~ 

entry of a password or passcode before it can be unlocked. 

67. I also know from my training and experience, and my review of publicly available 

materials published by Apple that Apple brand devices, such as the Subject Devices, have a feature 

that allows a user to erase the contents of the device remotely. By logging into the Internet, the 

user or any other individual who possesses the user's account information can take steps to 

completely wipe the contents of the device, thereby destroying evidence of criminal conduct, along 

with any other information on the device. The only means to prevent this action is to disable the 

device's ability to connect to the Internet immediately upon seizure, which requires either access 

to the device itself to alter the settings, or the use of specialized equipment that is not consistently 

available to law enforcement agents at every arrest. 

68. Due to the foregoing, I request that the Court authorize law enforcement to press 

the fingers (including thumbs) of Cohen to the Touch ID sensors the Subject Devices, or hold the 

Subject Devices in front of Cohen's face, for the purpose of attempting to unlock the Subject 

Devices via Touch ID or Face ID in order to search the contents as authorized by this warrant. 
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C. Review of ESI 

69. Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation 

of forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement 

officers and agents, and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and 

related proceedings, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel 

assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under government 

·--------. ~~~--

control) will review the ESI contained therein for inforniaffon responsive to the-warrant:--~~~---- -- · 

70. In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques 

to determine which files or other ESI contain evidence or fruits of the Subject Offenses. Such 

techniques may include, for example: 

• surveying directories or folders and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• conducting a file-by-file review by "opening" or reading the first few "pages" of such 

files in order to determine their precise contents ( analogous to performing a cursory 

examination of each document in a file cabinet to determine its relevance); 

• "scanning" storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted data or 

deliberately hidden files; and 

• performing electronic keyword searches through all electronic storage areas to 

determine the existence and location of data potentially related to the subject matter of 

the investigation34; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

34 Keyword searches alone are typically inadequate to detect all relevant data. For one thing, 

keyword searches work only for text data, yet many types of files, such as images and videos, do 

not store data as searchable text. Moreover, even as to text data, there may be information properly 

subject to seizure but that is not captured by a keyword search because the information does not 

contain the keywords being searched. 
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71. Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to restrict their search to 

data falling within the categories of evidence specified in the warrant. Depending · on the 

circumstances, however, law enforcement personnel may need to conduct a complete review of all 

the ESI from seized devices or storage media to evaluate its contents and to locate all data 

. responsive to the warrant. 

D. Return ofESI 
-~·-----·--~ 

72. If the Government deterrninesthat the electronic--devices are no-longernecessary~~----. 

to retrieve and preserve the data, and the devices themselves are not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41 ( c ), the Government will return these items, upon request. 

Computer data that is encrypted or unreadable will not be returned unless law enforcement 

personnel have determined that the data is not (i) an instrumentality of the offense, (ii) a fruit of 

the criminal activity, (iii) contraband, (iv) otherwise unlawfully possessed, or ( v) evidence of the 

Subject Offenses. 
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IV. Conclusion and Ancillary Provisions 

73. Based on the foregoing, I respectfully request the court to issue a warrant to seize 

the items and information specified in Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F to this affidavit and to the 

Search and Seizure Warrants. 

74. In light of the confidential nature of the continuing investigation, I respectfully 

request that this affidavit and all papers submitted herewith be maintained under seal until the 

Sworn to before me on 
8th day of April, 2018 

Ii \--\-c" l'I s. ~;+., .. ., 
ON. HENR B. PITMAN 

UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE 

2017.08.02 
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ATTACHMENT A 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-1 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-I") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Apartment-ocated inside the building at 502 Park Avenue, New York, New York 

10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-:floor brick residential building. Subject 

Premises-I is located on the-floor of the building. 

A Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including tc and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

• that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash at;1d cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

g. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and md/or entities controlled by the 
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, and any payments by to Cohen, from January 

. h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

--------- ---J. _ _E:viden~~Qf communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump -Campaign~Steph-anie­

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

I. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence_ relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 

any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 

drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 

or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 

--------G0nGerning-the-configuration-of-the-seized or copiecicomputer_dev:kes_Qr_storage media. _ __ -~~---------

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the marldngs it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences of language contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT B 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-2 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-2") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

An office belonging to or assigned to Michael Cohen located on the 23rd floor of the 

building at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York 10112, inside of the offices of the law firm 

Squire Patton Boggs. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza is a 66-floor office building 

that spans the entire block between Sixth A venue and Rockefeller Plaza. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including tc and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

f!. agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and and/or entities controlled by 
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' .. 

1, 2012 to the present. 
and any payments by 1-to Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

---------'---j,~E::v:idence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., :; 

i 
I 
I 
t 
I 
r 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump~Trump--Carnpaign;-steplranie~---------~-----{ 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 
~ 
t 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

( Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, any desktop and 

laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone belonging to Michael Cohen 
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or in his possession, portable hard drives, disk drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. 

In lieu of seizing any such computer devices or_ storage media, this warrant also authorizes the 

copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records of login credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

____ devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information_ 

~~w-ncerningthe configuration ofllie-seizecl orc-opied-computer devices-er-storage-media. --- __________ _ 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

8 

2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 191 of 269

Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, cir other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT C 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-3 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-3") are described as follows, and include 

all locked and closed containers found therein: 

A safe deposit box located inside th(i1,...,D Bank branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New 

York, New York 10019, marked as box#: The safe deposit box is in the name of Michael 

Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-3 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

1. Evidence relating to Michael Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash 

equivalents, assets, monthly and annual income, and income sources, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

2. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

3. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

4. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

5. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

6. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

7. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 
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8. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

9. Any portable electronic storage device. 

B. Search of Seized Electronic Devices 

Probable cause exists to search any seized electronic storage device for the items set 

forth in Section Il(A)(l)-(8), above. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any electronic storage device, law enforcement personnel (which may 

include, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney 

support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside 

technical experts under government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for 

information responsive to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain ( analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the. computer was used. 

Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices if necessary to evaluate its contents and to 

locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 

established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
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any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT D 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-4 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-4") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel at 540 Park Avenue, New York, New 

York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park Avenue and 61st Street. Subject 

Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. 

-----~II. Items to Be Se~~~--- ----

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to tr<>n«f~r l'lnv interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including tc nd/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. • 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and md/or entities controlled b) 
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I, and any payments by to Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

------'-----"--------- ---j. __ faddence~Q:lcommunications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump; the 1rump Campaign, Steplnrrrre---- ------- ·· ; 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 
~ 

I 
k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or I 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or :finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that :financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include any computer devices and 

storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 

set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 

any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 

drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 

or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 

computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 

devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 

devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 

concerning the configuration of1ne seizecl-or copied-computer devices-or-storage-media.-- _ 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 

control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Fallowing seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 

forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 

enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 

personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 

government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 

to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 

information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 

looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 

believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 

their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 

deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 

occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 

to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 

other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 

documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 

II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 

a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 

contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 

established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to 

address potential privileges. 
-~-----------------=--
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ATTACHMENT E 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure - Subject Device-1 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-I") is 

described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 

depress the fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 

---- -~--12evice-L or hold Subject Devi9e-l in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 

to gain access to the contents of any sucfiaevice as aulli:orized-bythis-warrant. ----

11. Review ofESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 

and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 

attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the ·government in 

this investigation, and outside technical experts under government control) are authorized to 

review the ESI contained on Subject Device-I for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of. 

violations of 18 U.S .C. § § 3 71 ( conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 

bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a fmancial institution), 134 3 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 

fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 

(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 

communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 

Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 

Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

or c01mnunications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

g-_ Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

- . 
1, 2012 to the present. 

_ _ and/or entities controlled by 

·-- and any payments by tl-:o Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

·-----agents-or--legaLrepresentatiyes,_ittGluding any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen :McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Oetzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January I, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-I is no longer necessary to retrieve and 

preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-I is not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 4l(c), the Government will return Subject Device-I, upon 

·request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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ATTACHMENT F 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure - Subject Device-2 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-2") is 

described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 

depress the fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 

Device-2, or hold Subject Device-2 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 

to gain access to the contents of any suclidevice a.Inruthorizedby-this-warrant.----

II. Review ofESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel(including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 

and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 

attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 

this investigation, and outside technical experts under government control) are authorized to 

review the ESI contained on Subject Device-2 for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 

violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 

bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 

fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 

(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 

liabilities, to others, including to nd/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any .documents or 

communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 

Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 

Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 

Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

md/ or entities controlled by 

and any payments by· to Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 

___ .:;._,.ag~nts-0r-legaLrepresentati:v.es,_inclu_ding any_nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 

agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 

payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

l. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 

Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 

publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 

payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 

contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 

relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 

present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 

representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 

that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 

financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 

financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-2 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 

preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-2 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 4l(c), the Government will return Subject Device-2, upon 

• request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 

to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 

any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 

use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 

potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Wa,,rrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the properly to be searched 
01• identify the person by name and address) 

502 Parl< Avenue, Apartment - New York, New Yori< 
10022, and any closed containers/items contained 

therein, See Attachment A 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any authorized law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New Yori< 
(identify the person or describe the prnnp••hl to be searched and give its location): 
5.02 Park Avenue, Apartment ■New York, New Yori< 10022, and any closed containers/items contained therein, 
See Attachment A 

The person or prope1ty to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 
properly lo be seized); 

See Attachment A 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause tq ~ym;qb, 4}11 seize the person or 
prope1ty. l \. , • 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before /' ti_~ 0
1) ,: ~ <~; * 

---~.L.. ~=;;;~o-tt-o~e;,;-_ ·c-e~ed-f,J;'-,:;,--1 cl.,..-a_,,·-.. S-y)-,------

~ in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 0 at any time in the day or n1gb,t1 a~. l find r<,asphable cat'\so "h~s been 
established. ' ; : '. -. • • 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the wliin1nt and ('.I re~ejpt,torthe vropeity 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the prope1ty was taken,'.or'leavf th~ copy aijd r;;~ei~t at the 
place where the prope1ty was taken. • • • • • 

I;,,• 
I/;':,!. ' , :· The officer executing this wairnnt, or an officer present during the execution of tho :Wl}IT~,nt,. must ptepare an 

invento1y as required by law and promptly retm·n this warrant and invent01y to the Clerk of the Court. 
Upon its return, this Wat'l'ant and invent01y should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ___ _ 

USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 (except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice ~o th~ 'Jl,~rsbh• wl\o, or whose prope1ty, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (notl9q.'.iif~c} Jb/ ,1 ' ; 

Ountil, the facts justi~1~g, 'tl\e' ,\~ter'spe;9i~c, ~ate bf 

Date and time issued: 

City and state: 

,,7·: ; ' '·// ~ ;; , 6-"-~k ;..-t.-"? ,~,:? ~-
7\:, 1, , '','.(' /z.1dge;ssigr.a(~,-~i...,.:-----=-------

\ ', I',' i, • '.\: '• __ \ '< ' \: , j\-:1, ;'~ :• -. / 

• •Hon. ,Henry 8 .. ~itm9rt U.S .. l'ililgistrate Judge 
• ' Pri11J£l(1;aine G11<i/itle 

NewYork NY 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant(Page2) 

Return 

Case No.: Date and time wammt executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of: 

Invent01y of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized: 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of petjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original wanant 

to the Court. 

Date: _______ _ 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT A 

I. Premises to be Sear.ched-Subject Premises-1 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-I") are described as follows, and include • 
electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Apartment-located inside the building at 502 Park Avenue, New York, New York 
10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-floor brick residential building. Subject 
Premises-I is located on the -of the building. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

l 
1 

I 
i 
I r 

-------A--.-Evidence;=-Fruits,-and-Instrumentalities-of-the-Subject'Offenses---------------, 

I The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pe1iains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Ban1c, Meh-ose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 
indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 
of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 
or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net w01ih, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
md/or entities controlled by 1 
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and any payments by to Cohen, from January 
1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan_.Howard abo11.LDonald Trump, the_Tnnnp_Campaign, ___ .S:tephanie _______ _ 

--------'-Ccc--::1-:-ciffi=--=-o-r~d,-an-d/::--:-or Karen McDougal. 

k Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trnmp Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbmsement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution lb.nits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from JanuaTy 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-1 also include any computer devices and 
storage media that may contain any electronically stored info1mation falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 
any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 
drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 
or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 
devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private enc1yption keys, or similar infonnation. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or softwru.·e manuals or other infonnation 
concerning the configuration of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the goverrunent, attomey supp01t staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical expe1ts under 
government control) are authorized to review the EST contained therein for info1mation responsive 
to the wru.Tant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use vru.fous techniques to locate 
information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

111 surveying vru.fous file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pe1tinent files); 

Ill opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to dete1mine 
their precise contents; 

® scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

Ill pe1f01ming key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occunences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

® reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other info1mation reflecting how, when, and by Whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable effo1is to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored infonnation within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and ILB of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
c01itents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attomey~client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apaii from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

502 Park Avenue, Apartment-New York, New York 
10022, and any closed containers/items contained 

therein, See Attachment A 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any authorized law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 

of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the prooertv to be searched and give its location): 
5_02 Park Avenue, Apartment -New York, New York 10022, and any closed containers/items contained therein, 
See Attachment A 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 

property to be seized): 

See Attachment A 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

~ in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 

(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt_for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 

place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ____ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 (except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

Ountil, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Date and time issued: l\-o-(o 7:~q_~.ti• 

City and state: New York NY Hon. Henry B. Pitman. U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 

I 
I 
f 
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Return 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person( s) seized: 

:! 
---- -----

I 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 
to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT A 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-1 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-1 ") are described as follows, and include 
electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Apartmen1-located inside the building at 502 Park Avenue, New York, New York 
10022. The building located at 502 Park Avenue is a 32-floor brick residential building. Subject 
Premises- I is located on the-of the building. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

-----~A._Evidence,_Eruits,_and_lnstrumentalities_ofthe_Subject...Offenses _______________ _ 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. • 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 
indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 
of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 
or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled by 

2 
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and any payments by '.o Cohen, from January 
1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
• eltfffrrd~and/urR:aren-M~l)urrgal-. --· 

le Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or fmances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a fmancial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that fmancial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
fmancial institution; the source of fimds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I also include any computer devices and 
storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 
any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 
drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 
or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-I also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 
devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 
concerning the configuration of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 
government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 
to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may_use various techniques to locate 
information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

4 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/IO) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southem District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identifj, the person by name and address) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

18M G 2969 
Case No. • 

Michael Cohen's Office at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 23rd 
Floor, New York, NewYork 10112, and any closed 

containers/items contained therein, See Attachment B 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any autho1'ized law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location): 
Michael Cohen's Office at 30 Rocl<efeller Plaza, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10112, and any closed 
containers/items contained therein, See Attachment B 

11ie person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 
propel'/y to be seized): 

See Attachment B 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to sm.1rch ~nr,i ietz~'the, person or 
iy ' 'J I ' ' I/ ' propel . , , . 

1 ! < , '~ 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 
' -, • ...,, , ",I 1/ /•:'>?" r·-=1 ~ 

>----'~----------

Fzf in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
. (110/ to exceed 14 days) . 

0 at any time in the day or night a§ ;1 firni' re~onable p11.u,se has beell 
established. • • ' ' 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the wam;~t l).l;da receiptfor the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy ?t~d 1;eceipt ar the 
place where the prope1iy was taken. ' ' 

The officer executing this wanant, or an officer present during the execution of the waiTarit; inust prepare an 
invento1y as required by law and promptly return this wal1'ant and invento1y to the Clerk of the Comt. 

Upon its return, this wa1rnnt and inventory shollld be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ____ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Date and time issued: 

·7,...slf ? 177 
City and state: ~N~e~w~Y=or~k~N~Y _____ _ Moh'. ,'ri'enry B. Pitman .. U.S. Magistrate Judge 

' ' , Pi•t1i!luj name ,z1;i{itle 
I 

'• I 
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Return 

Case No.: I Date and time wmrnnt executed: I Copy of wan:ant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized: 

' 
' 

! 

·--~~- -----

! 

' 

' 

,, 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of pe1jury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 

to the Comt. 

', 

Date: ' 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT B 

I. Premises to be Searched-. Subject Premises-2 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-2") are described as follows, and include 

electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

An office belonging to or assigned to Michael Cohen located on the 23rd floor of the 

building at 3 0 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New Y o.rk 10112, inside of the offices of the law fum 

Squire Patton Boggs. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza is a 66-floor office building 

that spans the entire block between Sixth A venue and Rockefeller Plaza. 

II. Items to Be Seizecl 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 

of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 

(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a :financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 

(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 

contributions) (the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 

medallions, :from Januru.y 1, 2013 to the pres_ent. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 

entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts OT 

liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 

with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 

indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 

of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 

that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 

or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 

monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 

entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, :from January 1, 

2013 to the present. 

fl. agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 

Cohen and and/or entities controlled by 
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md any payments by -to Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 

and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 

-----~Ilavid_P~cker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump_,_ the_ Trump Cm_:gp_!l!@,~-_St_e~ph_a_m_·_e _____ ~_, 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump_ Campaign, and coordination or 

consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald T1ump and/or agents or associates of the . 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign fmance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or fmances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

. p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with ai1 account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises~2 also include my computer devices and 
storage media that may contain ai1y electronically stored info1mation falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, any desktop and 
laptop computers, any Appl~ iPhone or other cellphone or smaitphone belonging to Michael Cohen 
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or in his possession, pmiable hard drives, disk drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. 
In lieu of seizing any such computer devices or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the 
copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 
devices, or recmds oflo gin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar infmmation. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 
concerning the configuration of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review ofESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney supp01i staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 
government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 
to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 
infmmation responsive to the wru.wnt, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

@ scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

e performing key word seru.·ches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occmTences oflanguage contained in such stornge areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

e reviewing metadata, system infmmation, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other infmmation reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

8 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stoted infmmation within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

Michael Cohen's Office at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 23rd 
Floor, New York, New York 10112, and any closed 

containers/items contained therein, See Attachment B 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any authorized law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location): 
Michael Cohen's Office at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10112, and any closed 
containers/items contained therein, See Attachment B 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 

property to be seized): 

See Attachment B 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

~ in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 
place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ___ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S .C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) 0 for ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

Ountil, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Date and 1;me issued: l\- c:H O r St.\ ~"· (1,( f-1,.._ rr J1:-,,&!:".1 ''I 

City and state: ~N~e~w~Y~or~k~N~Y _____ _ Hon. Henry B. Pitman, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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Return 
i 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person( s) seized: 

.. 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 
to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

" 

Printed name and title 

r 
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ATTACHMENT B 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-2 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-2") are described as follows, and include 
electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

An office belonging to or assigned to Michael Cohen located on the 23rd floor of the 
building at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New Yo_rk 10112, inside of the offices of the law firm 
Squire Patton Boggs. The building located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza is a 66-floor office building 
that spans the entire block between Sixth A venue and Rockefeller Plaza. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 u.s·.c. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 
indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 
of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 
or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

g. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
Cohen and and/or entities controlled by 
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and any payments by to Cohen, from January 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 

-----c1iffoicf,arfd/orKarenMcDouga.L ·• ~· 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

in. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

. p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a fmancial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to .the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include any computer devices and 
storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of_this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, any desktop and 
laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone belonging to Michael Cohen 
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or in his possession, portable hard drives, disk drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. 
In lieu of seizing any such computer devices or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the 
copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-2 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media, including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 
devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 
concerning the configuration of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 
government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 
to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 
information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occurrences of language contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District ofNew York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identijj, the person by name and address) 

) 
) 
) Case No. 

Safe Deposit Boxllll.ocated at the TD Bank Branch at ~ 
500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and any 1~ M AG j 
closed containers/items contained therein, See Att. C ) _ ·. · ~ •• 

SEARCH AND SEIZU ARRANT 

I 
ii 

~ 

2969 
,, 

----------------------------------·--'-----'---=------------"'-'-----------i-- j 
To: Any authorized law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or-t!P.o,,,•ihe the property to be searched and give its locatio11): • 
Safe Deposit Bm _ocated at the TD Bank Branch at 500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and any 
closed containersmems contained therein,See Attachment C 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identijj, the person or describe the 
property to be seized): 

See Attachment C 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

~I·,.\.\];:. l;J, 'J.-1//f' 
YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this wanant on or before ___ :.,_::,_c:LLLUL.U / • •~-----

, ' • \ , "~iot lo ,excffed }4 dr,y~) 

Flf in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 0 at any time in the day or nigµt'.as' r-'ri~i'J. rea~otiabl(! ,;:ause has been 
• ;- ·' I '. 1' ·., , ' -; 

established. .• • • : : • , ' 
·., 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, y?u must give a copy of th~ ,1r~1;i:apt ~•~fl1 ~ t~~'rip7 fo~ t4~\~n?perty 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was takc,n, 01'.l~ave llle c91py ,ii.pd, 1;e~eipt ,at the 
place where the property was taken. , , , ' , '(', ·, , .' 

The officer executing this wall'ant, or an officer present dlll'ing the execution' ofJhe, w'~i.;antn:tus(p:i:e~are an 
'· I 1 i ') 1 1 ,. 

inventory as required by law and promptly return this wrurnnt and invent01y to the Cler:ic d/H~?,.qmirt .• 
Upon its return, this WaITant and inventory sho11ld be filed under seal by the Clerk o:fij1~S9\ll"L1 ____ _ 

USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 (except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be· 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

Date and time issued: 

City and state: 

7: r 1,; flit 

NewYork NY 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: 
1 
I Date and time warrant executed: [ Copy ofwanant and inventory left with: 

Invento1y made i~ the presence of: 

Inventory ofthe property taken and name of any person(s) seized: 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of pe1jury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 

to the Comt. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT C 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-3 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-3") are described as follows, and include 
all locked and closed containers found therein: 

A safe deposit box located inside the TD Bank branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New 
York, New York 10019, marked as box-The safe deposit box is in the name of Michael 
Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

Il. Items to Be Seized 

------- A~-Evident-e;-Fruits,and-Instrume:ntalities-of-the-Subject~0rfenses,----

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-3 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution\ 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

1. Evidence relating to Michael Cohen's net wmih, available cash and cash 
equivalents, assets, monthly and annual income, and income s01u·ces, from Januaiy 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

2. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

3. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karnn McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

4. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dyla..11 Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

5. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

6. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents OT associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

7. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 
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8. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution repo1iing requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

9. Any po1table electronic storage device. 

B. Search of Seized Electronic Devices 

Probable cause exists to search any seized electronic storage device for the items set 

forth in Section II(A)(l )-(8), above. 

C. Review of ESI 

----- --~--Following seizure-ofany-electronic-storagedeviee,lawenforeement-personnel-Ewhiehrnay-----~ 
include, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney 
supp01t staff, agency personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside 
technical expe1ts under govemrnent control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for 
information responsive to the wanant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 
info1mation responsive to the wanant, including, for example: 

111 surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pe1iinent files); 

11 opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

111 scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

111 pe1fo1ming key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occunences of language contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

11 reviewing rnetadata, system info1mation, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other info1mation reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored inf01mation within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices if necessary to evaluate its contents and to 
locate all data responsive to the wanant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 
established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
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any attomey-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to addrnss 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

Safo Deposit Box ,■Located at the TD Bank Branch at 
500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and any 

closed containers/items contained therein, See Att. C 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any authorizea-Iaw enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or ,:;■'be the property to be searched and give its location): • 
Safe Deposit Box; Located at the TD Bank Branch at 500 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10019, and any 
closed containers/items contained therein,See Attachment C 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 
property to be seized): 

See Attachment C 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

gf in the daytime 6 :00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 
place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ___ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Date and time issued: l.\ -l) --( lf 1; '>L\ f" · 

City and state: New York NY 

Judge's signature 

Hon. Henry B. Pitman, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized: 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 

to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT C 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-3 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-3") are described as follows, and include 
all locked and closed containers found therein: 

A safe deposit box located inside the TD Bank branch location at 500 Park Avenue, New 
York, New York 10019, marked as box-rhe safe deposit box is in the name of Michael 
Cohen and Laura Cohen. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

-----~A._EyidencJ~,-Erni_ts_,_an__d_Instr:um~1ttalities of the Subject Offen=s=e=s __________ ___________ _ 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-3 are evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

1. Evidence relating to Micl,lael Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash 
equivalents, assets, monthly and annual income, and income sources, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

2. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

3. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

4. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

5. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

6. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

7. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 
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8. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

9. Any portable electronic storage device. 

B. Search of Seized Electronic Devices 

Probable cause exists to search any seized electronic storage device for the items set 

forth in Section II(A)(l )-(8), above. 

C. Review of ESI 

Jollowing seizure of an):'. electronic storage device, law enforcement JJersonnel (which may ____ _ 
include, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney • 1 
support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside t; 
technical experts under government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for 1: 
information responsive to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 
information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occurrences oflanguage contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 

Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices if necessary to evaluate its contents and to 
locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 
established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
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any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRJCT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the properly to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

) 
) 
) Case No. 

Loews Regency Hotel, 540 Park Avenue, Room 1728, 
New York, New York 10065, and any closed 

containers/items contained therein, See Attachment D l8MAG 969 
SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

• To: Any authodzed law enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location): 
Loews Regency Hotel, 540 Park Avenue, Room 1728, New York, New York 10065, and any closed containers/items 
contained therein, See Attachment D 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 
property to be seized}: 

See Attachment D 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to sem:c:;t,a(14 ~iie the person or 
property. . • , , , , / . . 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before L._4,;, ~' ,'?: ~ .'... / f' ' 
0 in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 

. (not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night a~ I find'.reasonable cau~e ha□ beiel). 
established. • 

' ' ' Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the wru.mnt and aTeceipt fot the p1·operty 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or lea"t'(l the copy ~rqd receipt i:tr,the 
place where the property was taken. ' • 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the wru.wtit, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this wairnnt and invent01y to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and invent01y shot1ld be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Comt. ____ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have ai.1 adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this wanant to delay notice to the person who, or whose prope1ty, will be 
seai·ched or seized (check tlie appropriate box} Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

Ountil, the facts justifying, the later specific date of' ~"~ 

Date and time issued: 
/J / . ,',yt~ ,.:~ ' .. 
• I ~1--=a--,,~;;.. , ', ~-~ ~~-~~ ~~t-4<fr 

I r Judgg 's ,9if!i17a!Ure. 
' ' • 
' \ > ' J 

Hon. Henry B. Pitrrl~~.', t.f.s. ~agi~trate: Judgo ' City and state: ~N=e~w~Y~o=r~k~N~Y~-----
Printed 111/11/~ 411d fl(le 1 

• 
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AO .93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: I Date and time wanant executed: I Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized: 

·-- -··- --·--·--·· - . 
i! .... 

11 

IZ 

!i 

Certification 

I declare tmder penalty of pe1jury that this inventory is conect and was retumed along with the original warrant 
to the CoU1t. ii 

I 
Date: ); 

Executing officer's signature 
!: 

PNnted name and title i 

~ 
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ATTACHMENT D 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-4 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-4") are described as follows, and include 
electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel at 540 Park A venue, New York, New 
York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park Avenue and 61st Street. Subject 
Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

A. Evidence, Fruits, and Instrumentalities of the Subject Offenses 

The items to be seized :from Subject Premises-4 are evidence; fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries); 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence 1·elating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer anv interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 
indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or :from Essential Consultants or the natme 
of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 
or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. • 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and othel' assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, 'including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

g. Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or fmancial transactions between 
Cohen and md/or entities controlled by 
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, and any payments by; Cohen, from January 
1, :.lu LL m me presem.-

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifforci or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David-Pcfuker, arrd1orI':>ylan-Howa:rd-abourTJonald-Tru.mp~-'tlre~'frump-'earnpaign-;-Steplra.iiie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

le. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

I. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trnmp's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from Janua1y 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, rncords, documents, and other files reflecting false 
1·epresentations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
:financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizm·e of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include any computer devices and 
storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 
any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 
ch:ives, thumb ch:ives, and personal digital assistants. In lieu of seizing any such computer devices 
or storage media, this waITant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media; including but not limited to any physical keys, enc1yption 
devices; or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 

---concerning_the_configuratio~ofthe_seized_orcopied computer devic~s-or stm:~ge media. __ ~-~- ----+---

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review ofESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attomeys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 
government control) are authorized to l'eview the ESI contained therein for information responsive 
to the wan·ant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use vadous techniques to locate 
information responsive to the wa1rnnt, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories'' and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

e opening or cursorily reading the fast few "pages" of such files in order to dete11nine 
their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

• pe1forming key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occurrences of language contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, copfiguration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable effo1ts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Addition?lly, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 
established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or othe1· applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedmes shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to 
address potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

Loews Regency Hotel, 540 Park Avenue, Room 1728, 
New York, New York 10065, and any closed 

containers/items contained therein, See Attachment D 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

I'o: Any autliorizeflaw enforcement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location): 
Loews Regency Hotel, 540 Park Avenue, Room 1728, New York, New York 10065, and any closed containers/items 
contained therein, See Attachment D 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 
property to be seized): 

See Attachment D 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

~ in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 
place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ___ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) □for ~~~ days (not to exceed 30). 

Date and time issued: 

City and state: NewYork NY 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Judge's signature 

Hon. Henry B. Pitman, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of: 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person( s) seized: 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 
to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT D 

I. Premises to be Searched-Subject Premises-4 

The premises to be searched ("Subject Premises-4") are described as follows, and include 
electronic devices, and all locked and closed containers found therein: 

Room 1728 located inside the Loews Regency Hotel at 540 Park Avenue, New York, New 
York 10065. The building is a luxury hotel located on Park Avenue and 61st Street. Subject 
Premises-4 is located on the 17th floor of the hotel. 

II. Items to Be Seized 

~A~Ev1dence;Fru-1ts;an~d Instrumentaht1esoHhe SuoJectOffenses-

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 are evidence; fruits, and instrumentalities 
of violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy, as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 
(false bank entries); 1014 (false statements to a fmancial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 
(bank fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign 
contributions) (the "Subject Offenses"), described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to tn1m:fer :mv interP:st in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Eyidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents that 
indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential Consultants or the nature 
of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. Cohen & Associates, 
or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. Cohen & Associates. • 

f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled by 

13 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 248 of 269

, and any payments by to Cohen, from January 
1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
______ David-Eecker,.:..:andlor-Dylan-Howard-abouLDonald-.Trump,---the'--Trump-Car'npaign,-Stephani_,___ ____ _ 

Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. i 
l 
! 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

q. Evidence of Cohen's intent as it relates to the Subject Offenses under investigation. 

B. Search and Seizure of Electronically Stored Information 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include any computer devices and 
storage media that may contain any electronically stored information falling within the categories 
set forth in Section II.A of this Attachment above, including, but not limited to, a MacBook Pro, 
any other desktop and laptop computers, any Apple iPhone or other cellphone or smartphone 
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belonging to Michael Cohen or in his possession, an Apple iPad Mini, portable hard drives, disk 
drives, thumb drives, and personal digital assistants. 1h lieu of seizing any such computer devices 
or storage media, this warrant also authorizes the copying of such devices or media for later review. 

The items to be seized from Subject Premises-4 also include: 

1. Any items or records needed to access the data stored on any seized or copied 
computer devices or storage media; including but not limited to any physical keys, encryption 
devices, or records oflogin credentials, passwords, private encryption keys, or similar information. 

2. Any items or records that may facilitate a forensic examination of the computer 
devices or storage media, including any hardware or software manuals or other information 
concerning the configuration of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

--------~-- ·---·------~---------

3. Any evidence concerning the identities or locations of those persons with access to, 
control over, or ownership of the seized or copied computer devices or storage media. 

C. Review of ESI 

Following seizure of any computer devices and storage· media and/or the creation of 
forensic image copies, law enforcement personnel (which may include, in addition to law 
enforcement officers and agents, attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency 
personnel assisting the government in this investigation, and outside technical experts under 
government control) are authorized to review the ESI contained therein for information responsive 
to the warrant. 

In conducting this review, law enforcement personnel may use various techniques to locate 
information responsive to the warrant, including, for example: 

• surveying various file "directories" and the individual files they contain (analogous to 
looking at the outside of a file cabinet for the markings it contains and opening a drawer 
believed to contain pertinent files); 

• opening or cursorily reading the first few "pages" of such files in order to determine 
their precise contents; 

• scanning storage areas to discover and possibly recover recently deleted files or 
deliberately hidden files; 

• performing key word searches through all electronic storage areas to determine whether 
occurrences of language contained in such storage areas exist that are intimately related 
to the subject matter of the investigation; and 

• reviewing metadata, system information, configuration files, registry data, and any 
other information reflecting how, when, and by whom the computer was used. 
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Law enforcement personnel will make reasonable efforts to search only for files, 
documents, or other electronically stored information within the categories identified in Sections 
II.A and II.B of this Attachment. However, law enforcement personnel are authorized to conduct 
a complete review of all the ESI from seized devices or storage media if necessary to evaluate its 
contents and to locate all data responsive to the warrant. 

Additiont;1.lly, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant to 
established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to 
address potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe t~ie property to be searched 
or identijj, the person by name and address) 

An Apple iPhone with Phone Number 
See Attachment E 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: • • Xny autfionzectlaw enforcement officer 

An application by a federal Jaw enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to z,,, .• ,,,.,,.,.7,,,,1 m,rl nive its location}: 
An Apple !Phone with Phone Number 1_, See Attachment E 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identijj, the person or describe the 
property to be seized): 

See Attachment E 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

\'.II! i 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this wa11'ant on or before -~ :i,/ 0 ·½· p.J_~....,~~;"_''....,f~·___,----­
, ', ,' ; 1, ',, ','.(n'ot {o (/xC¢ed ! 4 days) 

aZf in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 0 at any time in the day or,41ii1t a~ r find re~s~nable,ca1.1,~e has been 
established. : ' ' '· • ' • 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy oi_tJi~~Jirniif.',a~~,a';e6~ipt f~I' tlle;property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was t~(ei1,' ,ch;leavJ th~ ~01~~ ¥M ,1:ec~ipt at the 
place where the property was taken. ' • 

Die officer executing this wairnnt, or an officer present during the exe~1'iti9h~f.t:b,e,·~~rv[l!}l/m,u;t prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly retum this wanant and inventory to the Ole~'k/~~!l}e, pou11:'. 

Upon its retum, this warrant and inventory shm:ild be filed under seal by the Clei·k'dfthe Comt. ---~­
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this wairnnt to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30) . .. 

, -,.1 \ -- ill!!/ 

Om1til, the facts justifying, the l~t~i· ~bclif1~ \1af:~, 6f . , • 

Date and time issued: 

7· .r l../ />lry 

City and state: New York NY ~~~~~------

·,.) \ 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01109) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page2) 
-- -

Return: I 
i 

Case No.: I Date and time warrant executed: I Copy or wanant and inventory left with: ' 
I 

I 

I 

Inventory made in the presence of : 
, 

Inventmy of the property taken and name of any person(-s) seized: 

i 

i ---~~-~----·--

,_ 

' 

-! 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of pe1jmy that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original wrurnnt ' 
to the Comi. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT E 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure-Subject Device-1 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-1 ") is 
described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 
depress the fmgerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 
Device-1, qr hold Subject Device-1 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 
to gain access to the contents of any such device as authorized by this warrant. 

II. Review of ESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 
and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 
attorneys for the government, attorney suppmt staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 
this investigation, and outside technical expe1ts under government control) are authorized to 
review the ESI contained on Subject Device-1 for evidence, :fiuits, and instrumentalities of 
violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as itpe1tains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 
bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 
:fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contdbutions) 
(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer anv interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Meh·ose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 
communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 
Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 
Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
or communications that indicate the nature and pmpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net w011h, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax retums, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled by 

, and any payments by to Cohen, from January 
1, LV 1 L to tne present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any co1Ill1l~c~tions related to such agre_ements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trnmp Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

le. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Tnunp and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution repo11ing requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from Januaiy 1, 2013 to the present. 

18 
2017.08.02 



Case 1:18-cr-00602-WHP   Document 48-1   Filed 07/18/19   Page 255 of 269

If the Govemment determines that Subject Device-1 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 
preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-I is not subject to seizure pursuant to 
Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(c), the Government will retum Subject Device-1, upon 
request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable p1ivilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District of New York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

An Apple iPhone with Phone Number 
See Attachment E 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

-- •• To:Anyauthor1zecf lawenforcement officer· 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to ,._" ""--" 7""A m•A ~'ve its location): 
An Apple iPhone with Phone Number , See Attachment E 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 

property to be seized): 

See Attachment E 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

li'f in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 
place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Comt. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Comt. ___ _ 
USMJ Initials 

D I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) Ofor ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

City and state: ~N~e=w~Y=o~rk~N~Y _____ _ 

Judge's signature 

Hon. Henry B. Pitman. U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: 

Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(-s) seized: 

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 
to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT E 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure-Subject Device-1 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-1 ") is 
described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 
depress the fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 
Device-1, qr hold Subject Device-1 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 
to gain access to the contents of any such device as authorized by this warrant. 

II. Review ofESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 
and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 
attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 
this investigation, and outside technical experts under government control) are authorized to 
review the ESI contained on Subject Device-1 for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 
violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 
bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 
fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 
(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 
communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 
Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 
Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax retlll1ls, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
md/or entities controlled by 

, and any payments by· to Cohen, from January 
1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Can1paign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign fmance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or fmances; from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that fmancial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-1 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 
preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-1 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 
Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(c), the Government will return Subject Device-1, upon 
request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District ofNew York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and addl'ess) ! lB.MAG 

An Apple iPhone with Phone Number 
See Attachment F 

) 
) 
) 

2909 
SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

To: Any authorized enfol'cement officer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the govemment requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to J..n -nn .. ~ 7 .. ,1 ~••rl n've its location): 
An Apple iPhone with Phone Number -See Attachment F 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or descl'ibe the 
property to be seized): 

See Attachment F 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to sear\:ih:\t!,9~r~¢iz~;t'r1~,pe,rson or 
property. , ' ,, i \,, • ,1 I , , 

' ,' 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this wananron or before 1/ - ~?.'ir'_.1,!, "ff 
':' (notto exceed14clq;'s) , 

0 at any time in the day or night as I :fi~~ ;e;so~\~f)Le c,ai1~e Wis b~en 
established ·,' ' ' :'· •,/, { ·' / "1 , 

• ·, , l, '• -J • ' 

0 in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the wan-ant and a re~eipt fo11thf p,roMrty,' 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, 01· leave the, copy, anp roc,e\pt~t t]:ii 
place where the property was taken. • ' • 1 , ' 1 ". '. • • 1 , ' 

The officer executing this wainnt, or an officer present dlll'ing the execution of the wanant, must prepai·e a11 
inventoty as required by law and promptly retum this waimnt ai1d invent01y to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this wan·ant and invento1y sh011ld be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Comt. ____ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C, § 2705 (except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized (check the appropriate box) 0 for ___ days (not to exceed 30). 1 1 1 ·' 

□until, the facts justifying, the later specific <lat.e of __ I_._.'~---· __ . 

I/~ t-/ .<£ ~ . ,::,'.·/.}'·, ,' '·-.: :, : ' 
Date and time issued: ______ ,..,__ ~ ~~~ ,~ •~~ _ ~, ... 

?.' f L/ //l) if"Ji1dpe•~s(tqir,t11re • ·."·. • , • 
. : \ ,, ', '' ','. ' \ 

City and state: New York NY Hon. Henry B. Pitman. 'u.:s. ~Aagistrate Judge 
Printed nai~le, and title ' 

\ \ 
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ATTACHMENT F 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure - Subject Device-2 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-2") is 
described as follows; 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telepho,ne number 

During the execution of this search waiTant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 
depress the :fingerprints and/orthumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 
Device-2, or hold Subject Device-2 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 
to gain access to the contents of any such device as authorized by this wanant. 

IT. Review of ESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 
and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 
attomeys for the government, attorney suppo1t staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 
this investigation, and outside technical expe1ts under government control) are authorized to 
review the ESI contained on Subject Device-2 for evidence, fmits, and instrumentalities of 
violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as itpe1tains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 
bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 
fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(1) (illegal campaign contributions) 
(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrose Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to md/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Meh'ose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 
communications that indicate the nature and pmpose of payments made to or from Essential 
Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 
Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net worth, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or financial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled b 

and any payments by to Cohen, from January 
1, 2012 to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's lmowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or finances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a fmancial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
:financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-2 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 
preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-2 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 
Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(c), the Government will return Subject Device-2, upon 
request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect evidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apmt from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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AO 93 (SDNY Rev. 05/10) Search and Seizure Warrant 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Southern District ofNew York 

In the Matter of the Search of 
(Briefly describe the property to be searched 
or identify the person by name and address) 

An Apple iPhone with Phone Number 
See Attachment F 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT 

to: Any autlionzed~law enforcementof:ficer 

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search 
of the following person or property located in the Southern District of New York 
(identify the person or describe the property to 1-.n on~~ni.nr1 ~-r1 ~'"e its location): 
An Apple iPhone with Phone Number ,ee Attachment F 

The person or property to be searched, described above, is believed to conceal (identify the person or describe the 

property to be seized): 

See Attachment F 

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or 
property. 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before 

&1f" in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10 p.m. 

(not to exceed 14 days) 

0 at any time in the day or night as I find reasonable cause has been 
established. 

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property 
taken to the person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the 
place where the property was taken. 

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an 
inventory as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to the Clerk of the Court. 

Upon its return, this warrant and inventory should be filed under seal by the Clerk of the Court. ___ _ 
USMJ Initials 

0 I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2705 ( except for delay 
of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose property, will be 
searched or seized {check the appropriate box) Ofdr ___ days (not to exceed 30). 

Ountil, the facts justifying, the later specific date of 

Date and time issued: l\-t'7 0 7; f'f rr-

City and state: ~N=e=w~Y~o=rk~N~Y~----- Hon. Henry B. Pitman, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed name and title 
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AO 93 (Rev. 01/09) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2) 

Return 

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with: -
Inventory made in the presence of : 

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person( s) seized: 

--~ -----~-------- -

Certification 

I declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant 
to the Court. 

Date: 
Executing officer's signature 

Printed name and title 
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ATTACHMENT F 

I. Device Subject to Search and Seizure - Subject Device-2 

The device that is the subject of this search and seizure warrant ("Subject Device-2") is 
described as follows: 

An Apple iPhone serviced by AT&T with the telephone number 

During the execution of this search warrant, law enforcement personnel are authorized to 
depress the fingerprints and/or thumbprints of Michael Cohen onto the Touch ID sensor of Subject 
Device-2, or hold Subject Device-2 in front of Cohen's face to activate the Face ID sensor, in order 
to gain access to the contents of any such device as authorized by this warrant. 

II. Review of ESI on the Subject Device 

Law enforcement personnel (including, in addition to law enforcement officers and agents, 
and depending on the nature of the ESI and the status of the investigation and related proceedings, 
attorneys for the government, attorney support staff, agency personnel assisting the government in 
this investigation, and outside technical experts under government control) are authorized to 
review the ESI contained on Subject Device-2 for evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of 

• violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 (conspiracy as it pertains to the other Subject Offenses), 1005 (false 
bank entries), 1014 (false statements to a financial institution), 1343 (wire fraud), and 1344 (bank 
fraud), and 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(a)(l)(A) and 30109(d)(l)(A)(l) (illegal campaign contributions) 
(the "Subject Offenses") described as follows: 

a. Evidence relating to Sterling National Bank, Melrnse Credit Union, and/or taxi 
medallions, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 

b. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement for Michael Cohen and/or 
entities associated with him to transfer any interest in taxi medallions, and any associated debts or 
liabilities, to others, including to and/or entities associated with him. 

c. Evidence relating to a plan, proposal, or agreement to modify loans that Cohen has 
with Sterling and/or Melrose. 

d. Evidence relating to Essential Consultants, LLC, including any documents or 
communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Essential 
Consultants or the nature of any work done by Cohen or any other individuals in connection with 
Essential Consultants. 

e. Evidence of income to Michael D. Cohen & Associates, including any documents 
or communications that indicate the nature and purpose of payments made to or from Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates, or evidence of the purpose of accounts opened in the name of Michael D. 
Cohen & Associates. 
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f. Evidence relating to Cohen's net w01ih, available cash and cash equivalents, 
monthly and annual income, income sources, and other assets, whether held personally or through 
entities, including tax returns, personal financial statements, and bank records, from January 1, 
2013 to the present. 

Evidence relating to agreements, loans, and/or fmancial transactions between 
and/or entities controlled by 

and any payments by· to Cohen, from January 
1, LU lL to the present. 

h. Evidence relating to payments to Stephanie Clifford, Karen McDougal, or their 
agents or legal representatives, including any nondisclosure agreements and related documents, 
and any communications related to such agreements. 

i. Evidence of communications involving Michael Cohen, Donald Trump and/or 
agents or associates of the Trump Campaign about Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal, or 
payments to Stephanie Clifford or Karen McDougal. 

j. Evidence of communications between Michael Cohen and American Media, Inc., 
David Pecker, and/or Dylan Howard about Donald Trump, the Trump Campaign, Stephanie 
Clifford, and/or Karen McDougal. 

k. Evidence relating to Cohen's role in the Trump Campaign, and coordination or 
consultation with the Trump Campaign. • 

1. Evidence of communications with Donald Trump and/ or agents or associates of the 
Trump Campaign about the Access Hollywood tape and other potential sources of negative 
publicity involving Trump's relationship in the run up to the election. 

m. Evidence relating to any reimbursement or other promises made to Cohen for 
payment to Clifford or others in connection with the election. 

n. Evidence relating to Cohen's knowledge of the campaign finance laws, campaign 
contribution reporting requirements, and campaign contribution limits. 

o. Communications with others, including Jeffrey Getzel and/or other accountants, 
relating to Cohen's bank accounts, taxes, debts, and/or fmances, from January 1, 2013 to the 
present. 

p. Communications, records, documents, and other files reflecting false 
representations to a financial institution related to the intended purpose of an account or loan at 
that financial institution; the nature of any business or entity associated with an account at a 
financial institution; the source of funds flowing into an account; or the purpose or nature of any 
financial transactions involving that financial institution, from January 1, 2013 to the present. 
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If the Government determines that Subject Device-2 is no longer necessary to retrieve and 
preserve the data on the device, and that Subject Device-2 is not subject to seizure pursuant to 
Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(c), the Government will return Subject Device-2, upon 
request. 

Additionally, review of the items described in this Attachment shall be conducted pursuant 
to established procedures designed to collect ~vidence in a manner reasonably designed to protect 
any attorney-client or other applicable privilege. When appropriate, the procedures shall include 
use of a designated "filter team," separate and apart from the investigative team, in order to address 
potential privileges. 
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